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To be a Leading

VISION

Industrial
REIT of ASEAN

MISSION

To offer Consistently-Growing
and Sustainable Distributions

About TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate
Investment Trust

As of December 31, 2017, TREIT have 490 units of
factories and warehouses under the administration,
with net leasable area (“NLA”) around 1.5 million
Sg.m. which expansively covered, in total, 24
strategic industrial locations in the principal
industrial premises located in 7 provinces of
the country. Properties at fair value is 30,451 million
baht, which becomes the largest industrial REIT in
Thailand nowadays.

TREIT was established on December 12, 2014 and
registered by the Stock Exchange of Thailand as
securities in the share market. The official trade
began on January 9, 2015.

to Unitholders

Since then, TREIT administered by TICON
Management Ltd. has been ambitious and
determined in administering and managing itself to
sustainably grow using three main strategies of the
trust management which include 1) the investment
in real estates of high quality in the country’s
flagship industrial locations 2) the administration
of real estates to maximize the benefits and
3) the capital management to make proper
financial costs for TREIT’s potential to be the
region’s leader and for the ability to allocate the
benefits among unitholders constantly, growingly
and firmly.
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TREIT Portfolio
(As of December 31%, 2017)

Breakdown by
Type of Asset

Factory
50%

745,535
sg.m.

E

Breakdown by
Right on Asset

Freehold
69%

1,028,648
sq.m.

Breakdown
Revenue by
Tenant’s Industry

FMCG Packaging
4% 1%

Automotive
Others 30%

17%

Note : Reference from Rental and Service Income as of 31 December 2017
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KEY HIGHLIGHTS
(As at 31 December 2017)

TREIT’s strategy is manage properties under REIT which compose of 490 premium quality
of industrial properties located in prime industrial area in Thailand, TREIT’s strategic objective

are to deliver regular and stable distributions to Unitholders and achieve sustainable,
long-term growth of distribution unit (“DPU”) growth.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Note 1: Distribution Per Unit (DPU) = Dividend and Capital Reduction.
2: TREIT current rating is A(tha)/Stable Outlook (Upgraded on
February 22m,2018) by Fitch Ratings (Thailand) Limited.
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PORTFOLIO HIGHLIGHTS
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SUSTAINABLE GROWTH
OF TREIT

Since the establishment of TREIT and the official outset of trade in the stock market, factories and
warehouses for rent under the management of TREIT skyrocketed from 45 units to 490 units.
Net leasable area (“NLA”’) measure at 1,484,660 Sq.m., which means TREIT is the rental provider of
factories and warehouses with the most expansive locations in Thailand. TREIT has also planned
to additionally invest in factories and warehouses from TICON Group and from other asset owners
for the continual growth of TREIT.




TREIT GROWTH IN 2017
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MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN
OF THE BOARD

Dear all TREIT’s unitholders,

On behallf of the board and as a Chairman of TICON Management Ltd., The REIT manager of TICON Freehold
and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust, | feel delighted and honored to present all of you with a 2017’s
annual report which includes turnovers as well as TREIT's yearly success.

TREIT’s success in conversion three TICON property funds which are TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH
into TREIT.

In 2017 marked an important occasion for TREIT as the management of trust broke the history by conversion
three TICON property funds which are TFUND, TLOGIS, TGROWTH into TREIT, making TREIT “the largest
rental provider of factories and warehouses in Thailand” in terms of locations, expanding to 1,484,660 Sg.m.
which distributed around the principal industrial locations of the country and total asset value which costs
approximately 32 billion baht. In addition to the fact that TREIT owns very expansive locations and various
assets in those flagship locations, TREIT’s expansion will boost wide availability of fund sources, lower financial
cost, enhance better liquidity of unit trading and attract enthusiasm among investors, especially those from
foreign countries which have been growing in number.

Better Distribution of Revenues and Industries

As a result of merging mutual property funds into TREIT, there have been better balances in revenues and
property holdings. Prior to the conversion, the first ten tenants with highest income had revenue shares ap-
proximately valued at 56%. However, after the merger, the revenue shares lowered to 22%, indicating that
there was better distribution of revenues in the whole picture. Also, there was higher distribution of tenants
in each industry, which will reduce the risk of TREIT’s turnovers.

Overall Performance of TREIT under The Administration of REIT Manager

After conversion of three TICON Property funds into TREIT, there have obviously been better occupancy
rate. At the end of 2017, occupancy rate remained at 79%, compared with those estimated by the end of
2016 at 77% or 2 percent higher than the year before. In addition, TREIT’s properties are widely distributed
in premium locations after transformed, which perfectly meets tenants’ needs and offers much diversity.

In fiscal year 2017’s Overall operation ended on December 31, 2017 with TREIT’s total assets valued at
31,961 million baht, 24,190 million baht higher than that of 2016, with net investment income of 369 million
baht. That leads to TREIT’s net assets value of 25,468 million baht, 19,721 million baht higher than those of
5,747 million baht of the year before with net assets valued (NAV) at 9.7864 baht per unit.

Effective of Capital Management

The REIT Manager of TREIT have managed finances with thoroughness for the best benefits by fixing the
appropriate proportion between loans and assets, placing utmost attention to the maintenance of TREIT’s
credits. In 2017, TREIT’s proportion between overall lending and overall assets was 17.33%, dropping from
283.41% from, or 6.08% lower than, the year before. As well was that, the REIT manager of TREIT also issued
corporate debentures which have tenor 3 and 7 years with low cost of debt in order to refinance long-term
loan with higher loan costs. Besides, at the end of the year, TREIT applied for a short-term loan with low
interest rates, accounting for 2.87% as average cost of debt at year end which was significantly lower than
that of the year before.
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Adjustment of Credit Ratings of Trust after Conversion PFPOs into TREIT

After the complete conversion, Fitch Ratings (Thailand) Limited. adjusted credit rating of TREIT from A- (tha)
to A(tha) (upgraded rating on February 22, 2018). This is the highest credit rating ever recorded of all REITs
in Thailand, which is thrilling especially for your TREIT. The organization’s credit adjustment leads to TREIT's
lower cost of debt as financial institutes and investors in REIT debenture are more confident

in TREIT.

Moving Forward with the Largest industrial REIT in Thailand
The REIT manager of TREIT are strongly determined to provide TREIT with proper
growth. In 2018, TREIT has planned to further invest in assets of TICON, valued at no less
than 3,500 million baht, and assets from other parties. Moreover, there are also positive
factors resulting from the world’s and Thailand’s general economic situation which has just
recovered quickly. This results in more expansion of the industry sector and higher
demands to rent factories and warehouses in the same direction. Concerning the
administration and management of assets, the management are committed to
handling finances efficiently so that TREIT can offer the highest distribution to

all TREIT’s unitholders consistently and sustainably. ["

As a Chairman of the Board, on behalf of the board, executives and officials

of TICON Management Co., Ltd., the REIT manager of TREIT, | would like

to offer our heartfelt thanks to all TREIT’s unitholders for your continuing
support in 2017 and | hope that in 2018 we will receive your kind support as
always in order that TREIT will grow continuously and “move forward to be a leading
industrial REIT of the region”.

With Best Regards,

N

Mr. Sun Vithespongse
Chairman of the Board
TICON Management Co.,Ltd.
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Growth Since TREIT

FY 2014 —=*_ FY2017
Total Assets +27 45 4 Total Assets
4 507 — » 31,961
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht

Portfolio Value +26,223 Portfolio Value

4’228 Million Baht ’ 30’451

Million Baht Million Baht
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TREIT STRUCTUI‘

Unitholders

Distributions

REIT Manager

T MAN

TICON Management Co.,Ltd.

REIT Management fee

Property Management fee Management
Incentive fee services

Commission fee/1

Cash from
Lending
—>

Lender/
Bondholders « |

Principal/
Interest

T REI

Property Manager

TEEIN

TICON Industrial Connection PCL

THRARK

TICON Logistics Park Co.,Ltd.

Property Management fee
Incentive fee
Commission fee/1

Note: 1 Commission fee = commission fee for acquiring a new lessee/ buying/ Selling/
transferring leasehold/ receiving leasehold

Management

Holdings of Units

Trustee

BBL Asset Management

Trustee Fee Acts on behalf
of unitholders

TICON Freehold and Leasehold
Real Estate Investment Trust

Rental Income Ownership/
Leasehold Right

A4

Properties

TREIT has invested a total
of 490 units of properties

consisting of 298 of factory and
192 units of warehouses

Rental fee Rent Properties

Tenants
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SIGNIFICANT EVENT
OF TREIT

l 2014 - 2017

—— 12 December 2014 — 19 October 2017
- TREIT was established - Trust unitholders in EGM
- Appointed TICON Management Co., Ltd. 1/2017 considered and
to acts as REIT Manager approved support conversion
PFPOs to TREIT

—— 19 December 2014

- Appointed TICON Industrial
connection PCL and TICON Logistics

— 20 December 2017
Park to act as Property manager

- Received transferred assets
and liabilities of PFPOs
to TREIT

— 9 January 2015

- The stock exchange of Thailand
approved the listing Trust’s units
and permitted their trading in the
market (value THB 3,425 mm) - Issued new trust units to

PFPOs unitholders

(value THB 19,881 mm)

— 26 December 2017

—— 17 December 2015

- Trust received payments of 1%t units
capital increment

— 28 December 2017

- Start trading of new Trust
— 25 December 2015 units after conversion

- Stock Exchange of Thailand approved
the listing of the additional Trust’s units
and permitted their trading in the market
(value THB 2,243 mm)
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INFORMATION

OF THE TRUST

1. Substantial Information of the Trust

Name of Trust (Thai) n3ariilonnsainuluedurnsunsweiia:ansnsignodunsunweinaou
Name of Trust (English) TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust
Ticker TREIT

Trust registered and capital Baht 25,423,451,777
from the unitholders

Term of Trust Indefinite Maturity
Type of Trust Units Unredeemable
Type of business Invest in freehold and leasehold of properties which are land

and warehouses, factories and/or offices

2. Background and Obijective of the Trust

TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust (“TREIT”) has been established
pursuant to the Transactions in Capital Market Act B.E. 2550 on 12 December 2014, with
registered capital of Baht 3,425,000,000. In this regard, BBL Asset Management Company
Limited, the Trustee of the Trust has appointed TICON Management Company Limited to
act as the REIT Manager. TICON Logistics Park Company Limited and TICON Industrial
Connection Public Company Limited are hired as the Property Management Managers and
Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited acts as the Trust Registrar.

TREIT has been established for the purpose to raise funds from general investors and to use the
proceeds from such fundraising to acquire, lease and/or sub-lease of immovable properties.
The Trust will take the transfer of the ownership and/or leasehold rights and/or sub-leasehold
rights therein and seek benefits from those properties by way of lease, sub-lease, transferring
and/or disposing of immovable properties the Trust invests in or acquires. The Trust will also
improve, modify, construct and/or develop immovable properties by taking the transfer of
a construction permit and/or applying for other permits and/or executing any transactions
necessary and advisable for immovable properties, with the aim of generating income and
returns for the Trust and its unitholders. This includes investment in other properties and/or
securities and/or seeks interest by any other means as prescribed by securities laws and/or
other relevant law.The Stock Exchange of Thailand approved the listing of the Trust’s units
and permitted their trading from 9 January 2015 onwards.

In the end of fiscal year 2015, the Trust issued additional 224.3 million unit trusts at a price
of Baht 10 per unit, or a total of Baht 2,243 million, to the existing unitholders and the public.
On 17 December 2015, the Trust received payments of these units capital increment and
notified the increase in its paid-up units capital with the Office of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Stock Exchange of Thailand approved the listing of the additional Trust’s
units and permitted their trading since 25 December 2015.

16



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¢ TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust

3. Conversion of Property funds TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH into TREIT
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As TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH cannot proceed with the increase of its registered capital
in order to invest in the additional immoveable properties pursuant to the Notification of the
Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission No. SorNor. 25/2552 Re: Rules, Conditions
and Procedures for Establishment and Management of Property Funds (as amended) which
requires to proceed with application for approval for increase of registered capital in order
to invest in additional immovable properties to the Office of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“the Office of the SEC”) within 31 December 2013. After this date PFPOs cannot
increase capital to invest in new properties therefore to maximize the benefit to PFPOs and
Trust unitholders, conversion is the best solution to all parties. TREIT after conversion is “The
biggest industrial REIT in Thailand”.

In 2017, the tax benefits granted to property funds (value added tax, specific business tax
and stamp duty to be exempted) and to unitholders (income tax to be exempted) and the
discount on the registration fee of right and juristic act for the conversion of property fund to
REIT) will end within 31 December 2017, the Management Companies of TFUND, TLOGIS
and TGROWTH and the REIT Manager of TREIT have been considering together the details
of the Conversion of Property Funds and the process of the said procedures, including the
specification of terms and conditions to be approved and decide to propose this matters to
PFPOs and Trust unitholders to consider and approve.
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Growth of TREIT Investment Properties Since Trust Established

2014 2015 2017
1t Investment (IPO) 2" Investment 3 Investment
(1t Units Capital Incremental) (2™ Units Capital Incremental)

TFUND

T —
W oo T I (o R =T

: TLOGIS

{

.TREITInvestmentproperties I REI I

% Properties acquisition during period X
Conversion

TFUND, TLOGIS,
TGROWTH into TREIT

18t Investment detail 2" Investment detail 3 Investment detail

e 45 units of Factory and Warehouses e 53 units of Factory and Warehouses ® 392 units of Factory and Warehouses

® |Investment Value THB 4,228 M. ¢ |Investment Value THB 3,159 M. e |Investment Value THB 23,241 M.

* Net leasable area 214,523 Square Meters * Net leasable area 155,182 Square Meters * Net leasable area 1,114,955 Square Meters

Investment in properties growth
+THB 26,223 M.
Since TREIT Established

Investment in properties Investment in properties Investment in properties
at fair value at fair value at fair value
THB 4,228 M. THB 7,261 M. THB 30,451 M.

Note: Investment in properties at fair value = investment in properties adjusted with revaluation of properties in each period
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On 18-19 October 2017 PFPOs unitholders approved to convert PFPOs (TFUND, TLOGIS
and TGROWTH) into TREIT and TREIT unitholders approved to the support of the Conversion
of Property Funds into TREIT.

On 20 December 2017, the Trust received the transfers of assets, which were mostly
properties, and obligations of TICON Property Fund, TPARK Logistics Property Fund and TICON
Industrial Growth Leasehold Property Fund (the Funds), as approved by the Extraordinary
General Meeting of Unitholders of the Trust No. 1/2017 held on 19 October 2017. The Trust
issued trust units to the Funds in a total amount of 2,035,587,048 trust units and paid Baht
3,739,966,268 of cash in exchange for the assets and obligations of the Funds. The swap
ratios of investment units to trust units are as follows:

1) At the rate of 1 investment unit of TICON Property Fund to 0.9874 trust unit of the
Trust with Baht 1.6977 of cash per unit, whereby the total amount of 1,135,057,711
trust units with Baht 1,951,577,352 of cash were exchanged for the assets and
obligations of TICON Property Fund.

2) At the rate of 1 investment unit of TPARK Logistics Property Fund to 1.0129 trust
units of the Trust with Baht 1.7415 of cash per unit, whereby the total amount of
419,177,837 trust units with Baht 720,701,158 of cash were exchanged for the assets
and obligations of TPARK Logistics Property Fund.

3) Attherate of 1investment unit of TICON Industrial Growth Leasehold Property Fund
to 0.8673 trust unit of the Trust with Baht 1.4911 of cash per unit, whereby the total
amount of 481,351,500 trust units with Baht 827,560,500 of cash were exchanged
for the assets and obligations and cash of Baht 240,127,258 for the repayment of
the existing loan of TICON Industrial Growth Leasehold Property Fund.

After the issue of new trust units, the registered capital of the Trust is Baht 25,066,972,762,
divided into 2,602,387,048 trust units at a par value of Baht 9.6323 each (the registered
capital as of December 31, 2018 has included the increase in fair value of investments in
properties amounting to Baht 356,479,015), and the newly issued trust units have been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Thailand with the trade beginning on 28 December 2017 onwards.
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TRUSTEE

1. General Information
Name BBL Asset Management Company Limited
Address 175 Sathorn City Tower, 7™, 21t and 26" Floor, South Sathorn Road,
Tungmahamek Sub-district, Sathorn District, Bangkok 10120
Telephone  02-674-6488
Fax 02-679-6882
Website www.bblam.co.th

2. Duties and Responsibilities of the Trustee
The Trustee shall perform its duties with integrity and professional cautiousness by using
its knowledge, ability and expertise to treat the trust unitholders fairly. Trustee shall manage
and carry out the administration properly and efficiently under the adequate risk management
and with professional standards for the best benefit of the unitholders. All investment
activities carried out are to be in line with the Trust Deed and complied with related laws
and obligations as prescribed below.

(1) Ensure that the Trust Deed contains material information required by related laws.
Any changes inthe Trust Deed shall be done in accordance with the criteria and procedures
defined in the Trust Deed and related laws. In case there are any changes that are not
complied, Trustee shall take actions by using its authority specified in the Trust Deed
and in the Trust for Transactions in Capital Market Act, B.E. 2550 to protect the rights
and interests of the unitholders. Additionally, if in the future there are any amendments in
the regulation relating to trust units offering or management of the Trust listed under the
Securities and Exchange Act, B.E. 2535 and the Trust for Transactions in Capital Market
Act, B.E. 2550 and the Trust Deed is not complied with such amendments, Trustee shall
process the amendment of the Trust Deed by following the procedures defined in the
Trust Deed or the SEC order under section 21 of the Trust for Transactions in Capital
Market Act, B.E. 2550.

(2) Monitor, oversee and review the activities of the REIT manager which relate to management
of TREIT, including the investment in the assets of TREIT and other duties stated in the
Trust Deed, other related contracts and related laws as follows:

(a) Ensure that the management of TREIT carried out by the REIT Manager has been
approved by SEC at all time.

(b) Oversee and take necessary actions to ensure that the REIT Manager is qualified and
perform its duties according to the rules stipulated in the Trust Deed and related laws,
as well as to revoke the existing REIT Manager and appoint the new one.

(c) Oversee that the investment of the Trust by the REIT Manager complied with the
Trust Deed and related laws.

(d) Oversee and verify that the REIT Manager has a list of the assets, a system to keep
track of benefits arising from the assets, and sufficient measures to protect the
assets.

20
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Oversee the REIT Manager to prepare and disclose the Trust information accurately and
completely in accordance with the Trust Deed and related laws, including the preparation
and submission of financial statements and reports on the financial status and results of
operations of the Trust to the Securities and Exchange Commission as follows:

(a) Quarterly audited financial statement.

(b) Financial statement for the accounting period which the auditor already examined
and commented.

(c) Reports on operating result of the Trust.

(d) Report on other disclosures information relating to the Trust.

All reports shall be prepared according to the rules, conditions and procedures stated
in the Notification of the Capital Market Commission and in line with the accounting
standards prescribed by the law on accountancy by taking into account the standards
approved by the Board of Supervision of Auditing Practices under the Auditor Act, B.E.
2505. In addition, the REIT Manager shall report and explain the reasons to the Office
of the Securities and Exchange Commission, without delay, if there are any events
prescribed in Section 57 of the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535. The REIT
Manager shall disclose the required information to the Stock Exchange of Thailand and
submit an annual report of TREIT to unitholders together with the invitation to the Annual
General Meeting.

Supervise the REIT Manager to provide sufficient information for investors to make
decision. Such information must be clearly communicated without any distortions and
misleading. The REIT Manager needs to take precautions to ensure that proper guidance
is given to the investors or the proper decisions are made for the investors.

Ensure that the process of capital increase and capital reduction which is carried out by
the REIT Manager is in line with the rules stipulated in the Trust Deed and related laws.

Oversee the operations of the REIT Manager in acquiring and disposal of assets of the
TREIT to comply with the rules stipulated in the Trust Deed and related laws.

Ensure that the REIT Manager maintains the core assets to be in good conditions, ready
for renting out to earn income. This includes the provision of adequate insurance for the
duration of TREIT investment, covering real estate insurance and liability insurance to
third parties that may have been damaged by the real estate or the operation of the real
estate.

Oversee the REIT Manager’s business activities relating to borrowing for TREIT, entering
into any obligations of the Trust assets, entering into any agreements and conducting
any other activities for TREIT under the conditions stated in the Trust Deed and related
laws.
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(9) Ensurethe REIT Manager takes action regarding the valuation of the invested core assets
as stipulated in the Trust Deed and related laws.

(10) Oversee the REIT Manager to properly handle the transactions between the Trust and
the REIT Manager or connected person of the REIT manager as stipulated in the Trust
Deed and related laws.

(11) Ensure the REIT Manager pays proper distribution to the unitholders with restriction to
the right to receive benefits of unitholders who held units trust exceeding the allowed
percentage or not in comply with the Trust Deed and related laws’ stipulations. The REIT
manager is required to conform with the rules stated in Trust Deed and related laws.

(12) Ensure the REIT Manager arrange the Unitholders meeting, proceed to get resolutions
from the meeting, and ensure that unitholders are given proper right to vote and reinforce
the restriction for unitholders without the right in order to comply with the Trust Deed and
related laws.

(13) In case that the REIT Manager assigns other person to manage the invested assets,
the Trustee shall ensure that the selection is done with cautiousness. The REIT Manager
shall specify the roles and responsibilities of the property manager and the adequate
measures to monitor and oversee the performance of the Property Manager.

(14) Require the REIT Manager to prepare and submit report of disbursement of petty cash
from TREIT's bank account within proper timeframe for the Trustee to review regularly.

(15) Require and monitor the REIT Manager to oversee that the administrative expenses
charged to TREIT are necessary, reasonable and associated directly with the Trust
management.

(16) Comment on the actions or transactions the REIT Manager carried out for TREIT in order
to disclose the information to the unitholders or upon SEC'’s request.

(17) Attend every unitholders’ meeting to answer questions and make comments about the
matter that unitholders are required to vote for resolution in regards of its compliance
with the Trust Deed and related. The Trustee is required to make a clear remark and
advise the unitholders that TREIT cannot take any action that is not complied with the
Trust Deed or related laws.

(18) Prepare report to the SEC within 5 business days after being notified or aware of
the REIT Manager’s action or refrain from action that caused damages to TREIT or when
the REIT Manager not performing its duties as stipulated in the Trust Deed or related laws.
The Trustee shall also take actions to resolve, prevent or recover such damages as
deem appropriate.
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(19) Force liquidation or oversee a forced liquidation to comply with the agreement between
the Trust and other parties.

(20) Separate storage of Trustee belongings from the assets of the Trust.

(21) Act as the REIT Manager and may assign other persons to manage the Trust within the
scope of the rules and conditions stated in the Trust Deed, when necessary, i.e in the
absence of REIT Manager or when the REIT Manager cannot perform its duties in order
to prevent, inhibit or limit the damages which might affect the benefits of TREIT and of
the unitholders. Additionally, with the authority stated in the Trust Deed and TREIT Act,
the Trustee shall arrange to appoint new REIT manager as it deems appropriate.

(22) In case that the Trustee holds the units trust, which it serves as a trustee. When it is
required to exercise its right to vote or make any transaction as a unitholder, the Trustee
shall consider and protect the benefit of the unitholders as a whole.

(23) Arrange for the preparation of the unitholder register book which may be assigned to
the SET or other registrars, as allowed by the Securities and Capital Market Act. The
unitholder register book shall contain the following details:

(a) General information, including name of the REIT Manager and the Trustee, number
of units trust, par value, paid-up capital, date of units trust issuance and restriction
of unit transfer (if any).

(b) Details of each unitholder, including name, nationality, address of the unitholder,
number of unit trust (if any), number of units trust to be hold, date of registration to be
or cease to be unitholders, date of cancelling and re-issuing of unit trust certificate
(if any), and sequence number of request to add or change records in the book

(if any).

In case that the number of units held by some unitholder is not comply with the percentage
specified in the Natification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board governing the issuance
and offering of units trust, such unitholder will be refrained from registration in the book.
In case of assigning external party as the Registrar, the Trustee shall ensure that such
assign party complies with the rules and guidelines for preparing certificate of unitholding
and the Trust Deed, except the preparation of evidence required by the system of
The Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. (TSD).

(24) Process the payment of cash or assets and grant the right or any right restriction to the

unitholders, whose name appeared on the register book in compliance with the conditions
of TREIT obligations or related law.
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(25) Prepare unitholding certificate for the unitholders which including the information that
is necessary and sufficient for the unitholders to use as their evidence and reference to
the Trustee, the REIT Manager and others. The certificate must also include the information
of related parties of TREIT, such as the Trustee, the REIT Manager, the Registrar, so that
the unitholders can contact those parties. The certificate must also state clearly that the
unitholders cannot return or redeem the units trust. Any other restrictions of unitholder’s
right must be clearly specified as well.

(26) Inthe event of the existing REIT Manager must be out of duties in accordance with provisions
in the Trust Deed and related law, the Trustee shall arrange to get unitholders’
resolution to appoint new REIT Manager within 60 days after the incident and shall
appoint the new REIT Manager within 30 days after the resolution date. In case that no
resolution is obtained after the request, the Trustee shall appoint new REIT manager by
considering the benefit of unitholders as a whole.

. Trustee Fee

Trustee fee which designated in Trust deed (Amendment trust Deed No.2) have detail as follow;

(1) For a portion of total asset value not more than Baht 15,000 Million: At the rate of 0.060
percent (zero point zero six) per annum of total asset value for such portion.

(2) For a portion of total asset value that exceeds Baht 15,000 Million up to Baht 30,000 Million:
At the rate of 0.045 percent (zero point zero four five) per annum of total asset value for
such portion.

(3) For a portion of total asset value that exceeds Baht 30,000 million: At the rate of 0.030
percent (zero point zero three) per annum of total asset value for such portion.

The Trustee calculate their fee and charge to the TREIT on monthly basis by using total asset
value on the last day of each month. The rate specified in clause 1 shall not include legal
advisor fee or other advisors appointed by the Trustee.

In addition, the Trustee has charged TREIT for expenses incurred during performing its duties,
such as the cost of the transfer or receive of assets, expenses incurred when performing
inspection of purchase, lease, sell or transfer the assets, as well as the assets inspection on
behalf of TREIT. Expenses which can be disbursed from TREIT include the expense of travel,
accommodation, fees as well as additional costs such as the cost of copying the documents.
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PROPERTY MANAGER

For the main assets that TREIT invested in, the REIT manager has appointed TICON Logistics
Park Company Limited (“TPARK”) to be the Property Manager for Warehouse and TICON
Industrial Connection Public Company Limited (“TICON”) for Factory. Details of each Property
Manager are as follows:

1. TPARK
Name TICON Logistics Park Company Limited (“TPARK”)
Address Suite 1308, 13/1" Floor, Sathorn City Tower,
175 South Sathorn Road, Thungmahamek, Sathorn, Bangkok, 10120
Telephone  02-679-6565
Fax 02-287-3153
Homepage www.ticon.co.th

TICON Logistics Park Co.,Ltd. (“TPARK”")
TPARK is a subsidiary of TICON. As at December 31, 2017, TICON held 100% share of paid-up
registered capital of TPARK.

TPARK was established on August 2, 2005 with a registered capital and paid up, as at
December 31,2017, of Baht 11,500 million. The company’s objectives are to develop a ready-built
warehouse with international quality for rent or sell. Currently, TPARK have warehouse in 33
strategic location. TPARK is also property manager for TREIT.

2. TICON
Name TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited (“TICON”)
Address Suite 1308, 13/1"" Floor, Sathorn City Tower,
175 South Sathorn Road, Thungmahamek, Sathorn, Bangkok, 10120
Telephone  02-679-6565
Fax 02-287-3153
Homepage www.ticon.co.th

TICON Industrial Connection PCL (“TICON”)

TICON was established in 1990 with the objective to operate business of building factory
for rent. TICON was listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand in 2002 with registered capital
as at December 31, 2017, of Baht 2,751 million (with paid-up capital of Baht 1,834 million).

As at January 16, 2017, TICON had offering newly issued ordinary share and increased paid-up

capital to Baht 1,834 million. Up to now, TICON has Frasers Property Holdings (Thailand)
Company Limited as its major shareholder, holding 40% of paid-up capital.
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Up to now, TICON has developed over 500 single storey factory buildings located in 18
industrial estates, industrial parks and industrial zones in Thailand.The construction of the
above mentioned factory buildings was carried out by TICON’s construction team which
consisted of architects, engineers and project managers. The advantage of having its own
construction team is more cost effective, quality control of building standards and more
flexibility in construction management. TICON can accelerate construction time to complete
the building as per customer’s request and can serve customer’s requirements to adjust or build
the extension. Apart from managing its own properties effectively with stable growth, TICON
also provides services to assist tenants in the process of applying for licenses and supply
of utilities according to customer request. Other services include applying work permits for
foreigners and general assistance which might be requested from customers i.e. introducing
buyers of their products or suppliers of raw materials. These services and supports add value
to the products and services of TICON, which results in the company’s ability to maintain
high occupancy rate. TICON is also the property manager of the Trust assets like TPARK.
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REIT MANAGER

1. General Information

Name TICON Management Company Limited

Address Suite 1308, 13/1" Floor, Sathorn City Tower,
175 South Sathorn Road, Thungmahamek, Sathorn,
Bangkok, 10120

Telephone 0-2679-6565

Fax 0-2287-3153

Website www.treit.co.th
E-mail ir.treit@tmanrm.com
Business Hours 8.30 hrs. to 17.30 hrs.
Type of Business REIT Manager
Registered Capital Baht 10,000,000
Paid-up capital Baht 10,000,000
Issued and paid-up shares 1,000,000 shares

Par value Baht 10.00 per share

2. Nature of Business
TICON Management Company Limited engages in the business of acting as a REIT Manager.
At present, it acts as REIT Manager of TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment
Trust (“TREIT”).

3. List of Shareholders
As of December 31, 2017

N

TICON Industrial
Connection PCL
700,000 Shares

Total
1,000,000

hares
100%

\ 300,000 Shares
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4. Management Structure, Board of Directors and Management
The management structure of the REIT Manager consists of the Board of Directors and
the executives as shown below :

m
ciini

Board of Directors

| =

1

Internal Audit

-
Managing Director m

=

Assistant Managing
Director

=) - ®
1Y dih & A ]

Head of Head of Head of Head of Head of
Strategic Finance, Accounting Invest Property Legal and Business
Investment and Compliance Development

Investor Relationship



Mr. Sun
Vithespongse
Chairman of the Board and
Independent Director

Education

Bachelor of Economics, University
of Tasmania, Australia (Colombo Plan
Scholarship)

Current Position

Chairman of the Board and Independent
Director

* TICON Management Co., Ltd.
Independent Director, Member of the Audit

Committee, Member of the Corporate
Governance Committee

® LH Financial Group PCL.

Working Experience

Independent Director Chairman of the Audit
Committee

* BIG C Supercenter PCL.

Independent Director, Member of the Audit

Committee, Member of the Corporate
Governance Committee

¢ Land and Houses Bank PCL.

Director and Member of Audit Committee
¢ Financial Institution Development Fund
e Gulf Electric PCL.

Director

* Mass Transit Authority of Thailand

® Expressway & Rapid Transit Authority
of Thailand

e Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand
® Suvannabhumi Airport Hotel Co., Ltd.

¢ ASEAN Potash Mining Co., Ltd.

Secretary to the Minister of Finance,

Senior Advisor in Finance, Advisor in Finance
e Ministry of Finance

Commissioner

e Energy Regulatory Commission

Executive Director

* World Bank, Washington D.C.
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Mr. Sopon
Punyaratabandhu
Director

Education

Master of Commerce and Accountancy,
Thammasat University

Current Position
Managing Director
¢ Vnet Capital Co., Ltd.

Independent Director and Audit Committee
e Asia Plus Group Holdings PCL.

e Asia Plus Securities Co., Ltd.

e Asset Plus Fund Management Co., Ltd.

Independent Director
¢ TICON Management Co., Ltd.

Director

e Thai Incubator Dot Com Co., Ltd.

e Vintcom Technology PCL

e NTN Solution Limited

¢ Thai Automotive VCF Co., Ltd.

e Copperwired Co., Ltd.

e VHealth threesixty Co., Ltd

e Koan Co., Ltd.

¢ Blue Fish Solution Co., Ltd.

* BCBG Co,, Ltd.

e \/intcom Technology (Myamar) Co., Ltd.
e vServePlus Co., Ltd.

¢ VNET CAPITAL (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD
e Foresight Holding Co., Ltd.

Working Experience

Director

e Netband Consulting Co., Ltd.

® Morison CKS Co., Ltd.

e City Network Co., Ltd.

e Copperwired-E Co., Ltd.

e Copperwired-S Co., Ltd.

e Copperwired-N Co., Ltd.

e Sanko Diecasting (Thailand) PCL.
e |-Vision Solutions Co., Ltd.

-.._;-:.3_ e

Mr. Virapan Pulges
Director

Education

* Master of Engineering,
University of Colorado, USA

e Bachelor of Electrical Engineering and
Computer Science, University of
Colorado, USA

Current Position
Chief Executive Officer
® TICON Industrial Connection PCL.

Director

* TICON Management Co., Ltd.
* TICON International Pte. Ltd.
® TICON (HK) Limited

e Shanghai TICON Investment
Management Co., Ltd.

® TICON Logistics Park Co., Ltd.

® Eco Industrial Services Co., Ltd.

e SVI Public Co., Ltd.

® Singapore-Thai Chamber of Commerce

Working Experience
* Managing Director H&Q Co., Ltd.

¢ Director and Managing Director,
TICON Industrial Connection PCL.

e Member of the Audit Committee, Director,
Member of the Nomination Committee,
Fabrinet Co., Ltd.

e Treasurer and Director, Thai Venture
Capital Association




Mr. Michio Maeda

Director

Education

Bachelor of Engineering,
Kyoto University, Japan

Current Position

General Manager of Financial &
New Business Department

e Mitsui & Co., Ltd.

Director

e TICON Management Co., Ltd.

e Insurance Company of Trinet Asia Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

* Mekong Capital Holding (Vietnam)

e Challenger Emerging Market Infrastucture
Fund Pte Ltd (Singapore)

¢ Challenger MBK Fund Management Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)

¢ Global Consumer Product Private Limited
(India)

Working Experience
* Mitsui & Co., Ltd.

Mr. Sopon Racharaksa
Director

Education

* M.A., Public Administration,
National Graduate Institute for
Policy Studies, Japan

* M.A., Economics Michigan State University,
USA
* B.A., Economics Thammasat University

Current Position

President
e TICON Industrial Connection PCL.

Director

* TICON Management Co., Ltd.

® TICON Logistics Park Co., Ltd.
e Eco Industrial Services Co., Ltd.
e TPARK BFTZ Co., Ltd.

® Shanghai TICON Investment Management
Co., Ltd.

© TICON International Pte. Ltd.

Working Experience

Executive Vice President
e TCC Hotel Group Co., Ltd.
® TCC Land Co., Ltd.

Vice President
e TCC Holding Co., Ltd.

Managing Director
e TCC Land Development Co., Ltd.

Advisor to the Board of Directors
® Industrial Estate Authority of Thailand (IEAT)

Senior Investment Officer

e Overseas Investment Promotion,
Policy Planning, Office of the Board of
Investment (BOI)

&,
vV,

Mr. Peerapat Srisukont
Managing Director

Education

¢ MBA, Mahidol University
International College

* Master of Science in civil Engineering Texas
A&M University, Kingsville, USA

e Bachelor of Engineering,
Chulalongkorn University
Current Position

Managing Director
e TICON Management Co., Ltd.

Working Experience

Deputy General Manger
e TICON Industrial Connection PCL.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Peerapat Srisukont
* Managing Director

e (Acting) Head of
Invest Property

¢ (Acting) Head of Legal
and Compliance

Mr. Bhumpharn
Arunthammakul

Head of Strategic Finance,
Investment and Investor
Relationship

Education

e MBA , Mahidol University
International College

® Master of Science in civil
Engineering Texas A&M
University, Kingsville, USA

® Bachelor of Engineering,
Chulalongkorn University

Working Experience
Deputy General Manger

e TICON Industrial Connection
PCL.

Education

* MBA (Finance), Sasin Graduate
Institute of Business
Administration of
Chulalongkorn University

¢ Bachelor of Accounting,
Thammasat University

Working Experience
Capital Market Associate

e Siam Commercial Bank PCL.
Senior Auditor

¢ Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Jaiyos Audit.

Mr. Chansak
Thamsombatdee

Head of Business Development

Education

¢ Master of Accounting,
Dhurakij Pundit University

e MBA, Dhurakij Pundit University

¢ Bachelor of Accounting,
Rajamangala University of
Technology Suvarnabhumi

Working Experience
Accounting Manager

e SF Corporation PCL.
Assistant Finance and
Accounting Manager

¢ Thai Orix Leasing Co.,Ltd.

Education

* Master of Economics
(International Program),
Chulalongkorn University

e Bachelor of Business
Administration (International
Program), Chulalongkorn
University

Working Experience
Logistics Manager

e Mitsui & Co. (Thailand) Ltd.
Deputy Manager

Risk Management Department
e Mitsui & Co. (Thailand) Ltd.
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5. Responsibilities of Board of Director

5.1

5.2

Authorized Directors who may act on behalf of the Company as the REIT Manager
Authorized directors who may act on behalf of the Company as REIT Manager are two
directors of the directors listed in No. 3 to No. 6 who must jointly affix signatures and
the Company seal.

Board of Directors’ Duty and Responsibility
The Board of Directors’ duty and responsibility consists of two parts: duty towards the
Company and duty towards the Trust as described below:

Duty and responsibility of the Board of Directors towards the Company

(1) Perform his duty in accordance with the law, the Company’s objectives and
regulations and the resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting with honesty, integrity,
caution, and protect the interest and be responsible for the shareholders.

(2) Establish a policy and a guideline on the Company’s operation and supervise to
ensure that the management comply with the policy and the regulations efficiently
and effectively under the good governance principle.

(8) Reportthe Company’s operation result to shareholders in a shareholders’ meeting.

(4) Organize efficient and reliable financial reporting, internal control, and internal
audit.

(5) Control and supervise the management to ensure fair and equal treatment to all
stakeholders.

(6) Exercise discretion independently when considering strategy, management of the
business, director appointment, setting performance standard, as well as opposing
to actions taken by other directors or the management in case of conflict that affects
equality of all shareholders.

(7) Consider and approve connected transactions in accordance with the relevant
criteria and rules where a director who has interest in such matter shall have no
rights to vote.

(8) An independent director shall consider and give opinion on reasonableness of
connected transactions or transactions that may create conflict with the interests of
TREIT to ensure the transaction proceeds in accordance with the relevant criteria
including material acquisition and disposal of assets.

(9) Aninternal auditor shall be appointed by an independent director.

(10) Consider meeting agenda if any particular matters that should be considered by
the board of directors are not included in the agenda of the board of directors’
meeting.

(11) Prepare areport in the form of “Disclosure of Director / Management’s Interest” to
the Company according to the Company’s criteria.
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(12)

(13)

Consider and appoint a director to replace a resigned director, select and propose
additional directors to the Company’s shareholders.

If necessary, the board of directors may obtain advice or professional opinion
from an external consultant regarding the Company’s business at the Company’s
expenses.

Consider and approve matters related to major operation of the Company such
as paying benefits to shareholders, organizing a shareholders’ meeting, selection
and proposing compensation for an accounting auditor; Conduct an induction
so that the board of directors or an assigned person can give information on the
Company’s business to a new director.

Duty and Responsibility towards TREIT

(1)

(2)

—~ =~
~N O O
—_ = =

(8)

Establish significant policies for TREIT such as investment policy, property lease
policy, property manager selection policy.

Consider and approve acquisition or disposal of core assets according to the
criteria specified in the Company’s policy.
Consider and approve sourcing of fund for TREIT including source of fund, fund

amount, requirement, and related conditions.

Ensure that the management report performance of TREIT and important issues to
the board of directors every quarter or when appropriate,

Consider and approve payment of benefits to unitholders.
Consider and approve meeting of unitholders.

Consider and approve connected transactions entered into between TREIT and
the REIT Manager and between TREIT and connected persons in accordance with
the relevant criteria and rules where a director who has interest in such matter shall
have no rights to vote.

An independent director, consider and give opinion on reasonableness of connected
transaction or transaction that may create conflict with the interests of TREIT to
ensure the transaction proceeds in accordance with the relevant criteria including
material acquisition and disposal of assets.

An internal auditor shall be appointed by an independent director.
Consider and approve a guideline on risk management for potential risks to TREIT.

Ensure that TREIT has an internal control that meets the criteria specified in TREIT’s
internal control procedure.

Appoint a complaint and dispute subcommittee as deemed appropriate to solve
TREIT-related complaints and disputes raised by a third party which is proposed
by Compliance and Investment Relations Department.

Select and propose for appointment, propose compensation of an accounting
auditor and organize a meeting with an accounting auditor as deemed appropriate.



(14)
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In case a director receives internal information that are material to a change in
securities price of TREIT, he/she must suspend acquisition or disposal of units
for an appropriate period of time before the information is disclosed to public and
such material information must not be disclosed to a third party otherwise he/she
will be subject to punishment as prescribed by law.

6. Independent Directors
In relation to recruitment of an independent director for the Company as the REIT Manager,
he/she must possess minimum qualification as follows:

(1)

(%)

Anindependent director may not hold more than 1% of total shares with voting rights
of the Company, its subsidiaries, affiliated companies, or a person who may have
a conflict of interest (including connected persons as prescribed in the Securities
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535).

An independent director must not be involved in management or be a worker,
employee, advisor who received fixed salary from the Company or its affiliated
companies or a person who may have a conflict of interest where such interest
must not exist for minimum of two years (preceding appointment).

An independent director must have no direct or indirect business relationship
or interest in the management and the finance of the Company, its affiliated
companies or a person who may have a conflict of interest in a manner that may
affect independency.

An independent director must not be a close relative to a director or a major
shareholder of the Company, its subsidiaries or a person who may have a conflict
of interest and is not appointed an agent to protect the interest of directors or major
shareholders.

An independent director must exercise discretion independently as necessary
in the interest of the Company and must be prepared to make objection to actions
taken by other directors or management.

An independent director is able to attend meetings of the board of directors
to make a decision on important activities of the Company.

An independent director must possess appropriate knowledge and experience
or be a person with high level of competency and be accepted.

An independent director must not be a person whose name is listed in the list
deemed by The Stock Exchange of Thailand to be unfit to be in the management
according to the regulations of The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Anindependent director must have never been convicted of an offence against the
securities law, the business law, the financial institution law, the non-life insurance
law, the suppression and anti-money laundering law or other laws related to finance
regardless of whether it is Thai law or foreign laws by the authority regarding
offence on unfair acquisition and disposal of securities or bad-faith or fraudulent
management.

An independent director has no other characteristic that may prevent him/her from
giving independent opinion on the Company’s operation performance.
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The Company has set out scope of duty and responsibility of an independent director as follows:

(1) Consider, follow up, and give necessary advice to the Company regarding
preparation of and disclosure of financial information of the Company and TREIT
to ensure accuracy, completeness, sufficiency and timely submission.

(2) Consider, following and giving necessary advice regarding suitable internal control
and work procedure to the Company as REIT Manager.

(8) Consider and give opinion on connected transaction or other transactions that may
have conflict of interest with TREIT to ensure compliance with the law and related
requirement and that the transactions are justifiable and in the best interest of
TREIT.

(4) Take any other actions assigned by the board of directors in the best interest of
TREIT.

According to the above scope of duty, relevant departments must report the following matters
to an independent director for consideration and acknowledgement and necessary advice:

(1) Connected transactions or transactions that may create conflict with the interests
of TREIT.

(2) Weakness in internal control procedure and work procedure that the Company as
the REIT Manager needs to improve and improvement progress.

The Board of Directors and independent directors have an important role in follow up and
giving necessary advice to the Company in its capacity as REIT Manager in accordance with
the regulations and related agreements.

. Duty and responsibility of the Company as the REIT Manager

The Company as the REIT Manager has duty and responsibility to control and manage TREIT
and TREIT’s investment in assets as well as control performance of the Property Managers.
The REIT Manager must take any actions as assigned by the Trustee and as specified in the
Trust Deed in the interest of unitholders including, but not limited to, the following:

7.1 General Duty of the REIT Manager

(1) Perform his/her duty with diligence and care, integrity in the best interest of
unitholders and in accordance with the Trust Deed and related laws and obligations
specified in the disclosure to investors (if any).

(2) Manage the TREIT's assets in accordance with the disclosure of offering of units,
TREIT’s operation plan, the resolution of the meetings of unitholders, the rules,
regulations and related laws, and the notification of Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

(8) Organize meetings of unitholders as specified in the Trust Deed.
(4) Take actions to increase capital of TREIT as specified in the Trust Deed.

(5) Take actions to decrease capital of TREIT as specified in the Trust Deed.
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7.2 Duty of the REIT Manager in preparation of reports and disclosure

7.3

(1)

(2)

Prepare and disclose information of TREIT and information as prescribed in Section
56 and Section 57 of Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 and other information
as specified in the Trust Deed.

Upon request of the Securities and Exchange Commission, make clarification,
submit documents or evidence related to compliance or non-compliance to the
Securities and Exchange Commission including, but not limited to, the following to
the Securities and Exchange Commission, The Stock Exchange of Thailand, and
unit holders;

(a) Information regarding conflict with the interest of TREIT and measures to
resolve such conflict to be disclosed to investors clearly during an initial
public offering and whenever a conflict of interest arises (if any).

(b) Information regarding transactions entered into between TREIT and
connected persons and information regarding transactions entered into
between TREIT and the REIT Manager or connected person and the REIT
Manager, information regarding acquisition or disposal of core assets and
equipment of TREIT, information regarding borrowing transactions and
encumbrance made by the trust.

(c) Information regarding interest or benefits received from a company / person
who is a vendor of TREIT (if any).

Ensure that unitholders receive complete and correct information and sufficient
for voting to approve matters within a period specified in the Trust Deed and the
regulations of The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Prepare and send information, report and/or documents to the trustee within the
specified period such as full report of property evaluation, monthly report present-
ing revenue and expenses, right of claim, due debts, market environment report,
information regarding the TREIT’s investment in properties, information regarding
acquisition or disposal of core assets.

Duty of the REIT Manager regarding Investment or Disposal of TREIT’s assets

(1)

Organize and/or make appropriate investment in core assets and other assets
according to the investment plan and manage risks related to TREIT and TREIT’s
assets and the criteria specified in the Trust Deed.

Take necessary actions to ensure that disposal of assets or connected transactions
related to the property for TREIT is valid and effective.

Make analysis of the probability and review and conduct a due diligence of assets
as well as assess risks that may be caused by investments in such assets and
provide risk management procedure.

Valuate core assets in accordance with the criteria specified in the Trust Deed.

Maintain core assets in good conditions ready for generating income including
repair, improvement, restoration, and maintenance of assets.
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7.4

7.5

Take out sufficient insurance that covers the period of TREIT’s investment in core
assets including non-life insurance that may occur to the assets, public liability
insurance for damage that may be caused by the assets or the operation in the
assets,

Assist the Trustee on disposal of TREIT’s core assets and find buyers for the core
assets.

Give assistance to enable the Trustee to dispose or acquire or enter into transactions
with a third party in case of disposal, acquisition or any transaction that generates
income from the TREIT’s assets.

Prepare an investment plan and a risk management plan related to TREIT and
TREIT's assets, a borrowing plan and an annual financial management plan of
TREIT.

Duty of the REIT Manager Regarding TREIT’s Benefits

(1)

(2)

—~ o~
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Facilitate the trustee or a person assigned by the trustee and a third party during
survey of core assets.

Consider and inspect conditions of core assets before handing over to retail tenants
or the Trustee when entering into or renewing a new lease agreement or a new
service agreement or when a lease agreement or a service agreement expires (as
the case may be).

Take necessary and appropriate actions in case a disaster occurs to TREIT's assets;
Manage budget and cash flow of TREIT.

Prepare financial statements of TREIT in accordance with the accounting standard
as prescribed by the accounting law.

Withdraw assets of TREIT from a petty cash account only or for other purposes as
agreed with the Trustee within the limit approved by the trustee.

Pay benefits to unitholders in accordance with the criteria and conditions specified
in the Trust Deed.

Exercise the right of claims, take actions in defense, or exercise other legal rights
on behalf of the Trustee regarding management of the trust as authorized by the
Trustee from time to time;retain documents related to the operation of TREIT.

Give advice to the Trustee regarding property market conditions or trend and
potential impact on TREIT.

Duty of the REIT Manager regarding Transaction with Potential Conflict of Interest

In case of a transaction with potential conflict of interest, the REIT Manager must consider
justification and necessity of the transaction and obtain approval from the Trustee and
request that the Trustee establish conditions on such transaction. If the Trustee does
not approve the transaction or the transaction is not justifiable and necessary, the REIT
Manager may not proceed with the transaction.
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7.6 Duty of the REIT Manager Associated with Borrowing
In case of TREIT’s borrowing, the REIT Manager has the following duties;

7.7

(1)

(3)

Disclose outstanding amount of the borrowing and reserves for debt repayment
under the loan agreement or the borrowing commitment for each year until the debt
payment completes (if any) in the memorandum of information, the prospectus and
the Annual Report of TREIT.

Determine the appropriate reserve amount as mentioned in item (1), by taking
into account the outstanding amount of loan or the borrowing commitment and
the repayment period, impact on distribution payments to unitholders, and excess
cash in case of the unrealized loss from the valuation or reappraisal of TREIT's
properties.

Allow TREIT to postpone the reserve for any period of liquidity inadequacy and
include it in the reserve for the next accounting period.

Other Duty of the REIT Manager

If an advisor is appointed to give advice or suggestion on TREIT’s investment in properties
and management of TREIT’s assets, the advisor must have no direct or indirect interest
in the matter under consideration. If the fact has changed and the advisor has interest
in the matter under consideration, the REIT Manager must prevent the advisor who has
direct or indirect interest from considering the matter and take actions as specified in
REIT Manager Appointment Agreement.
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8. REIT Management by The REIT manager

Strategic Finance & Investment & IR

¢ Project Financial Feasibility analysis

e Capital management; debt and equity management,
distribution management, capital budgeting and raising funds
® Relationship Management with investors and lenders

Business Development

e Strategic Assets Acquisition Strategy

® Market and Industry Analysis

¢ Dealing and Negotiation with Asset owners

e Co-ordination with other department in TMAN

* Asset management planning for each
asset in the portfolio, including target
performance for achievement

* Review Assets Performance

¢ Negotiation with tenant for

lease renewals and rental rate

® Repair and maintenance asset under TREIT

ion

Accounting e The Best
® Prepare Audited Financial Statement
for Quarterly and Year end i
® Prepare Financial Report to management
* Management of accounting for all purpose including
management accounts, taxation, analysis of REIT
performance and cash management
¢ Daily operation for accounting record

Legal and Compliance

® Review legal documents and due

diligence document with asset owners

¢ Regulatory Control

® Risk Monitoring and Mitigation to make sure that TMAN

can manage risk appetite of trust and formulate risk mitigation plan
e |Internal control to make sure that all function comply

with internal process which stated in internal control manual

Internal Audit

Audit compliance of all departments
with policies and procedure
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The Company was established with objective to engage in business of acting as the REIT
Manager. The Company’s core business is divided into six departments for the Company’s
duty as the REIT Manager to comply with the conditions specified in the Trust Deed, REIT
Manager Appointment Agreement, the resolution of unitholders and related laws, regulations
and/or rules. Duty and responsibility of the departments is summarized below.

1.  Strategic Finance, Investment and Investor Relationship

Strategic Finance, Investment and Investor Relationship Department’s main duty includes
financial feasibility analysis and forecast return on investment, managing budget and
cash flow of TREIT, making investment in other quality assets, finding suitable source
of fund for TREIT to make investment in such assets, find suitable source of fund from
the money market and the capital market based on an appropriate investment structure,
valuate assets at the specified time, consider payment of benefits for proposal to
the board of directors for approval. and providing information to unitholders for REIT’s
performance and industry outlook for decision making to invest in TREIT.

Strategic Finance, Investment and Investor Relationship Department is also responsible
for calculating net asset value of TREIT and disclosure to investors. In addition, Investor
Relations tasks include providing TREIT’s information to the investors and analysts.

2. Business Development Department
Business Development Department’s main duty is to ensure that TREIT makes investment
in quality core assets to ensure that TREIT continues to grow, and generates best return
to unitholders.

Business Development Department is also responsible for making decision regarding
investment in and disposal of core assets according to the investment policy. Moreover,
business development department is also responsible for market and industry analysis
which is related to tenants of TREIT.

3. Accounting Department
Accounting department’s main duty includes record daily transaction, prepare account
data for presentation in annually and quarterly audited financial statement, issue invoice
and receipt rental from tenants. Moreover, accounting department is also responsible for
preparing document to submit to tax department based on requirement from government
agency, collecting lease fee and service fee from tenants, and managing payment.

4. Invest Property Department
Property Management Department’s main duty includes finding tenants for TREIT in order
to generate regular income, maintaining TREIT’s assets in good condition and ready for
use, and repairing assets upon request from a tenant.
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Property Management Department is also responsible for creating a marketing plan,
establishing a strategy in making profit from TREIT’s properties, finding tenants,
maintaining TREIT's properties in good condition and ready for use, repairing and
improving assets, coordinating and facilitating tenants in relation to TREIT’s application
for or renewal of permits, and taking out insurance for assets.

5. Legal and Compliance Department
Legal and Compliance Department’s main duty is to ensure that the Company comply
with the rules and regulations applicable to TREIT which are issued by relevant author-
ities, and managing complaints and disputes.

Legal and Compliance Department is also responsible for monitoring to ensure that
TREIT and the Company’s management comply with the Securities and Exchange Act
B.E. 2535, TREIT for Transactions in Capital Market Act, B.E. 2550 and regulations of
Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission, The Stock Exchange of Thailand,
and other related authorities, disclosure of information of TREIT according to related
criteria, organizing a meeting of the board of directors and a meeting of unitholders,
receiving complaints and suggestions regarding TREIT from a third party (if any).

6. Internal Audit Department
The Company appoints a third party to act as an internal auditor who is responsible
for audit of compliance of all departments with policies and procedures. Internal Audit
Department reports to independent directors.

Internal Audit Department is also responsible for making a work plan, audit performance
of various departments, reporting audit result to an independent director, ensuring that
connected transactions or transactions with potential conflict of interest (if any) comply
with relevant regulations.
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9. Remuneration of the REIT Manager
In 2017, REIT Manager received fee from TREIT which were categorized in 4 group of fee
revenue as following details;

Expenses Percentage

Trust management fee
1. Base fee 0.25 % per annum of the Trust’s total assets

2. Performance fee 3.00 % per annum of net income from rental and
service agreement for December 2017

2.00 % per annum of netincome from rental and
service agreement on warehouse buildings
for the period as from January to November
2017 and for the year 2016

4.00 % per annum of netincome from rental and
service agreement on factory buildings for
the period as from January to November
2017 and for the year 2016

5.00 % per annum of net operating income for
3. Incentive fee December 2017

0.00-10.50 % per annum of net operating income of
warehouse buildings of the Trust for the
period as from January to November 2017
and for the year 2016

0.00-19.50 % per annum of net operating income of
factory buildings of the Trust for the period
as from January to November 2017 and for
the year 2016

In proportion to rental and service periods

4. Commission fee for acquiring a new but not over 3 months based on the latest
lessee rental and service rate of new lessee
Commission fee for buying/selling/ 3.00 % per annum of the value of buying / selling
transferring leasehold/ receiving /transferring leasehold/receiving leasehold
leasehold
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TRUST STRATEGY

The REIT Manager ‘s principal objectives are to deliver stable and sustainable growth distributions to unitholders
in both form of dividend and net asset value per unit, while maintaining reasonable capital structure. The
REIT Manager has adopted a 3 key Strategies to guide TREIT’s sustainable growth.

TREIT STRATEGY

Assets
Management and
Enhancement

Investment Capital
Growth Management
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Detail of TREIT Strategy

Strategic Plans

Investment Growth

Investments in factories and
warehouses in principal industrial
estates and in key strategic
industrial locations of Thailand

Investments in real estates of high
quality which can yield high rental
fees to TREIT

Domestic and international
investments in factories
and warehouses

Capital Management

e Appropriate loan or/and debenture

management as well as appropriate
maintenance of loan ratio for

the highest benefits of TREIT's
unitholders

TREIT’s liquidity management
to supply the organization with
cash for operations and dept
payments whenever needed

Proper maintenance of debts in

Assets Management

and Enhancement

e Directing TREIT to have
consistently growing rental rates

* Directing TREIT to have high and
consistent contract renewal rates

e Managing assets for the highest
benefits of TREIT such as the use
of space on the roof to install solar
cells and sell electricity to tenants
and etc.

accordance with the regulations

¢ Development through opening ¢ o by SEC
imposed by

factories and warehouses

v A4 A4

“To be Leading Industrial REIT of Region”

Investment in High Retaining the Loans

Quality Assets Continuous Growth Maintain High Maintainin

. 5° g cost of to total asset value
in the principal of TREIT’s asset Occupancy ; g

industrial Location values Rate debt at lowest level  not to be higher than

of the country strategic plans

“Maximize Benefit to All Unitholders”

o)
£
Q
3]
o
5
O
)
=
=
3]
2
Q
O

Consistent Increase in

Net Asset Value Per Unit

Steady Growth of

Distribution Per Unit

1. Investment Growth

To generate more returns on investment and to increase the value of its net assets, TREIT aims to pursue
for more investment opportunities in commercial property of asset, not only the assets owned by individuals
within the same business group but the assets owned by others. The emphasis is specially placed on
investments in factories and warehouses in principal industrial estates of the country and in strategic
industrial locations of Thailand. However, the investments are not limited in factories and warehouses in
Thailand only. TREIT is readily prepared for international investments in factories and warehouses if they
have potential to yield high profits and the assets themselves are of good quality in line with the criteria
of modern factories and warehouses.

In order to raise return from investments and TREITs net asset values, The REIT manager are in charge of
considering properness and specifications of assets with potential for investment by taking the following
key factors into account:

¢ Quality of the assets i.e location, landscape, building conditions, engineering systems, utilities and
overall environment; all must be complied with the regulations and having acceptable risks.
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¢ Qualifications of tenants and their ability to pay.

¢ Occupancy Rate.

In addition, according to the regulations of investment based on the announcement of SEC TorChor.49/2555
and the contract of REIT establishment, TREIT can develop real estates at the rate of 10% of TREIT’s total
asset values (Greenfield project), meaning that TREIT has opportunities to develop assets by themselves.

2. Assets Management and Enhancement

Tounderstand and meet the needs of the retail tenants literally, the REIT Manager has hired Property Managers,
TICON and TPARK (ex-owners of the properties), to manage its asset because of their relationship and
knowing retail tenants as well as their working team which can serve tenants in time with efficiency. From
their long experience as leaders in the business of building factories and warehouses for lease, both
companies have large client base both Thai and international clients. Due to long experience and the role
as a leader in real estate business concerning factories and warehouses. All these are to drive business
expansion and increase in rental rates simultaneously and to control operational expense efficiently. The
administration and management of real estates by TICON and TPARK are professionally conducted,
that is, they have managed to heighten numbers of rental rates and contract renewals consistently.
Furthermore, the management of TREIT have researched alternatives to enhance potential of real estates
and managed rental areas to make the most of them such as studies on solar cell project on the roof
space of factories and warehouses and etc.

3. Cost Management of TREIT
The REIT manager have planned to enable the proper structure of financial costs and loan costs.
Regarding the principle of loan management, the REIT manager are to consider current interest rates in
the market and predict future interest rates to consider proper loan forms at that particular time in support
of continuous and consistent growth of TREIT. Also, TREIT has planned to make use of financial costs from
debts at a proper level so that there are no risks of debt repayments and gearing ratio will not exceed
35% or at 60% in case REITs credit rating at investment grade which imposed by SEC.

The REIT manager have also supervised credit ratings of TREIT to be in a place which is suitable
for investment (investment grade). At the present, TREIT is at level A (tha), ranked by FitchRatings
(Thailand) Ltd. (last updated on February 22, 2018). That is the highest credit rating recorded of all
REITs in Thailand.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Highlights

For The Period Ended For The Period Ended

Key Financials 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Total Income (Million Baht) 595 656

EBITDA (Million Baht) 460 486

Net Investment Income
(Million Baht) 369 397

(Mlon Ban) 30,451 | 7,352

No of Properties (Units) 490 98

For The Period Ended For The Period Ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Distribution

o 0.6328 | 0.6702

Number of Trust Units
(Million Units) 2,602 567

NAV (Baht per Unit) 9.7864 | 10.1391

Note : 1 Portfolio value is Investment in properties at fair value which stated in Audited Financial Statement as at December 31¢t, 2017

and as at December 31¢, 2016
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Financial Statement Analysis by REIT Manager

Income Statement Analysis

Statement of Income

2017

For the Year Ended
31 December 2017

Unit : Baht
2016

For the Year Ended
31 December 2016

1. Investment Income

1.1 Rental and Service Income

1.2 Interest Income

1.3 Income from Rental and Service Guarantees

1.4 Income from Forfeiture of Rental and Service
Deposits

1.5 Other Income

Total income

2. Expenses
2.1 Trust Management Fee
2.2 Trustee Fee
2.3 Registrar Fee
2.4 Professional Fees
2.5 Operating Expenses
2.6 Amortisation of Deferred Expenses
2.7 Interest Expenses
Total Expenses

Net Investment Income Unrealised Gains
(losses) on Investments

3. Net Unrealized Gains (losses) on Investments

Net increase in Net Assets Resulting from
Operations

587,407,906

3,715,314

515,162

3,598,000

9,195

595,245,577

65,025,962

6,802,579

2,354,095

1,881,786

59,821,267

15,477,664

74,785,459

226,148,812

369,096,765

(142,250,000)

226,846,765

563,070,093

3,885,062

62,054,459

24,994,750

1,770,697

655,774,961

60,508,304

5,891,766

2,272,800

589,661

99,994,839

15,184,885

74,208,411

258,650,666

397,124,295

90,890,000

488,014,295
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1. Investment Income
Rental and Service Income

1.1

1.2

1.3

Concerning the overall operation which ended on December 31, 2017, TREIT had had
revenues from rentals and services valued at 587 million baht, with 24 million baht soaring

from 2016 or approximately 4.3% rise, resulting from the following:

Increase in numbers of TREIT’s properties

Following the mutual property fund coalition in which TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH
were converted into TREIT as on December 20, 2017, a number of factories and
warehouses for rent had increased from 98 units to 490 units and areas for rent
rose from 369,705 Sg.m to 1,484,660 Sg.m. The transformation made “TREIT the
largest industrial REIT in Thailand”. The increased revenues were from the period
between 20 and 31 December, 2017, when additional revenues of real estates were

transferred to TREIT.

Net Leasable Area

1,484,660 SQ.M.
(490 Units)

745,535
369,705 S_Q.M. (298 Units)
(98 Units)

+1,114,955
75,900 sQ.Mm.
(27 Units)

739,125
(192 Units)

293,805
(71 Units)

2016 2017

. Warehouse . Factory

Interest Income
Revenues from interests received in 2017 were 3.7 million baht, which dropped a little
from 2016 due to fewer fixed deposits. Some cash was used for hiring consultants in
support of the 2017 conversion PFPO into TREIT.

Income from Rental and Service Guarantees

Since the rental and service guarantee from TICON Industrial Connection Ltd. (Public)
was expired in December 2016, TREIT did not receive any revenues from the rental
income insurance for unoccupied space in 2017. However, in 2017, it was reported that
some revenues had been received from the insurance for unrecorded details in 2016.

Net Leasable Area
Break down
by Right on Assets

Leasehold
69%

1,028,648
SQ.M.

LH-FH

Freehold
31%

456,012
SQ.M.
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1.4 Income from forfeiture of Rental and Service Deposits
In 2017, revenues from deposit confiscation valued at 3.6 million baht came from
the only one tenant who terminated the contract ahead of schedule.

1.5 Other Income
Otherincome came from the insurance firm following the insurance terms and conditions.

2. Expenses
2.1 Trust Management Fee
Summary Table of trust Management Fees 2016-2017

Calculated | Since 1 December | 1 January 2016 to

Based on 2017 onward 30 November 2017

Trust Management Fee

Performance Fee :(\let Ir;;:orPel
rom Renta

- iy and Service 3.00% 4.00%

* Warehouse Agreement 3.00% 2.00%

Incentive Fee Net O )

* Factory etlnc%%ae“”g 5.00% 0% - 19.5%

¢ \Warehouse 5.00% 0% - 10.5%
Total Asset

Base Fee (REIT management Fee) Value 0.25% 0.25%
(TAV)

In 2017, TREIT's management fees cost 65 million baht, which was approximately 5
million baht higher than 2016 due to conversion of three TICON property funds which
are TFUND, TLOGIS, TGROWTH into TREIT in December, which enabled TREIT to have
higher revenues, net profits of TREIT’s operation and total assets. That caused the values
of TREIT’s core asset management fees, special fees and TREIT's management fees to
increase in the same direction after the property funds were merged into TREIT. TREIT’s
new fee regulation has been in effect, as approved at the meeting of unitholders of both
property funds and TREIT on October 18 and 19, 2017. The new regulation has been in
effect since December 2017 and the new rates which were adjusted are comprehensively
in accordance with TREIT’s size, management, operations for the most benefits of TREIT
and unitholders.
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2.2

Trustee Fee

Trustee Fee

: 1 January 2016 to
Since 1 December 2017 onward 30 November 2017

Calculated Calculated
Based on Rate Based on Rate
Total Asset < 15,000 . 0.060% Trust’s net
Value 15,001 -30,000 : 0.045% assets 0.09875%
(TAV) > 30,000 : 0.030% (NAV)

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

TREIT’s 2017 fees rose approximately 0.9 million baht as TREIT’s net assets increased
due to the transformation and merger. TREIT has already enforced the new fee rates as
approved by the unitholders of property funds and TREIT since December 2017 onwards.

Registrar Fees

Atthe present, TREIT s registrar is Thailand Securities Depository (TSD) which supervises
documentdelivery, register closing and etc. to provide TREIT’s unitholders with convenience.
Last year, registrar fees increased by 0.08 million baht since there was register closing
for calling a Extraordinary General Meeting 1/2017 on October 19, 2017

Professional Fees
Professional fees cost 1.88 million baht, which was 1.2 million baht higher than the year
before resulting from the professional fees to support the transformational operation.

Operating Expenses

2017 operational expenditures cost 59.82 million baht, which was 40 million baht lower
than those of 2016 resulting from fixing accounts of doubtful debts which property funds
TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH early established before transferring debtors to TREIT.
The entries of allowance for doubtful debts which were recorded to exceed the doubtful debt
reserve policy were reversed. Besides, 2017 fees of factory and warehouse maintenance
reduced since there was only general cycle maintenance compared with that of 2016
which was a particular repair of one factory.

Amortisation of Deferred Expenses

Deferred charges in 2017 increased from 2016 by 0.29 million baht due to the
acknowledgement that the expenditures (asset) added up when there was a payment
for advisors to support the 2017 transformation of TREIT.
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2.7 Interest Expenses
2017 interest expenditures cost 74.78 million baht, rising from 2016, 0.57 million baht since
TREIT applied for a 3,740 million baht short-term loan in December 2017 for the investment
in mutual property funds’ assets from the transformation.

3. Unrealized Gains (Losses) from Investments
In 2017, TREIT had unrealized losses valued at 142 million baht based on Properties value
measurement as in 2017 Appraisers reviewed values of TREIT’s real estates before property
funds TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH were converted into TREIT, which was reported valued
at 7,210 million baht, lower than fair value of properties on December 31, 2016 which have
value at 7,352 million baht.

Balance Sheet Analysis

Unit : Baht

Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2017 | As at 31 December 2016

1. Assets

1.1 Investments

e |nvestments in properties at fair value 30,450,600,000 7,351,650,000
* Investments in securities at fair value 141,812,925 270,554,548
1.2 Cash and Cash at Banks 1,168,439,021 41,049,387
1.3 Accounts Receivable 87,673,867 51,642,463
1.4 Deferred Expenses 95,254,124 51,973,509
1.5 Other Assets 17,524,451 4,405,963

Total assets

31,961,304,388

7,771,275,870

2. Liabilities
2.1 Liabilities 5,539,966,268 1,819,000,000
2.2 Accrued expenses and Property Tax 144,698,541 42,788,791
2.3 Accrued Interest 18,899,479 -
2.4 Withholding Taxes Payable 18,504,017 6,171,755
2.5 Advance Receipts for Rental and Service 2,282,000 -
2.6 Deposits from Rental and Service 761,828,954 151,849,647
2.7 Other Liabilities 7,031,649 4,596,949

Total Liabilities

6,493,210,908

2,024,407,142
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Unit : Baht

Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2017 2017 2016

3. Trust registered and capital from the unitholders 25,423,451,777 5,542,062,750
Retained Earnings 44,641,703 204,805,978
Net Assets 25,468,093,480 5,746,868,728
Net asset value per unit (NAV per unit) 9.7864 10.1391
Number of units issued — end of year (Units) 2,602,387,048 566,800,000
1. Assets
1.1 Investments

1.2

On December 31, 2017, investment in properties at fair value have valued approximately
30,451 million baht, increasing from the previous year about 23,099 million baht
because on December 20, 2017, there was a transfer of property funds TFUND, TLOGIS,
TGROWTH into TREIT.

Unit : Million Baht

30,451
+23,099
Million Baht
PFPOs assets
(TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH)
TREIT before Which transferred toTREIT
conversion

Original TREIT Assets

2016 2017

For Investments in securities at fair value on fair value on December 31, 2017 cost in
total 141.81 million baht in the form of fixed deposits with interest rates 1.20%-1.25%

Cash and Cash at Banks

Cash and bank deposit on December 31, 2017 valued in total 1,168.44 million baht,
increasing from December 21, 2016 approximately 1,127.39 million baht resulting from
TREIT taking in cash and deposit transfers from property funds, both of which were rental
deposits and service fees from tenants valued at 762 million baht and were to be used
for other payments obligation valued at 170 million baht by January 2018 and payment
for accrued interest expense valued at 19 million baht.



1.3

1.4

1.5
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Account Receivables

Numbers of account receivables on December 31, 2017 were approximately 87.67million
baht increasing about 36.03 million baht due to the transfer of account receivables from
property funds into TREIT.

Deferred Expenses

Deferred expenses at end of 2017 were 95.25 million baht, increasing from 2016 by 43.26
million baht due to hire fees, financial consultant fees, legal consultant fees, and other
consultant fees of other issues which are to be acknowledged as assets and classified
as deferred charges using straight-line method in five years’ time.

Other Assets

Other assets at year end were 17.52 million baht, which was 13.12 million baht higher
than those of 2016 due to deposit fees of water pumps, electricity meters owned by real
estates of mutual property funds which were merged into TREIT and VAT to be refunded
by the Department of Revenues.

2. Liabilities

2.1

2.2

Loans and Debentures

On December 31, 2017, TREIT had loans and debentures in total valued at 5,540 million
baht, which increased by 3,721 million baht. The additional loans resulted from loans
for the exchange of assets and liabilities under property funds TFUND, TLOGIS and
TGROWTH and for the payments of TGROWTH'’s long-term loan with ratio of loan to
total assets at year end 17.33%, dropping by 6.08% from 2016. Besides, TREIT’s cost
of debt decreased from 4.00% on December 31, 2016 to 2.87% on December 31, 2017.

LTV
17.33%

5,540

LTV
23.41%

Cost of Debt Cost of Debt
Short term loan 201 6 201 7

Long term loan +3,721

Million Baht

~4.00% ~2.87%

Debentures

2016 2017

Accrued Expenses and Property Taxes

Accrued expenses and property taxes on December 31, 2017 were 144.70 million baht,
whichincreased by 101.91 million baht from December 31, 2016 due to relevant expenses
concerning TREIT’s management fees, TREIT’s accrued fees and service fees of TREIT
management in December 2017. The increased fees resulted from the expansion of
TREIT which caused fee calculation base stay in the same direction.
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2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

As well as that, there were also accrued expenses including accrued factory repair fees,
accrued infrastructure fees, accrued property taxes at year end, some of which were
transferred from property funds to be paid by January 2018

Accrued Interest

Accrued interests on December 31, 2017 were in total 18.90 million baht, which were
interest from corporate bonds to be paid in April and October or every six months and
interests of short-term loans to be paid every first day of the next operating month.
Therefore, TREIT had accrued interests by January 2018.

Withholding Taxes Payable

Withholding taxes payable at year end were 18.50 million baht, increasing by 12.33
million baht, were withholding taxes of property funds’ dividends which were transferred
to TREIT and to be paid by TREIT January 2018.

Advance Receipts for Rental and Service
Advance receiptsfor rental and service on December 31, 2018 were 2.28 million baht, coming
from advance rent paid by tenants in December 2017 and were to be acknowledged
as revenues from January 2018 onwards.

Deposits from Rental and Service

OnDecember 31,2017, rent and service fee deposits were 761.83 million baht, increasing
from the end of 2016 by 609.98 million baht due to the transfers of the deposits from
property funds TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH to TREIT.

Other Liabilities
Other debts on December 31, 2017 were 7.03 million baht, increasing by 2.43 million
baht due to increase in output taxes resulting from services fees.

. Trust Registered and Capital from the Unitholders

On December 31, 2017, authorized capital and funds from TREIT’s unitholders were 25,423.45
million baht, increasing from December 31, 2016 by 19,881.39 million baht resulting from
The Trust issued trust units to PFPOs TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH in a total amount of
2,035,587,048 trust units in exchange for the assets and obligations of the Funds. The swap
ratios of investment units to trust units are as follows:

(1) At the rate of 1 investment unit of TICON Property Fund to 0.9874 trust unit of the
Trust with Baht 1.6977 of cash per unit, whereby the total amount of 1,135,057,711
trust units with Baht 1,951,577,352 of cash were exchanged for the assets and
obligations of TICON Property Fund.

(2) At the rate of 1 investment unit of TPARK Logistics Property Fund to 1.0129 trust
units of the Trust with Baht 1.7415 of cash per unit, whereby the total amount of
419,177,837 trust units with Baht 720,701,158 of cash were exchanged for the
assets and obligations of TPARK Logistics Property Fund.
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(3) Attherate of 1investment unit of TICON Industrial Growth Leasehold Property Fund
to 0.8673 trust unit of the Trust with Baht 1.4911 of cash per unit, whereby the total
amount of 481,351,500 trust units with Baht 827,560,500 of cash were exchanged
for the assets and obligations and cash of Baht 240,127,258 for the repayment of
the existing loan of TICON Industrial Growth Leasehold Property Fund.

After the issue of new trust units, the registered capital of the Trust is Baht 25,066,972,762,
divided into 2,602,387,048 trust units at a par value of Baht 9.6323 each (the registered
capital as of December 31¢,2018 has included the increase in fair value of investments
in properties amounting to Baht 356,479,015), and the newly issued trust units have
been listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand with the trade beginning on 28 December
2017 onwards.

Future Trend of Factory and Warehouse For Rent and TREIT’s Growth Plan
For 2018, the world’s and Thailand’s economic condition, according to the speculation
of the REIT manager, is probably better and likely to be positive when compared
with 2017. However, by the new economic policies of the new leaders of the USA, China
and other Asian countries as well as compliance with the policy of the NCPO, the world’s
and Thailand’s economic situations are affected. Nevertheless, Thailand is situated in
the strategic location with great potential in Southeast Asia, connected to some other
countries, has efficient and proper technologies, making it suitable to be the center of
transportation and production sectors. This offers benefits to businesses of warehouses
and factories for rent in Thailand. Besides, as a result of the plan to develop eastern
economic areas or Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC), there are demands for industry
developments, factories, warehouses in the areas. TREIT has areas for rent measuring
approximately 1 million SQ.M., which is the largest in EEC. Furthermore, average
occupancy rates are at 80%. Positive factors mentioned are certain to yield long-term
benefits to TREIT

The REIT manager has outlined strategies for managing TREIT in terms of investments in
new assets which have potential to yield proper benefits through considering investments
in assets of TICON Group and other owners so that TREIT will grow continuously through
proper uses of financial sources from both loans and capital increase. In addition, the
management of TREIT have also paid attention to situations of warehouses and factories
for rent nowadays, trying to increase rental rates and efficient administration as well as
the management of TREIT for sustainable benefits of TREIT’s unitholders and continuous
growth of TREIT.

5/
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Capital Management

The objective of The REIT manager is to manage and direct TREIT so that TREIT can yield
highest distribution to TREIT’s unitholders. Key factors related are TREIT's capital management.
At the present, TREIT raises capital through capital increase or selling TREIT units to those
in need. As at December 31, 2017, TREIT had received capital raising three times from
unitholders as follows.

Number of
, Value per Total .
trust units : Objective of
unit (Thousand .
(Thousand Capital Increase
. (Baht) Baht)
Unit)
1. In;tri]al IsrtUStdca?ital 342,500 [ 8,425,000 |\ estment in properties
° e reauction on 8
trust unit value ; (0.1934) (66,240)  “hich composed of factory
. and warehouse total 45
e The 2 reduction on i
trust unit value . (0.1743) (59,697)  UM'S

Investment in properties

2. The 1% capital which composed of factory

increase 224,300 10.0000 2,243,000 and warehouse total 53
units
Investment in properties
which composed of factory
3. Capital increase and warehouse total 392
during the year 2,035,587 9.7669 19,881,389 units and liabilities of
TFUND, TLOGIS and
TGROWTH
Total 2,602,387 25,423,452

Concerning capital raising through loans as at December 31, 2017, TREIT had debts resulting
from issuing corporate bonds 1,800 million baht and short-term loans about 3,740 million baht
with average cost of debt approximately at 2.87%. The ratio of loans and corporate bonds
to total assets as at December 31, 2017 was at 17.33%, which was lower than what was
imposed at 35% in the announcement issued by SEC (for organizational credits lower than
investment level) and 60% (for organizational credits at investment level).

In addition, TREIT’s organizational credit rating ranked by Fitch Ratings Thailand Limited was
at level A-(tha) (positive outlook). However, as at February 22, 2018, Fitch Ratings Thailand
Limited upgraded credit rating of TREIT to A(tha) (Stable Outlook) which is the highest credit
rating off all REITs in Thailand.
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Summary Capital Management of FY 2017

As at

31 December 2016

As at
31 December 2017

Loan and Debentures
Short term loan
Long term loan
Debentures
Loan to Total Asset Value (TAV)

Credit Rating (Rated by FITCH)

Average Cost of Debt

LTV in Fiscal Year 2017

1,819 Million Baht

1,819 Million Baht

23.41%

A-(tha)

~4.00%

5,540 Million Baht
3,740 Million Baht
1,800 Million Baht
17.33%
A-(tha) Upgraded to
A(tha)
On 22 February 2018

2.87%

35.00%

Maintain Loans to total asset value (LTV) in appropriate level and comply

with SEC notification
30.00%
25.00%

23.37%
23.41% 23.45% 23.39%
20.00%
17.33%

15.00%

31 Dec 2016 31 Mar 2017

Short Term Loan

and Debentures
(As at 31 December 2017)

Short term loan tenor 6 months
(lending on 20 December 2017)

5,540 Million Baht

30 Jun 2017

30 Sep 2017

Debt Maturity Profile

31 Dec 2017

. Fixed Rate 100%

o
<
:';- Debenture tenor 7 years
(Issued in 2017)
Debenture tenor 3 years
(Issued in 2017)
(=
S
1= <
Q —
o
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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THAILAND INDUSTRIAL & LOGISTICS

PROPERTY MARKET OVERVIEW

1. Thailand Economic Outlook
In 2017, the Thai economy expanded by 3.9 percent, improving from 3.3 percent in 2016.
Export value grew by 9.7 percent while private consumption and total investment increased
by 3.2 and 0.9 percent respectively. The headline inflation averaged 0.7 percent and the
current account remained in a surplus of 10.8 percent to GDP.

GDP

GDP Adjusted

GPD Growth (%)

2016 2017

3.4 3.6 3.1 3.0 3.4 3.9 4.3 4.0
0.9 0.8 0.6 0.8 1.2 1.3 1.0 0.5

Reference : Office of The National Economic and social Development Board

1.1

Industrial Sector expanded most, of all 18 quarters, by 4.3%, obviously better due to
the expansion by 1.1% in the previous quarter following the speedy growth and the
distribution of key industries, corresponding to industrial product index which increased
by 4.0%. Industrial product index with export ratio in the range of 30%-60% increased
by 8.6%. Industrial product index of manufactures for domestic consumption (export
ration less than 30%) expanded by 2.6% while industrial product index of manufactures
for exports (export ratio more than 60%) dropped by 0.4% due to the reduction of
manufactures of general machines. Meanwhile, key export industries expanded with
more speed with average productivity rate at 62.0% compared with 58.5% in the same
period of the previous year. Almost all key industrial product indexes expanded such
as automobiles, engines, assemblies and accessories for automobiles, electronic tubes
and electronic assemblies, by-products from petroleum refinery, plastic products, meat
produce, non-alcohol drinks and etc. Decreasing industrial product index, for example, was
general machines, jewellery, ornaments and other related products, textile pre-production
and production.

Manufacturing Production Index

(%YoY) (%)
30 80
15 40
o | S=88=<°°087%= |
Cap U
15 Industrial Output 40
Export Less than 30%
——  Export between 30%- 60%
Export than 60%
30 xport over than 80

Q4/13 Q4/14 Q4/15 Q4/16 Q417

Reference : Office of Industrial Economics
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1.2

Export Volume Index (%YoY)

Goods Exports cost 61,633 million dollars. The Electronic Government Agency expanded
most, of all 19 quarters, by 12.5% from 7.9% in the previous quarter and distributed
more in terms of numbers and export markets, corresponding to the speedy expansion
of the partner countries’ economy and increase in goods’ prices in the world’s market.
A number of exports increased by 8.7% and prices of export products increased
by 3.5%. Export products of which values increased included rice, rubber, cassava, sugar,
rubber products, automobiles’ assemblies and accessories, machines and accessories,
and petroleum products and etc. Export products which decreased invalue were automobiles,
pick-ups, trucks, air-conditioners and etc. Exporting goods to the USA, EU countries
(15), China, Japan, ASEAN countries expanded well and continuously, while exporting
goods to Middle-East returned to expansion for the first time in 13 quarters. However,
exporting goods to Australia’s markets dropped a little. When raw gold exports were
deducted, export values increased by 11.2%. When converted to Thai baht, exports
increased by 7.7%.

(%YoY) 2016 2017
0.5 59 2.9 5.0 8.7 7.0

Export Price Index (%YoY) -0.4 3.6 3.7 2.8 8.5 4.3

Export Value (Million USD) 214,251 235,106 56,220 56,088 61,633 61,164

Export Product (%YoY)

Automotive 3.2 6.3 2.6 2.3 2.6 18.1
- Passenger Cars 22.7 -7.1 -19.1 -9.8 -10.8 13.5
- Van and Truck -35.0 11.8 15.8 4.3 -1.8 30.2
- Automobile Part and Equipment 5.2 13.6 13.4 9.7 14.4 16.9

Telecommunication Equipment -6.2 51.1 21.6 71.6 49.6 60.4

Petroleum Product -30.9 32.6 43.0 36.7 29.7 26.0

Computer Part and Equipment -10.1 5.8 -0.8 4.4 2.5 16.6

Rubber Product 8.1 41.2 5.5 324 37.1 44.3

Rice -4.4 17.2 -7.2 19.3 43.9 20.5

Rubber -12.1 35.7 78.3 37.9 22.9 11.7

Potato -19.0 -7.0 -18.5 -13.7 58 2.7

Sugar -8.6 7.0 -19.3 32.0 26.0 -9.5

Gold (Un-process) 89.8 -20.7 -37.5 -45.4 52.7 -46.6

Reference : Bank of Thailand
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2. The Whole Picture of the Economic Situation of Thailand’s Industries
The economic situation of Thailand’s industries in 2017, taking MPI into account, expanded
by 1.58%, close to that of 2016 which expanded by 1.6%. The industries which expanded
were, for example, electronics (the increase in exports to core markets and the trend of the
Internet of Things (loT), automobiles (domestic market expansion due to domestic economic
expansion), food industry (due to increasing products and the industry itself driven by exports
with consumers’ demand expanding continuously as well as higher domestic consumption).

Manufacturing Production Index (MPI)

(%YaY)
12.00
10.00
8.00
6.00
4.00
2.00f
2.00 -
0.00
-2.00
-4.00
-6.00
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 f
Reference : Office of Industrial Economics
Key Industrial Index
Manufacturing Production Index Export Index
Jan - Dec 2017 growth 1.58% Jan - Dec 2017 growth 1.54%
(%YOY) (%YOY)
¢ 108.23
® 112.31
L] ° 106.83
110.56 ® 106.58
108.87 -
L ® 0882 105.85
2014 2015 2016 2017 2014 2015 2016 2017
Reference: Office of Industrial Economics Reference : Office of Industrial Economics
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04

Thai Industries Sentiment Index In the period of 12 months (January-December) of 2017,
Jan - Dec at 86.26% industrial product index was 112.31, increasing from the
same period of 2016 (110.56) by 1.58%.

® 36.26
The industries which had an impact on the increase
of industrial index included other rubber productions,
85.79 ®g585 manufactures of electronic tubes and assemblies,
° : . .
and manufactures of assemblies and accessories for
automobiles and engines and etc.
2016 2017 2018

Concerning the 2018trend, it is speculated that industrial
product index will expand more than 2017 due to
the world’s economic expansion as a factor continuously supporting export sectors, a
drive of public sectors’ investments, better adjustment of private sector’s investments and
employments and etc.

Reference : Office of Industrial Economics

Inthe 12 months’ period (January-December) of 2017, freight index was at 108.23, increasing
from the same period of 2016 (106.58) by 1.54%.

The industries which helped raise freight index from the same period of 2016 included
manufactures of assemblies and accessories for automobiles and engines, manufactures
of electronic tubes and assembilies, oil productions from plants, animal oil, tallow and etc.

Regarding 2018 trend, it is speculated that freight index will expand more than 2017,
corresponding to industrial product index (increased value) above.

In the period between January-December (the first twelve months) of 2017, average index
was 86.26, increasing from the same period of 2016 (85.5) and confidence index measured
three months in advance was at 101.26, increasing from the same period of 2016 (100.38)

Regarding 2018 trend, it is speculated that industrial confidence index will grow better than
2017 as aresult of the continuous expansion of the country’s economy due to the governmental
drive in large-scale infrastructure investments such as, concerning transportation, there has
been an investment in railway project by Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand to solve
traffic congestion problems in Bangkok and investments in Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC)
to elevate industrial economy to be the manufacture center of the region.
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Analysis of Tenants Industry

Automotive 30%

of total Income

Logistic
Industry

18%

of total Income

8% (3] Food Industry

of total Income

2.1 The whole picture of automobile and assembly manufactures

A number of automobile manufacturers in 2017 expanded, compared with the same
period of the previous year, which was domestic expansion since domestic economic
condition also expanded, corresponding to what the Office of the National Economic
and Social Development Board speculated that Thailand’s 2017 economy would expand
by 3.9% and there would be the introductions of new automobile models to promote
domestic market. However, export markets declined in Asian, Middle-east, African and
European countries.

Value of Car Export and Import of Car Components

Car Production, Sale and Export (Number) and Equipments (Million USD)
1237830
2.453,717 2,457,057 11,912.48 11,401.15
----" 10,603.56
\\\ 006160 10,005.79
1.026.671 - ™ 1880007 1,912,287 1.944.417 1:988,823 e ————— - ----—" -
026, 1,128,152 ~ ;._‘ A . _____ e | | --—--- a--- res2 500605 23354 9,033.38
______ P T\gﬂ-“;; - _1‘155—51—5 — = — @ 1139696 6.905.69 735831
1 425‘5|A 1:626.0% . 871,650
2 881572 799,032 . A
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—- Production Sale ~{— Export ~ M- Value Export Value Import

Reference : Office of Industrial Economics Reference : Office of Industrial Economics

Automobile Manufactures

In 2017 (January-December), 1,988,823 automobiles had been produced, compared
with 1,944,417 in the same period of the previous year, which increased by 2.28%,
breaking into passenger cars 42%, pick-up cars 1 ton and derivatives 56% and other
commercial cars 2%.
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2.2

Domestic Automobile Trading

In 2017 (January-December), there were 871,650 units, compared with the same period
of the previous year. The number of purchases was at 768,788 units, increasing by
13,38%, classified as purchases of passenger cars 40%, 1-ton pick-ups 41%, PPVs
and SUVs 14% and other commercial cars 5%.

Automobile Exports

In 2017, (January-December), a number of automobile exports were 1,139,696 units,
compared with the same period of the previous year with the number of exports recorded
at 1,188,515 units, decreasing by 4.11%. The decrease happened in almost all markets
except for the markets in Oceanian and North American countries.

Export Values of Automobiles’ Assemblies and Accessories

In 2017 (January-December), export values of automobiles’ assemblies and accessories
were 9,033.88 million US dollars, compared with the same period of the previous year
valued at 8,233.54 million US dollars, increasing by 9.72. Dominant export markets of
automobiles’ assemblies and accessories were Japan, Indonesia and Malaysia.

Import Values of Automobiles’ Assemblies and Accessories

In 2017 (January-December), import values of automobiles’ assemblies and accessories,
compared with the same period of the previous year valued at 10,603.56 million US
dollars, increasing by 7.52%. Dominant export markets of automobiles’ assemblies and
accessories were Japan, China, and the USA.

The Trend of Automobile Industries in 2018

Concerning the estimation of automobile industries in 2018, according to the speculation
of the automobile industry group, the Federation of Thai Industries assumes that a number
of manufactured automobiles will rise by 2,000,000 units, increasing by 2.56. 1,100,000
units will be manufactured for exports, corresponding to the speculation of the Office
of the National Economic and Social Development Board which expects the economic
expansion of (GDP) 2018 to increase by 3-4%. Concerning the export markets, the trend
will be better following the recovery of the world’s economy.

Electronics Industries

The manufactures of electronics in 2017 increased by 7.51 percent, compared with those
of 2016, in Semiconductor, IC, HDD and PCBA due to increased demand of electronics
products and increased value of export in Japan, ASEAN, China, EU and US markets.
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Production Index, Import Value
and Export Value of Electronics Products

40,000
35,000

120 100.42 30,000
* 97.27 ° L)
® 110.17 ° 101.78

08.95 25,000

80

20,000

Million USD

15,000

36,505.23

- o 1<)
© N ~
o s ~
S o =
= <
g g 3
@ @ )

30,816.71
33,885.77
30,858.82
33,179.52
34,828.11

40
10,000

Production Index

5,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 o
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Reference : Office of Industrial Economics Reference: Office of Industrial Economics

Electronics Production

The manufactures of electronics index in 2017 equal 109.42 increased by 7.51 percent,
compared with those of 2016, in Semiconductor, IC, HDD and PCBA that increased by
14.78%, 16.24%, 8.84% and 1.95% respectively. This resulted from the expansion of
electronics goods due to the world’s higher demands because IC is an essential part for the
manufacture of goods which require advanced technology and thus is used as smartphones
and tablets’ assemblies, both of which have been in high demand. Concerning HDD
manufacture, higher storage was in trend as it could be used in Cloud Storage.

The Exports of Electronics Goods

In 2017, the exports of electronics goods were 36,505.23 million US dollars, increasing
by 10.02% with the main export markets Japan, China, ASEAN and UN countries and
America all increasing. Export values of computers’ assemblies and accessories were
14,258.12 million US dollars, increasing by 7.01%. IC values were 8,250.85 million US
dollars, increasing by 7.66%. Mobile phones and accessories increased by 120.71%,
valued at 2,079.73 million US dollars especially in Japanese and UN markets.

The Trend of Electronics Industries in 2018

“Concerning the electronics industries in 2018, it is speculated that the manufactures of
electronics goods will increase by 5.00% and will have values of exports to main markets
increasing by 7.00%, compared with the previous year. Goods which are likely to increase
are IC due to higher demand and the fact that it is an integral part for developing goods
which require advanced technology and can be used as assemblies of smartphones
and tablets which are also in high demand”.

Logistics Industries

Thai logistics industries have many advantages. Taking the potential of Thailand in terms
of strategic locations which are suitable for manufactures and trading into account, we all
might know that Thailand has readily prepared fundamental structures and it also connects
trading doors through land transportation to neighboring countries as well as the fact that
opportunities for logistics business in Thailand have continuously increased due to free trade

negotiations with many countries.
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Logistics industries in 2017 grew by 16%, compared with 2016 at approximately 13,200
million baht resulting mainly from the growth of E-Commerce which was mainly affected
by positive factors of the growth of internet uses, smartphones. This was also due to
the urban lifestyles which were more dependent on IT accessories, thus E-Commerce
businesses having positive effects on higher demands in warehouse buildings for storage
and real-time distributions of goods and punctuality.

Key Factors that Stimulus Growth of Logistic Industry

¢ Increase of using smartphone
¢ Increase of using internet
¢ Urbanization which increase need

of convenience
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2.4 Food Industries
A number of food industries in 2017 increased, when compared with those of 2016,
as an effect of increasing products and food industries were also driven by exports of
which consumers’ needs expanded consistently. Also, domestic consumption increased
due to better trend of economy in the whole picture.
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Food Production Food Sales Volume in country

Million Tons Million Tons
40.0 25.0
35.0 . Sugar

. Other 20.0
30.0

[ Grains
25.0 W oairy 15.0

. Veg, Oil
20.0

B Fruit& veg
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10.0

5.0
5.0
0.0 0.0
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Reference: Ministry of Industrial and Bank of Thailand

Food Trading

In 2017, food purchases were measured at 20,695,424.37 tons, increasing from 2016
by 3.99 (%YQY) as a result of livestock sales (frozen and chicken), fishery (frozen fish),
vegetable oil (crude palm oil), vegetables and fruits (juice and coconut milk), grain and
flour (cassava flour) and animal foods (chicken and pork instant foods) as economy in
the whole picture tends to be better continuously, resulting in higher consumption.

Food Manufactures

In 2017, food manufactures were measured at 34,975,148.03 tons, expanding from 2016
by 5.61% (%YoY) due to manufactures of key goods such as crude palm oil, canned
pineapple, frozen and chilled chicken, semi-finished or brown-sugar-cooked chicken,
frozen shrimp, instant noodle, animal foods in response to continuously expanding
domestic and international consumers’ needs.

Exports

In 2017, export values were 28,959.94 million US dollars, expanding from 2016 by 10.72%
(%YoY) due to increasing exports of key goods in every product group, especially for
export goods which increased in both number and value such as white rice, jasmine
rice, rice flour, rice noodles, crispy bread, instant noodles, convenience foods, chilled
and frozen chicken, semi-finished and cooked chicken, frozen fresh, frozen and dried
fruits (durian and longan) flavour additives (sauces and flavour powders) as well as those
goods which drop in quantity but grow in value such as chilled and frozen raw shrimp,
canned tuna, brown sugar due to the recovery of the partner countries’ economy such
as the USA, UN countries, China, Japan and CLMV.
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Governmental Policies on Food Industries

Super Cluster and Food Innopolis which are the policies that encourage the development
of all-in food process innovation, the establishment of special economic areas along
borders and financial measures to support famers with low income, SMEs and community
enterprises, boost the expansion of food and drink industries.

The Trend of Food Industries in 2018

“The manufactures and exports, in the whole picture, of food industries in 2018
are expected to expand, when compared with the previous year due to increase in
agricultural produces following proper climate condition. The recovery of the world’s
economy, especially that of Thailand’s partner countries such as the USA, UN countries,
China, Japan and CLMV and declining manufacture costs following the reduction of raw
materials’ costs contribute to the consistent expansion of exports in livestock, fishery,
vegetables and fruits, sugar and rice, grain and flour with increase in the whole picture
of domestic economy”.

3. The Whole Picture of Industries of Factory Buildings and Warehouses for Rent

Supply

Concerning supplies of industrial real estates, there were unoccupied lands in industrial
locations (industrial estates, industrial parks and industrial areas), ready-to-use factories
and warehouses. It was found out that, by the end the fourth quarter of 2017, the supply of
unoccupied lands was approximately 157,000 rai and expected to increase by 26,000 rai
in the future, which were under development or suspended for development. Regarding
locations, Eastern Seaboard Industrial Estate was found to be the most popular since it is
located close to port, which enhances the transportation and safety regardless of floods.
The second popular location was in Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya as it is located close to Bangkok.

Concerning ready-to-use factories, 6 dominant entrepreneurs including TICON Group and
TREIT, Thai Factory Development Plc., Hemaraj Land and Development, PINTHONG GROUP
MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTANTS CO., LTD., Amata Corporation PCL and WHA Corporation
Pcl. had number of supplies in total 1,100 units, equalling to 2,300,000 Sg.m, decreasing by
0.1% when compared with the previous quarter resulting from some ready-to-use factories
sold to tenants and increasing by 0.5% when compared with the same quarter of the previous
year, most owned by TICON (approximately 49%) and other entrepreneurs altogether (51%).

Supply of factory for rent as at Q4 2017 Market share of factory for rent as at Q4 2017

o
\|

-5.0%
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Q1/2017  Q2/2017 Q32017  Q4/2017

M.
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2,400,000

2,200,000 20.0%

2,000,000 15.0% [l TICON group and trust

1,800,000 100% Other
1,600,000
1,400,000

1,200,000

1,000,000 =
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Reference: Independent appraiser
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Regarding ready-to-use warehouses for rent, numbers of supplies were 3,400,000 Sg.m,
increasing by 360,000 Sg.m. or 12% from the previous quarter, most owned by TICON
Group and TREIT (approximately 46%) and other entrepreneurs altogether (54%).
In 8-14 months’ time, it is speculated that numbers of supplies will increase by 230,000
Sg.m which is under development of the fourth quarter of 2018.

Supply of warehouse for rent as at Q4 2017 Market share of warehouse for rent as at Q4 2017
(sQ.m.)
0.14
4,000,000
3,500,000 120%  120% 012
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Q1/2013  Q2/2014  Q3/2015  Q4/2016 Q1/2017  Q2/2017  Q8/2017  Q4/2017
M Total Supply  —e—  Change (Q-0-Q)
Reference: Independent appraiser
Relerence : Independent appraiser
Demand

Concerning a number of demands for ready-to-use factory areas for rent at the fourth quarter
of 2017, rental rates were at 70%, increasing from the previous quarter by 1.2%. It was the
fourth continuous increase.

Regarding the actual market shares of ready-to-use factories for rent’s areas, it was found out
that TICON Group and TREIT had the most market shares with areas measuring 580,000 Sg.m.
or 32% of all the areas for rent. The rest 54% were owned by other entrepreneurs.

Demand and Supply of factory for rent as at Q4 2017
Market share of factory for rent (Actual rented) as at Q4 2017

(sQM)
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(2

In terms of demands for ready-to-use warehouses for rent, rental rates were 79%, dropping
from the previous quarter by 0.9%. However, if the actual rental rates were taken into account,
it was found out, that at the end of the last quarter of 2017, demands for warehouse areas for
rent increased by 260,000 Sg.m. Yet, due to dramatically increasing supplies of ready-to-use
warehouses for rent, rental rates declined, which happened in the fourth quarter of 2016 as
well, indicating the arrival of brand new warehouse areas for rent which were adding up to
the market outnumbered demands for area rentals in each quarter.

Concerning the actual market shares of ready-to-use warehouse areas for rent, it was found that
TICON Group and TREIT had the most market shares with areas in total measuring 1,500,000
Sqg.m or 46% of all the areas for rent. The rest 54% were owned by other entrepreneurs
including WHA, Hemraj, Amata, Pinthong and others.

Demand and Supply of Warehouse for rent as at Q4 2017

(saM)
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

No of Properties
490 units Net Leasable Area

* Factory 298 Units 1 ,484,660 SQM. 30,451

e Warehouse 192 Units Million Baht

Portfolio Value

Renewal Rate
Occupanc Average Property Age
i Approximately T e A

79% 85% 10.55 years

According to the conversion, acquired TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH into TREIT in December
2017, TREIT has grown its portfolio from 98 units to 490 units with an increasing in Net leasable
area from 369,705 sg.m. to 1,484,660 sg.m., and grown in portfolio value from 7,352 million baht
to 30,451 million baht. With net leasable area and portfolio value, TREIT is “The largest industrial
REIT in Thailand”. Operational overview of fiscal year 2017 can be summarized as follows:

Type of Property
As of December 31, 2017 TREIT has been invested in 490 units
of properties, Total leasable area of 1,484,600 sg.m. can break-
down as following details;
e  Factory 298 units
Leasable area 745,535 sg.m.
e  Warehouse 192 units 745,535
Leasable area 739,125 sg.m. sq.m.

Type of Right on Assets
e  Freehold 69% of total leasable area

Leasable area equal to 1,028,648 sg.m. as follows;
Factory 255 units,
619,435 sg.m. of leasable area
Warehouse 109 units,
409,213 sq.m. of leasable area

= = e |easehold 31% of total leasable area

Leasable area equal to 456,012 sg.m. as follows;
Factory 41 units, 126,100 sg.m. of leasable area
Warehouse 83 units, 329,912 sq.m. of leasable area

Freehold

69%

1,028,648
sq.m.

r%7¢ H o -

[ 1 ) %




Breakdown Tenants by Industry
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Currently tenants of TREIT assets (both warehouse and factory) come from various industries.
Industries with the highest number of tenants are automotive, electronics/electrical and

logistics respectively.

Details of the tenants classified by industries and the percentage of rental and services income

are as follows:

FMCG

Packaging

4%

Retail
7%

Logistics
18%

1%

Automotive
30%

Electronics
23%

Note : Reference from Rental and Service Income as of 31 December 2017

Nationalities

Currently most of tenants (both warehouse and factory) are Japanese companies, Europe,

Asia, Thai and USA respectively.

Details of the tenants classified by nationalities and the percentage of rental and services

income are as follows:

Thai
12%
Asia
(Except
Japanese)
13%

European
21%

USA

Japanese
50%

Note : Reference from Rental and Service Income as of 31 December 2017
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Tenants of the Trust
With a tenant base of around 252 well reputed local, multinational and listed companies,
TREIT has a diversified and high quality tenant profile across wide range of industries.
The top 10 tenants collectively contributed 22% of the total revenue which represent
better tenants diversification than last year which top 10 tenants that contributed 56% of total
revenue. This reduce concentration risk and contributes to income stability and diversity
in portfolio better than last year.

Top 10 Tenants by GRI (% TREIT Gross Income)

DHL Supply Chain (Thailand) Limited _ 1.54%
DTS DraexImaier Automotive Systems (Thailand ) Co., Ltd. _ 1.57%
Panalpina World Transport (Thailand) Ltd. _ 1.68%
DENSO (Thailand) Co., Ltd. _ 1.69%
Schenker (Thai) Ltd. _ 1.72%
Lazada Limited _ 1.74%

Berli Jucker Logistics Co., Ltd. 1.97%

2.10%

Kintetsu Logistics (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Leschaco (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 2.48%

Siam Makro Public Co., Ltd. 5.26%

WALE of Top 10 Tenants by GRI (Number of Years)

3.41

DHL Supply Chain (Thailand) Limited

*®
o

DTS DraexImaier Automotive Systems (Thailand ) Co., Ltd.

Panalpina World Transport (Thailand) Ltd.

DENSO (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Schenker (Thai) Ltd.

Lazada Limited

Berli Jucker Logistics Co., Ltd. 9.05

-
(o2}
@

Kintetsu Logistics (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Leschaco (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 4.23

Siam Makro Public Co., Ltd.

0
N
o
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PORTFOLIO OVERVIEW

1. Warehouse
TREIT has invested in two types of warehouse building, Ready-Built and Built to Suit, which
are located in strategic locations as good distribution center. The selected warehouses are
able to handle modern inventory management system with building design which takes into
account the column span, floor loading, operation height, number of doors for loading and
unloading goods, hydraulic dock leveler to match different heights of trucks and the space
for office area.
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International Standard Quality of TREIT Assets

(Example : Warehouse)

FIRE PROTECTION
SYSTEM

EXTRA
ROOF RIDGE

EXTRA CLEAR HEIGHT
(10-12 METERS)

WIDE COLOME SPAN
(18-30 METERS)

OVERHEAD DOORS
WITH HYDRAULIC
DOCKL LEVELERS

/3

OFFICE AREA

INDUSTRIAL
CONCRETE FLOOR

vl

......
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. Factory

Most of TREIT’s factory buildings are single-storey buildings with mezzanine for office space,
locating in fenced areas with guard house, parking space and loading area. Presently, all
factory buildings in TREIT are standardised ready-built which can be adjusted to fit the tenant’s
requirements. The size of the buildings is approximately 1,200 to 14,250 square meters with
floor loading capacity ranging from 1 — 3 tons/sg.m. With roof structure of pre-engineered
steel columns and rafters, the buildings do not need middle columns to support the roof,
which provide maximum operation space for factory and built-in office space.

As of December 31, 2017 TREIT has been invested in 490 units of high-quality warehouses
and factories in many strategic locations and industrial estates. Total leasable area equal to
1,484,660 square meter as following detail:
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Portfolio Distribution

Locations of invested properties can be defined into 3 group of strategic locations : The majority
of properties located in Eastern Economic Corridor : EEC, Northern Bangkok and Eastern of
Bangkok respectively. Investment proportion and detail as follows:

Eastern
Economic

Corridor
(EEC) Eastern

62%

Net leasable NLA Assets Value
Warehouse | Factory | Area (“NLA”) | Proportion (Million
(Sg.m.) (%) Baht)

Project / Industrial Estate /
Industrial Park

Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate - 30 81,600 5.5% 1,844.0
Amata City Chonburi (Amata Nakorn) 7 94 250,875 16.9% 5,737.9
Industrial Estate

Bangpa-in Industrial Estate - 13 27,050 1.8% 594.8

Ayutthaya

Bangpoo Industrial Estate = 11 35,525 2.4% 784.1

Samut Prakan

Hemaraj Industrial Estate Chonburi - 3 7,200 0.5% 168.7

(Bowin)

Hi-Tech (Ban Wa) Industrial Estate - 36 98,828 6.7% 1,999.4
Ayutthaya

Navanakorn Industrial - 17 41,200 2.8% 793.4

Promotion Zone Pathumthani

Pinthong Industrial Estate (Project 1) = 20 41,200 2.8% 897.1

Chonburi

Pinthong Industrial Estate (Project 2) - 9 21,025 1.4% 550.7

Chonburi

Pinthong Industrial Estate (Project 3) = 13 38,100 2.6% 1,059.4
Chonburi

Rojana Industrial Park 3 52 140,906 9.5% 2,829.0
Ayutthaya
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No. of Net leasable NLA

Project / Industrial Estate / : Assets Value
: Warehouse | Factory | Area (“NLA”) | Proportion -

Industrial Park . (Million Baht)

(Unit) (Sq.m.) (%)

TPARK Bangna Chochoengsao 81 - 258,260 17.4% 5,101.1

TPARK Bangplee 1 Samut Prakan 10 - 76,477 5.2% 1,313.2

TPARK Bangplee 3 Samut Prakan 13 - 56,700 3.8% 1,059.4

TPARK Eastern Seaboard 1 (A) 6 i 27016 18% 439.1

Chonburi

TPARK Eastern Seaboard 1 (B) 4 i 11,400 0.8% 004.7

Chonburi

TPARK Eastern Seaboard 2 (A) 4 i 15,800 11% 084.2

Chonburi

TPARK Laemchabang 1 Chonburi 21 - 69,404 4.7% 1,229.4

TPARK Laemchabang 2 Chonburi 15 - 43,950 3.0% 880.0

TPARK Phan Thong 1 Chonburi 5 - 10,600 0.7% 189.3

TPARK Rojana Prachinburi 1 - 10,020 0.7% 198.4

TPARK Sriracha Chonburi 5 - 44,418 3.0% 764.5

TPARK Wangnoi 1 o

Phra Nakorn Sri Ayutthaya 13 i 87,306 4.5% 14523

TPARK Wangnoi 2 4 : 9,800 0.7% 178.1

Ayutthaya

Total 192 298 1,484,660 100.0% 30,450.6

REIT Manager manage assets under trust with professional and
effectiveness to secure high occupancy rate and rental rate for
sustainable growing. Moreover, REIT manager plan to reduce operation
expense by changing normal light bulb to LED, consideration of
using CCTV to monitoring the assets and set efficient schedule

of repairing factory and warehouse.

Miss. Tirakarn Thammasarangkoon
Senior Asset Management Manager
TICON Management Co., Ltd.




PROPERTY LOCATIONS

Sakho.

Samut Songkh p

Phetchaburi e

Samutprakarn

Northern Bangkok
@ Eastern Bangkok
@ Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC)

Prachinburi

Warehouse
TPARK Rojana Pr:
- 1 Warehouse

- NLA 10,020 SQ.M

hinburi

[ )
Sara Buri

® Sa Kaeo

Chachoengsao

Warehouse

TPARK Bangna
- 81 Warehouses

- NLA 258,260 SQ.M

Chanthaburi

Factory

Bangpoo Industrial Estate
- 11 Factories

- NLA 35,525 SQ.M

Warehouse

TPARK Bangplee 1
- 10 Warehouses

-NLA 76,477 SQM

TPARK Bangplee 3
- 13 Warehouses
- NLA 56,700 SQ.M

Province

Strategic
Locations

4

Chonburi Rayong

Factory

Amata City Rayong Industrial
Estate

- 30 Factories

- NLA 81,600 SQ.M

Factory

Amata City Chonburi (Amata
Nakorn) Industrial Estate

- 94 Factories

- NLA 231,225 SQ.M

TPARK Laemchabang 2
- 15 Warehouses

- NLA 43,950 SQ.M

TPARK Eastern Seaboard
1(A)

- 6 Warehouses

- NLA 27,016 SQ.M

Hemaraj Chonburi Industrial
Estate
- 3 Factories
- NLA 7,200 SQ.M
TPARK Eastern Seaboard

Pinthong Industrial Estate ~ 1(B) s
- 42 Factories - 4 Warehouses &"" Factor
NLA 100,325 SQ.M - NLA 11,400 SQ.M 'ﬁﬂ" y
TPARK Eastern Seaboard
Warehouse _ 2(A) tman Warehouse
Amata City Chonburi (Amata - 4 Warehouses o
Nakorn) Industrial Estate - NLA 15,800 SQ.M
- 7 Warehouses .
- NLA 19,650 SQ.M TPARK Phan Thong X Al rport
- 5 Warehouses
TPARK Laemchabang 1 - NLA 10,600 SQ.M
- 21 Warehouses n
ag Port

- NLA 69,404 SQ.M

TPARK Sriracha
- 5 Warehouses
- NLA 44,418 SQ.M



Amata City Chonburi (Amata Nakorn)

Industrial Estate

Amata City Chonburi (Amata Nakorn) Industrial Estate
strategically locatedin Eastern Economic Corridor (EEC),
on Bangna-Trad Road (Km. 57). Close to Bangkok,
Suvarnabhumi Airport and Laemchabang Port. This
prime location provides advantages in logistics and
transportation, directly connected to Bangna-Trad
Highway, Burapha Withi Elevated Highway, and
Highway 7 (Motorway).

Amata Nakorn Industrial Estate considered as
the largest area of industrial estate in Thailand,
complete with infrastructures and utilities to support
production and/or other industrial activities. In
additional, these industrial estate not far from
Laemchabang port and Suvarnabhumi airport.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page

Amata City Chonburi (Amata Nakorn) Industrial

Estate

Location Chonburi

CIPS 13.423834, 101.000064

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 57 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 42 Km.
Laemchabang Port 46 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Factory 94 Units
Warehouse 7 Units
Leasable Area 250,875 Sg.m.

Freehold 65%

Leasehold 35%

Remaining leasehold

26 years

(Ended December 12, 2043)

Investment Type

Assets Value 5,737.90 Million Baht
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Hemaraj Chonburi Industrial Estate

(Bowin) Chonburi

Hemaraj Chonburi Industrial Estate located in Bowin
Sub-district, Sriracha District, Chonburi Province,
110 Km. from Bangkok. Conveniently access
from both Highway 331 and the new Highway 331,
connected to Highway No.7 (Motorway), logistically
convenient to the Laemchabang deep sea port and
Sri Racha city, both of which are only 25 Km. away.

Hemraj Chonburiis an another important cluster for the

manufacture of steel, electronics, power, auto parts,
logistics and export-oriented industries.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page
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Hemaraj Chonburi Industrial Estate (Bowin) Chonburi

Location Chonburi

GPS 13.050115, 101.092231

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 100 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 83 Km.
Laemchabang Port 25 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Factory 3 Units

Leasable Area 7,200 Sg.m.
Investment Type Freehold 100%

Assets Value 168.7 Million Baht




Pinthong Industrial Estate

(Project 1) Chonburi

Pinthong Industrial Estate (Project 1) located just
10 Km. away from Laemchabang Port on Highway
Route 7 (Motorway).60 Minutes to Suvarnabhumi
Airport and easy access to major towns in Eastern
Region. 15 Km. to Sriracha and 30 Km. to Pattaya.

Moreover, prime location of Pinthong Industrial Estate
is in the center of all major Industrial Estates in Eastern
area. Easy to link as Supply Chain System or Logistic
Base in Eastern Region.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page

Pinthong Industrial Estate (Project 1) Chonburi

Location Chonburi

GPS 13.123703, 100.990931

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 95 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 80 Km.
Laemchabang Port 9 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Factory 20 Units

Leasable Area 41,200 Sg.m.
Investment Type Freehold 100%

Assets Value 897.1 Million Baht
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Pinthong Industrial Estate

(Project 2) Chonburi

Pinthong Industrial Estate (Project 2) located close
to Pinthong Industrial Estate (Project 1) and just 13
Km. away from Laemchabang Port. Conveniently
transport to Bangkok and Suvarnabhumi Airport. And
easy access to major towns in Eastern Region such
as Sriracha and Pattaya.

Pinthong Industrial Estate (Project 2) can effectively
support high demand of manufacturing in Eastern
area. Easy to link as Supply Chain System or Logistic
Base in Eastern Region.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page
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Pinthong Industrial Estate (Project 2) Chonburi

Location Chonburi

GPS 13.119116, 101.032842

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 100 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 85 Km.
Laemchabang Port 13 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Factory 9 Units

Leasable Area 21,025 Sg.m.

Freehold 59%

Leasehold 41%

Remaining leasehold

26 years

(Ended December 12, 2043)

Investment Type

Assets Value 550.7 Million Baht




Pinthong Industrial Estate

(Project 3) Chonburi

Pinthong Industrial Estate (Project 3) was developed
in order to accommodate growing demand of investor
and manufacturer in Eastern area. Located close to
Pinthong Industrial Estate - Project 1, 2 and just 17 Km.
away from Laemchabang Port. Conveniently transport
to Bangkok and Suvarnabhumi Airport. Complete
with infrastructures and utilities.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page

Pinthong Industrial Estate (Project 3) Chonburi

Location Chonburi

GPS 13.10551, 101.066961

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 104 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 89 Km.
Laemchabang Port 17 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Factory 13 Units

Leasable Area 38,100 Sg.m.

Freehold 87%

Leasehold 13%

Remaining leasehold

26 years

(Ended December 12, 2043)

Investment Type

Assets Value 957.8 Million Baht
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TPARK Eastern Seaboard 1 (A) Chonburi

TPARK Eastern Seaboard is strategically located near

the industrial estates cluster on the Eastern Seaboard.
Including the Eastern Seaboard Industrial Estate,
Hemraj Chonburi Industrial Estate, Pinthong Industrial
Estate and Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate.

TPARK Eastern Seaboard provides the advantages
for the logistics needs of the automotive industry.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page
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TPARK Eastern Seaboard 1 (A) Chonburi

Location Chonburi
GPS 13.032656,
101.14151

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 121 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 119 Km.
Laemchabang Port 40.5 Km.
Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate 9 Km.
Eastern Seaboard Industrial Estate

1 Km.
(Rayong)
Hemaraj Chonburi Industrial Estate 10 Km.
Hemaraj Eastern Seaboard Industrial

13 Km.
Estate
Laemchabang Industrial Estate 40 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 1 25 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project2 21 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 3 17 Km.

Current Asset Investment

6 units

27,016 Sg.m.
Freehold 100%
439.1 Million Baht

Warehouse
Leasable Area
Investment Type

Assets Value




e

D -

TPARK Eastern Seaboard 1 (B) Chonburi

TPARK Eastern Seaboard 1 (B) located near RLLGLE=LECHETELLECRE()No L

the industrial estates cluster on the Eastern Seaboard. | gcation Chonburi
Offers e>.<ce!|ent opportunities for grc?wi.ng d(—?m?nd in GPS 13.000251,
automotive industry and support logistic activities for 101.160822

manufacturers in surrounded industrial estate including
the Eastern Seaboard Industrial Estate, Hemraj Chonburi

Distance from (Kilometers)

Industrial Estate, Pinthong Industrial Estate and Amata ~ Bangkok 126 Km.
City Rayong Industrial Estate. Suvarnabhumi Airport 123 Km.
Laemchabang Port 44.5 Km.

Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate 6 Km.
Hemaraj Chonburi Industrial Estate 14 Km.

Hemaraj Eastern Seaboard Industrial
Estate

Laemchabang Industrial Estate 44 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 1 29 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project2 25 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 3 21 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Warehouse 4 Units
Leasable Area 11,400 Sg.m.
Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group. Investment Type Freehold 100%
Not specific to detallin each page Assets Value 204.7 Million Baht
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TPARK Eastern Seaboard 2 (A) Chonburi

TPARK Eastern Seaboard 2 (A)islocated only 2minutes  BZeGLS=EECUREEERLECPAEVE DL LT

away to the industrial estates cluster in Eastern  Location Chonburi
Seaboard area, another good project to facilitate the GPS 13.092771
logistics needs. 101.088552

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 107 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 103 Km.
Laemchabang Port 21.5 Km.

Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate  18.5 Km.

Eastern Seaboard Industrial Estate

(Rayong) 16 Km.
Hemaraj Chonburi Industrial Estate 6.8 Km.

Hemaraj Eastern Seaboard Industrial
Estate

14 Km.
Laemchabang Industrial Estate 22.5 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 1 10 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project2 6 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 3~ 2 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Warehouse 4 Units
Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group. Leasable Area 15,800 Sq.m.
Not specific to detail in each page Investment Type Freehold 100%
Assets Value 284.2 Million Baht
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TPARK Laemchabang 1 Chonburi

TPARK Laemchabang 1 is strategically located
on Highway 7 (Motorway) just 7 minutes from
Laemchabang Port. Surrounded by a cluster of major
industrial estates, TPARK provides all the advantages
that come from being positioned at the country’s
primary seaport — Laemchabang Port.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page

TPARK Laemchabang 1 Chonburi

Location Chonburi

GPS 13.114945,
100.983088

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 99 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 92 Km.
Laemchabang Port 11 Km.
Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate 24.5 Km.
I(A,\Anr]naetl?acl\llgkgrhno)r}ggﬂstrial Estate 42 Km.
Hemaraj Chonburi Industrial Estate 18 Km.
Laemchabang Industrial Estate 8 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 1 1 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 2 5 Km.

Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 3 9 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Warehouse 21 Units
Leasable Area 69,404 Sg.m.
Investment Type Freehold 100%
Assets Value 1,229.4

Million Baht
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TPARK Laemchabang 2 Chonburi

TPARK Laemchabang 2 is ideally located close to
the Laemchabang Port and Laemchabang Industrial
Estate. Our customers can increase the efficiency in
their logistics operations while able to minimize their
costs of operations.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page
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TPARK Laemchabang 2 Chonburi

Location

GPS

Distance from (Kilometers)

Chonburi

13.126585,
100.956759

Bangkok

Suvarnabhumi Airport
Laemchabang Port

Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate

Amata City Chonburi
(Amata Nakorn) Industrial Estate

Eastern Seaboard Industrial Estate
(Rayong)

Hemaraj Chonburi Industrial Estate
Laemchabang Industrial Estate

Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 1
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 2
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 3

Current Asset Investment

97 Km.
97 Km.
8 Km.
32.1 Km.

47 Km.

25 Km.

23 Km.
5 Km.
6 Km.
10 Km.
14 Km.

Warehouse
Leasable Area
Investment Type

Assets Value

15 Units

43,950 Sg.m.
Freehold 100%
880.0 Million Baht
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TPARK Sriracha Chonburi

TPARK Sriracha is situated midway between Amata
City Chonburi (Amata Nakorn) Industrial Estate and
Laemchabang Port. Suitable for logistics operators
supporting the manufacturing industry as well as
operating distribution centers for import and export
activities via Laemchabang Port.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page

TPARK Sriracha Chonburi

Location Chonburi

GPS 13.173828,
101.002979

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 88 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 83.8 Km.
Laemchabang Port 18 Km.
Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate  32.6 Km.
aTnaet\?aCl\llegrno)r}ggﬂstrial Estate 29.8 Km.
;E;as;i;ng?eaboard Industrial Estate 33.3 Km.
Hemaraj Chonburi Industrial Estate 23 Km.
Laemchabang Industrial Estate 17 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 1 12 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project2 16 Km.
Pinthong Industrial Estate Project 3 20 Km.

Current Asset Investment

5 Units

44,418 Sg.m.
Freehold 100%
764.5 Million Baht
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Warehouse
Leasable Area
Investment Type

Assets Value




TPARK Phan Thong 1 Chonburi

TPARK Phan Thong projects are adjacent to Amata
City Chonburi (Amata Nakorn) Industrial Estate,
strategical located at the midway between Amata
Nakorn Industrial Estate and Laemchabang Port, which
fit for operators who would like to provide logistics
support for their clients with industrial facilities
around the areas. For example, logistics operators
who support raw material prior to delivery to the
manufacturing plant and/or for storing finished
goods for further distribution. Also ideally suited for
distribution center for Import and export activities via
Laemchabang port.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page
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TPARK Phan Thong 1 Chonburi

Chonburi

Location

GPS 13.464547, 101.080527

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 55.6 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 60.4 Km.
Laemchabang Port 59.8 Km.
Inland Container Depot 66.3 Km.
Bangplee Industrial Estate  46.6 Km.
IézfaTechabang Industrial 57 4 Km.
EEZE?? Industrial Estate 518 Km.
Wellgrow Industrial Estate  29.5 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Warehouse 5 Units

Leasable Area 10,600 Sg.m.
Investment Type Freehold 100%

Assets Value 189.3 Million Baht



Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate

Rayong

Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate located on
331 road, strategically located in the certer of
Easetern Seaboard automotive cluster. Surrounded
by a cluster of major industrial estate and closed to
Laemchabang Port. Complete with infrastructures
and utilities. Moreover, This area has never flooded
problem.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page

Amata City Rayong Industrial Estate

Location Rayong

GPS 13.024091, 101.071044

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 114 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 100 Km.
Laemchabang Port 27 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Factory 30 Units

Leasable Area 81,600 Sg.m.

Freehold 79%

Leasehold 21%

Remaining leasehold

27 years

(Ended February 27, 2044)

Investment Type

Assets Value 1844.0 Million Baht
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TPARK Bangna Chachoengsao

TPARK Bangna is strategically located on the Bangna-
Trad, connect to Highway 7 (Motorway)-the main
artery linking the capital and the Eastern Economic
Corridor (EEC).

Close to Suvarnabhumi Airport, Bangkok and
Laemchabang ports, and surrounded by a cluster
of industrial estates, TPARK Bangna provides all
the advantages that come from ready access to all of
the country’s major logistics Hubs.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page
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TPARK Bangna Chachoengsao

Location Chachoengsao
GPS 13.567351, 100.945719

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 30 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 33 Km.
Laemchabang Port 58 Km.
Inland Container Depot 30 Km.
Outer Ring Road 30 Km.
Amata City Chopburi (Amata 19 Km.
Nakorn) Industrial Estate

Bangplee Industrial Estate 22 Km.
Bangpoo Industrial Estate 52 Km.
Ladkrabang Industrial Estate 40 Km.
Wellgrow Industrial Estate 2.3 Km.

Current Asset Investment

81 Units

258,260 Sg.m.

Freehold 31%
Leasehold 69%
Remaining leasehold
26 years

(Ended December 20,
2043)

5,101.1 Million Baht

Warehouse

Leasable Area
Investment Type

Assets Value



Bangpoo Industrial Estate Samut Prakan

Bangpoo Industrial Estate located in Bangpoo Mai
and Phraeksa district, Samut Prakan. Manage by the
Industrial Estate Authority of Thailand (IEAT), being
one of the first industrial estates in Thailand. Provides
advantages in convenient for transportation and
easy for labor sourcing. Adjacent to Bangkok and
conveniently connect to industrial cluster in Eastern
Economic Corridor (EEC) and Laemchabang Deep
Sea Port.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page

Bangpoo Industrial Estate Samut Prakan

Location Samut Prakan

GPS 13.565688, 100.671443

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 37 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 20 Km.
Bangkok Port

(Khlong Toei) 24 Km.
Laemchabang Port 100 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Factory 11 Units

Leasable Area 35,525 Sg.m.
Investment Type Freehold 100%

Assets Value 784.1 Million Baht
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TPARK Bangplee 1 Samut Prakan

TPARK Bangplee 1 is location on Bangna-Trad road

Km. 22, near the industrial ring road bridge connecting  Location Samut Prakan

to other regions of Thailand. Close to Bangkok, @ps 13.594435 100.795269
Suvarnabhumi Airport, and Laemchabang ports.
Superb location for logistics and distribution,

Distance from (Kilometers)

especially for the consumer goods industry and retail ~ 2angkok 14 Km.

operators. Suvarnabhumi Airport 19.4 Km.
Bangkok Port 32.3 Km.
Laemchabang Port 81 Km.
Inland Container Depot 23.9 Km.
Outer Ring Road 14 Km.

Amata City Chopburi (Amata 35 Km.
Nakorn) Industrial Estate

Bangplee Industrial Estate 2.7 Km.
Bangpoo Industrial Estate 21 Km.
Ladkrabang Industrial Estate 24.2 Km.

Wellgrow Industrial Estate 15.9 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Warehouse 10 Units
Leasable Area 76,477 Sg.m.
Investment Type Leasehold 100%
Remaining leasehold
Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group. 26 years
Not specific to detail in each page (Ended February 21, 2043)
Assets Value 1,313.2 Million Baht
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TPARK Bangplee 3 Samut Prakan

TPARK Bangplee 3is located on Lieb Klong Chonlahan

Pijitroad(connectfromBangna-TradRoadKm. 19).Close  Location Samut Prakan
to Bangkok, Suvarnabhumi Airport, and Laemchabang  gps 13.58505, 100.758104
ports. Strategic location for logistics and distribution.

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 15 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 18.7 Km.
Bangkok Port 31.6 Km.
Laemchabang Port 87 Km.
Inland Container Depot 23.3 Km.
Outer Ring Road 15 Km.

Amata City Chonburi (Amata
Nakorn) Industrial Estate

40.5 Km.
Bangplee Industrial Estate 6.3 Km.

Bangpoo Industrial Estate 17.3 Km.
Ladkrabang Industrial Estate 23.6 Km.

Wellgrow Industrial Estate 21.5 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Warehouse 13 Units
Leasable Area 56,700 Sg.m.
Investment Type Leasehold 100%
Remaining leasehold
Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group. 28 years
Not specific to detail in each page (Ended December 20, 2045)
Assets Value 1,059.4 Million Baht

99



TPARK Rojana Prachinburi

TPARK Rojana is situated inside Rojana Prachinburi
Industrial Park, 304 road, providing advantages for the
logistics need of operators who support the automotive/
electronics manufacturing inside the estate. Offering
strategic network to other regions in Thailand and
major sea ports.

In additional, also connect to the Special Economic
Zone in Sakaew province which is dedicated to
the preparation of production bases which will
accommodate ASEAN demands.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page
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TPARK Rojana Prachinburi

Location Prachinburi

GPS 13.810576, 101.54397

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 124 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 111 Km.
304 Industrial Estate 15.1 Km.
Gateway City Industrial Estate ~ 36.1 Km.
Hi-Tech Kabin Industrial Estate  21.4 Km.
Sahapat Industrial Estate Park 44.1 Km.

(Kabinburi)

Current Asset Investment

Warehouse 1 Unit

Leasable Area 10,020 Sg.m.
Investment Type Freehold 100%

Assets Value 198.4 Million Baht



Bangpa-In Industrial Estate located in Klongjig,
Bangpa-in district, Ayutthaya. Strategic located on
highway network, convenient for transporting and
distributing to other regions of Thailand.

Ayutthaya

14.208052, 100.590397

Distance of projects (Kilometers)

Complete with infrastructure and utilities. Moreover,
Bangpa-in Industrial Estate is one of important
electronics manufacturing cluster.

Don Mueang Airport

Suvarnabhumi Airport
Bangkok Port (Khlong Toei)

Current Asset Investment

Leasable Area
Investment Type

Assets Value

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page

56 Km.

41 Km.

95 Km.

65 Km.

13 Units

27,050 Sg.m.

Freehold 100%

594.8 Million Baht
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Hi-Tech Industrial Estate (Ban Wah) located on
Highway No.32 (Asian Highway) Km. 59-60, Ban Wah
Sub-district, Bangpa-in District, Ayutthaya.

Strategic located on highway network, convenient

for transporting and distributing. One of important
electronics manufacturing cluster.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page
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Hi-Tech Industrial Estate (Ban Wah) Ayutthaya
Location Ayutthaya
GPS 14.241765, 100.612377

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 60 Km.
Don Mueang Airport 44 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 85 Km.
Bangkok Port 65 Km.

(Khlong Toei)

Current Asset Investment

Factory 36 Units

Leasable Area 98,828 Sg.m.

Freehold 88%

Leasehold 12%

Remaining leasehold

26 years

(Ended December 11, 2043)

Investment Type

Assets Value 1,999.4 Million Baht



Navanakorn Industrial Promotion Zone is a complete
Industrial Town located on Phaholyothin Road
(Highway 1) at 46 Km. Supporting manufacturers in
various industries. Convenient in Commuting, only 45
minutes away from the center of Bangkok by standard
10 lanes road, express way and only 5 minutes away
from outer ring road. Create simplicity in commuting
to and from many part of the country.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page

Navanakorn Industrial Promotion Zone Pathumthani

Location Pathumthani
GPS 14.116196, 100.618104

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 46 Km.
Don Mueang Airport 33 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 70 Km.

Bangkok Port

(Khlong Toei) DI,

Current Asset Investment

Factory 17 Units
Leasable Area 41,200 Sg.m.
Investment Type Freehold 88%

Leasehold 12%

Remaining leasehold

26 years

(Ended December 11, 2043)

Assets Value 793.4 Million Baht
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Rojana Industrial Park located on Rojana road
(Highway 309) which is connected to Thailand’s Major
Highway No.32 (Asian Highway) and Phaholyothin
road (Highway 1). It takes only 45-60 minutes from
Bangkok, offers excellence transportation to other
regions and fully equipped with infrastructures and
utilities system.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page
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Rojana Industrial Park Ayutthaya
Location Ayutthaya

GPS 14.315149, 100.639153

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok 70 Km.
Don Mueang Airport 59 Km.
Suvarnabhumi Airport 84 Km.
Bangkok Port (Khlong Toei) 75 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Factory 52 Units
Warehouse 3 Units
Leasable Area 140,906 Sg.m.

Freehold 92%
Leasehold 8%
Remaining leasehold
26 years

(Ended December 11,
2043)

Investment Type

Assets Value 2,829.0 Million Baht
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TPARK Wangnoi 1 is strategically located on
Phaholyothin road (Highway 1). Just 200 meters from
the Eastern Outer Ring road for efficient distribution
to Bangkok, Central, North and Northeast Thailand.

Surrounded by major retail distribution centers, ideally
suited for logistics and distribution.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page

TPARK Wangnoi 1 Ayutthaya

Location

GPS

Ayutthaya
14.188418, 100.643169

Distance from (Kilometers)

Bangkok

Don Mueang Airport
Suvarnabhumi Airport
Laemchabang port
Inland Container Depot

Khlongluang Transportation
Station

Outer Ring Road
Hi-Tech Industrial Estate

Navanakorn Industrial
Promotion Zone

Rojana Industrial Park

31 Km.
44 Km.
64 Km.
167 Km.
60 Km.

16 Km.

0.9 Km.
17 Km.

13.5 Km.

26 Km.

Current Asset Investment

Warehouse
Leasable Area
Investment Type

Assets Value

13 Units

67,306 Sg.m.
Freehold 100%
1,452.3 Million Baht
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TPARK Wangnoi 2 located on Phahonyothin road
(Highway 1) Km. 57 (close to TPARK Wangnoi 1). Has
been developed in order to accommodate growing
demand in this area. Just 4 Km. from the Eastern
Outer Ring Road and can connect to Motorway No.6
(Bangpa-in Nakorn Ratchasima) in the future. Offers
efficient distribution to Bangkok and other regions
of Thailand. Especially logistics and distribution to
Northeast region.

Note : Picture in this page is assets of TREIT and TICON group.
Not specific to detail in each page
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TPARK Wangnoi 2 Ayutthaya

Location

GPS

Distance from (Kilometers)

Ayutthaya
14.190108, 100.646503

Bangkok

Don Mueang Airport
Suvarnabhumi Airport
Laemchabang port
Inland Container Depot

Khlongluang Transportation
Station

Outer Ring Road
Hi-Tech Industrial Estate

Navanakorn Industrial
Promotion Zone

Rojana Industrial Park

Current Asset Investment

33 Km
46 Km
66 Km
169 Km
62 Km

18 Km

2.9 Km
19 Km

15.5 Km

28 Km

Warehouse
Leasable Area
Investment Type

Assets Value

4 Units

9,800 Sg.m.
Freehold 100%
178.1 Million Baht
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Unitholders by type, Nationality and Top 10 unitholders

Unitholders by Type Unitholders by Nationality
(As at 27 December 2017) (As at 27 December 2017)

TICON group
22%

Retails
28%

Others
1%

Institution
49%

Top 10 unitholders (As at 27 December 2017)

Unitholder Name Number of Units Ratio (%)
(Unit mm)

TICON Group/ 575 22.08%
Social Security Office (SSO) 448 17.22%
Bangkok Life Assurance PCL 158 6.06%
Bangkok Bank PCL 105 4.03%
Muang Thai Life Assurance PCL 53 2.03%
SCB Income Plus 39 1.48%
Bangkok Insurance PCL 37 1.44%
Mitsui & Co (Asia Pacific) Pte. Ltd. &5 1.34%
One Property Plus Fund 22 0.85%
UBS AG SINGAPORE BRACH 20 0.78%

Total 1,492 57.31%

Remark : 1.TICON group = TICON Industrial Connection PCL and TICON International Pte. Ltd
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1. Investor Relationship Management
The REIT Manager manage TREIT to allocate the benefits among unitholders constantly,
growingly, firmly and continues to foster strong relationship with all unitholders by engaging
them in regular and transparent communications. In additional, The REIT manager seek to
communicate proactively and allow existing and potential investors to make informed decision.

From unitholders approval to convert conversion PFPOs (TFUND, TLOGIS and TGROWTH) into
TREIT, number of unitholders increase to around 8,000. The REIT manager have intention and
commitment to adopt high standard of transparency and regularly public TREIT information
to all unitholders, potential investors, analysts and media through various communications
channels such as the TREIT website, annual general meeting, extra ordinary meeting, social
media (Line@ and Facebook) and other investor relation activities which shall be announced
throughout the year.

Multiple Communications Channels (Via Website, Facebook and Line)

mee—, Estate

”"ﬁ Investment
- 2 Trust

-

a B
i | + 3

492 - 489 8605 067
ra e —— \

Website Facebook Line@
(www.treit.co.th) www.facebook.com/Ticonreit @ticonreit

TREIT’s website allows unitholders for comfortable access to overall TREIT information.
Information such as REIT unit data, Announcements, Quarterly and Annually Financial
statements, new releases, AGM and EGM presentation slide, Annual Report, Investor
relationship activities, REIT strategy and other TREIT information are regularly updated
to keep unitholders and stakeholders simultaneously update of the TREIT’s performance
in a timely basis.

In addition to TREIT’s website, Unitholders can update TREIT performance, announce-
ment and others information from social media channels which are Facebook and Line@.
The REIT manager will response and provide information to unitholders in a timely basis.

General Announcement

Unitholders can update TREIT new release from other channels such as SETTRADE
website (www.settrade.com) and SET website (www.set.or.th).
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Annual and Extraordinary General Meeting
TREIT will hold its Annual General Meeting (*“AGM”) every April for reporting TREIT
annual performance and audited financial statement and/or other matters which required
approval from unitholders such as assets acquisition which have value over 30% of
REIT total asset value in each period, issue debenture and etc. Extraordinary General
Meetings ("EGM”) will be held, when required, to discuss specific issues and request
approval in matters which not proposed to unitholders in AGM.

Key investors activities for fiscal year 2017

26 April 2017 Annual General Meeting for fiscal year 2017

7 October 2017 TICON Investor Day

11 October 2017 (PFEree?E(SaSl\i/cl))n of Extraordinary General Meeting No.1/2017
19 October 2017 Extraordinary General Meeting No.1/2017

28 December 2017 18t Trading day of new Trust units after conversion at SET

2. Distribution policy, Historical distribution, Unit price movement for fiscal year 2017 and
Summary financial calendar and IR events

Rules, Policy and Distribution Payment to Unitholders
TREIT has distribution payment policy to be made at least 2 times per year. However,
the REIT Manager may consider more distribution payments to unitholders. Distribution
would be paid under:

1.

The REIT Manager will pay dividend to unitholders at least 90% of the adjusted net
profit of the accounting year within 90 days from the end of the accounting year or
the accounting period in which the benefits are to be paid, as the case may be or
in any ratio as specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission. For capital
reduction, The REIT manager can decide to pay distribution inform of capital reduction
in case TREIT have material unrealized loss from revaluation of assets and/or
other matters .

In case that TREIT has accumulated loss, the REIT Manager will not pay distribution
to unitholders.

Restriction and Method of Distribution Payment to Unitholders

1.

Where the facts appear to the REIT Manager that a person or persons in the same
group holds trust units over 50% of the total outstanding trust units, the REIT Manager
will notify such person(s) without delay regarding restriction on benefits payment.
The REIT Manager will not pay distribution to such person or persons in the same

109



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¢ TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust

110

group who holds over 50% of the total outstanding trust units unless otherwise stated
or exempted by the relevant laws. The dividend of the portion exceeding 50% of
the total outstanding trust units shall be given to other unit holders in proportion to
their holding ratio and the REIT Manager will consider such distribution allocation
to unitholders in that payment period.

The REIT Manager will make announcement of distribution payment and the book
closing date, by the following means:

(a) Publication in at least 1 newspaper.
(b) Posting a natification in anywhere of the REIT Manager’s official place.

(c) Sending a notification to the unitholders whose name appear in TREIT’s register
as at the book closing date and to the Trustee or announcing through the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

The REIT Manager would pay distribution by bank transfer to unitholders’ bank
account or in form of an A/C payee cheque payable to the unitholder only in the
name and at the address under registered name at the book closing date.

If unitholders do not exercise the right to receive distribution within the period
prescribed in the Civil and Commercial Code, the REIT Manager will not use such
distribution for purposes other than interest of TREIT.

If distribution (dividend) payment per unit during the accounting year is equal or
lower than 0.10 Baht, the REIT Manager reserves the right not to pay dividend and
accumulate such dividend amount to be paid in the next payment period.

History of Dividend Payment and Capital Reduction since Trust established

Q12015 Q22015 Q32015 Q42015 Q12016 Q22016 Q32016 Q42016 Q12017 Q22017 Q32017 Nov-Dec

and Oct 2017 2017

Remark : 1 Distribution payment for Q2 2015 composed of dividend and capital reduction
2 Distribution payment for Q3 2015 composed of dividend and capital reduction
3 Distribution payment for Q4 2015 composed of dividend and capital reduction
4 Distribution payment for November and December 2017 composed of dividend and capital reduction



TREIT Closing Price and Trading Volume in FY2017

From success of conversion PFPOs
into TREIT, making TREIT become
“the largest industrial REIT in Thailand”

19 October 2017

Market price of TREIT unit for FY2017 Trust unitholders in EGM 1/2017 Consider‘ed

1% Highest on 28/12/2017: 10.50 Baht/Unit and approved support conversion
Average : 9.51 Baht/Unit PFPOs into TREIT

Lowest on 05/07/2017: 8.15 Baht/Unit

10

9.5

28 December 2017
Start trading of new trust units
after conversion PFPOs into TREIT

8.5
10.00
9.00
8.00
7.00
6.00
Trading volume of TREIT unit for FY2017 5.00
Highest on 27/12/2017 : 8.70 million units 4.00
Average : 0.50 million units 3.00
Lowest on 23/01/2017 : 0.01 million units

Q2 2017
A L TREIT market price decreased
was came from market trend on that period

2.00
1.00
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Jan 17 Feb 17 Mar 17 Apr 17 3 May 17 Jun 17 Jul 17 2 Aug 17 Sep 17 Oct 17 Nov 17 Dec 17

Summary distribution payment and announcement of audited financial statement for FY2017

Distribution payment Distribution payment
from Q4 2016 performance from Q1 2017 performance
[ ]

Announcement of the audited financial
statement of FY2016 and performance result

Announcement of the audited
financial statement of Q1 2017

Announcement of the audited
financial statement of Q2 2017

Trust unitholders in EGM 1/2017
considered and approved support

Distribution payment
from Q3 2017 performance

: e : |
O===c=c=ocoo=o=== @1  soesmm=oom=—o——=- O Ose=o====c===c= Q2  cmceommooo—=oe- °
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conversion PFPOs into TREIT ° and Completion of PFPOs
Distribution payment Announcement of (AN, LOELE
S . and TGROWTH)
from Q2 2017 performance the audited financial into TREIT

statement of Q3 2017
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Analyst Coverage
The Following brokerage firms provide
research coverage on TREIT as at
31 December 2017:
e Thanachart Securities PCL
e DBS Vickers Securities (Thailand)

Co., Ltd

e Capital Nomura Securities PCL.

Contact Investor Relationship

Investor relationship have pleasure
to answer and provide information to
unitholders and potential investors or
any parties.

For enquiries or feedback on TREIT,
please contact to The REIT manager:

Head of Strategic Finance,
Investment and Investor Relations
Tel: +66 2679 6565

Fax : +66 2287 3153

E-mail : ir.treit@tmanrm.com
Website : www.treit.co.th




TREIT

TICON FreeholdandLeasehold
Real Estate Investment Trust
13" FI., Sathorn City Tower
175 South Sathorn Rd., Sathorn
District, Bangkok 10120

Tel : +66 2679 6565

Fax : +66 2287 3153
Website : http://th.treit.co.th/

REIT Manager

TICON Management Co., Lid
13" Fl., Sathorn City Tower
175 South Sathorn Rd., Sathorn
District, Bangkok 10120

Tel : +66 2679 6565

Fax : +66 2287 3153

Trustee

BBLAsset Management Co., Ltd.
7" 21" Fl.and 26", Sathorn City
Tower 175 South Sathorn Rd.,
Sathorn District, Bangkok
10120

Tel : +66 2674 6468

Fax : +66 2679 6882
Website : http://bblam.co.th/
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registrar

Thailand Securities Depository

Co., Ltd.

93 Ratchadaphisek Road,

Dindaeng Bangkok 10400

Tel : +66 2009 9999

Website : http://set.or.th/tsd/
th/tsd.html

Auditors

EY Office Limited

33 Floor, Lake Rajada
Office complex
193/136-137 Rajadapisek
Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok
10110

G.P.O. Box 1047, Bangkok
10501, Thailand

Tel : +66 2264 9090

Fax : +66 2264 0789-90
Website : http://ey.com

Board of Directors
TICON Management
Co., Ltd.
(REIT Manager)

Mr. Sun Vithespongse
Chairman of the Board
and Independent Director

Mr. Sopon Punyaratabandhu
Independent Director

Mr. Virapan Pulges

Director

Mr. Michio Maeda

Director

Mr. Sopon Racharaksa
Director

Mr. Peerapat Srisukont
Managing Director

Secretary to Board
of Directors of
TICON Management
Co., Ltd.
(REIT Manager)

Mr. Bhumpharn
Arunthammakul

Head of Strategic Finance,
Investment and IR
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KEY RISKS

1. Risk from Operation of TREIT

114

1.1

1.2

1.3

Risk in relation to the performance of obligations

In order to invest in and seek benefit from the assets, TREIT will enter into agreements
in relation to the investment and administration of TREIT’s assets in order to seek benefit
from the properties, and take any action to ensure that the other party complies with
the terms and conditions of the agreements.

Although there are terms and conditions set out in the agreements, the other party may
breach the agreements or any event may occurred, which causes an event of default or
the termination of the agreements. In case of nonperformance, which causes an event
of default or the termination of the agreements, it is entitled to terminate the agreement,
and claim for damages including the loss of income.

Risk in relation to the solicitation of lessees when lease term is close to expire

Part of assets to be invested by the Trust are leasehold rights in lands with a leased
term of 27 and 30 years sinced the dates of leasedhold registration, the Trust can seek
benefit from the investment assets for such period. Therefore, TREIT may have risk in
soliciting lessees when the leased period is close to expiry, due to the fact that leased
period is one of the factors lessees take into consideration prior to entering into the
lease agreement. However, most of lease agreement have period not over 3 years thus
this risk tend to effect to last 3 years of remaining leasedhold. Moreover, REIT manager
have confidence that REIT manager can find tenants who need factory and warehouse
during the last 3 years before end of leasehold rights period.

Risk from operating result of the Trust rely on ability of the Property Manager

For the investment, TREIT will appoint TICON and TPARK as the Property Managers
for factories and warehouses respectively. The Property Managers will be responsible
for operating and managing the assets as assigned by REIT Manager which includes
seeking benefits from such asssets, for example, soliciting new lessees, renewing
lease agreements and service agreements with existing lessees, advertisement, public
relations, maintenance and development of the investment assets to be in a good
condition. The ability of the Property Manager to perform its tasks will have direct impact
to the Trust’s operational and financial results.

Additionally, if TICON and TPARK cannot perform their duties as the Property Managers
for any reasons, TREIT may not be able to appoint another manager to manage the
investment assets as good as TICON and TPARK although TREIT would offer competitive
remuneration for the Property Manager, which would have an adverse effect to the
operational ability, financial results of TREIT.
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1.4 Risks arising from potential conflicts of interest between TREIT and TPARK and TICON
that may affect the operation of TREIT
The REIT manager of TREIT appointed TPARK and TICON the administrator of real
estate assets which included invested warehouses and factories respectively. Meanwhile,
TPARK and TICON are still the owners of warehouses and factories in industrial estates
and parks in which TREIT invested. In addition, TPARK and TICON are the ones which
offer warehouses and factories to TREIT to consider purchasing. These roles which TI-
CON and TPARK have had might one day cause conflicts of interests to TREIT in terms
of either selections of warehouses and factories to sell to TREIT or seeking new tenants.
Besides, TICON is a major unitholder of TREIT and serves as the administrator of real
estates and in charge of finding tenants to rent assets of TREIT, TICON and TPARK.

However, the management of TREIT proposed the measures to prevent the conflicts
of interests mentioned above, thoroughly imposing rules and regulations of purchasing
warehouses and factories, functions and areas of TICON and TPARK'’s responsibilities
as the administrator of real estates as follows;

e The REIT manager of TREIT impose the criteria for direction and management,
proposing that the property manager of real estates present information of warehous-
es and factories owned by TPRAK or TICON or TREIT equally. Besides, the REIT
manager of TREIT are the one who price the rent of warehouses and factories which
are comparable when taking building size, utility space, locations and types of
buildings into account. All these details are arranged at the similar levels for
transparency and for customers to have sufficient information of warehouses and
factories for rent for decision equally.

e Concerning the presentation of assets owned by the administrators of real estates
of TREIT to interested customers, the property manager will present the information
of warehouses and factories which are unoccupied without mentioning their ownership
of those assets. The measure will enhance equality of presentations. Besides,
the property manager of real estates will arrange reports or lists of customers interested
in renting assets owned by the property manager and TREIT to the management
monthly. These reports mention the locations and details of warehouses and factories
which customers are interested in. The measure helps the management examine
work transparency of the property manager of real estates in terms of seeking tenants
to rent assets owned by TREIT, the property manager of real estates and/or mutual
property funds which were under the property manager of real estate administrators.

e The REIT manager of TREIT are in charge of imposing forms and fee rates of the
property manager of real estates which TICON and TPARK will reasonably receive
from serving as the property manager.

e The REIT manager of TREIT impose the direction of considering the overall operations
of the real estate administrators. The REIT manager of TREIT can change the property
manager in case of the following.
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e Annual overall operations of real estates which TREIT has invested in lower than
operational speculation stated in annual plan proposed by TREIT's administrators
and approved by The REIT Manager for two fiscal years in succession except for
force majeure.

e Rental rates managed by TPARK or TICON (the property manager) lower than 50%
for three months in succession except for force majeure.

However, in some cases, the property manager of real estates might consider repairing
the assets in which TREIT has invested in. The property manager might process the
repairs on their own and make reimbursement as TREIT's expense in case of minor
repairs or professional repairs which require very limited duration. Still, in case of costly
repairs, the REIT manager have a policy to hire professionals to estimate prices for initial
consideration.

Risks arising from entering loan agreements

As at December 31, 2017, the ratios of loan to total asset of TREIT was approximately
17.33 percent with amounting of Baht 5,540 million which composed of Debentures Baht
1,800 million and short-term loan Baht 3,740 million

TREIT might be at risk from borrowing and repayment of interest and/or principal in part
or in whole cause the breach of the loan agreement and/or the terms of the relevant
debentures. In such cases, this could lead to another default on the contract (Cross
Default).

At present, REIT Managers do not set a clear plan for repaying bank loans and/or
debentures due to REIT Managers have a policy to issue and offer new debentures
and/or loans from financial institutions to repay principal of bank loans and repay the
debentures were issued (Refinancing). However, TREIT may be at risk of not issuing
and offering new debentures and/or refinancing a new loan agreement or offer a new
loan agreement and/or be able to issue and offer new debentures. However, the terms
of the new loan agreement and/or new debentures are not as good as the original terms
and conditions.

In the event that TREIT was unable to repay partial of the loan and/or repay principal of
the debentures were issued (Refinancing) according to the above events, REIT Managers
might consider alternatives to financing and/or repayment of principal such as the issuance
and offering of new Trust Units including sale of some TREIT’s properties to pay off debt.
This might affect the returns to the unitholders.Nevertheless, REIT Managers would consider
the options that would be the best benefit to the unitholders by taking consideration of
ability to pay interest bearing debt, the ability to make commitments, such as the ratios
of debt to capital, and the continued ability to generate income of TREIT in the future.
However, REIT Manager believes that the risk that TREIT would default on the debt is low.
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2. Risks in relation to the Ability to Seek Benefit from the Assets
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2.2

Risk from higher competition which may result in the decrease of number of the lessees
Real Properties business operators of the similar nature as the trust may compete for
credible lessees to lease their Real Properties. Such competition may have an adverse
effect on performance of TREIT. In addition, such competitors may have access to TREIT
and other advantages to compete with thetrust. Such competition may increase cost of
the Real Properties management, decrease the occupancy rate or the rental that the
trust collects from the lessees.

Risks of domestic political and economic situations

Changes in factors affecting the domestic economy and the overall global economy as
well as macroeconomic factors such as the rate of economic expansion, government
policy on trade, investment and foreign affairs, the Bank of Thailand monetary policy and
the government fiscal policy, the property prices in the country, the value of domestic
consumption and political uncertainties in the country, are among the factors that influence
the decision to rent a warehouse and factory of existing tenants and future prospects,
especially entrepreneurs from abroad who are the main tenants of TREIT’s properties.
These uncertainties may also affect the rental rates.

With the awareness of the risk of uncertainties in Thailand, economically and politically,
the REIT Manager is to focus on the development of business strategies to enhance
the strengths of the invested properties especially in the view of target customers both
domestic and abroad. The key strategies include the selection of properties, which
located in high potential areas, the investment in high-quality properties and the delivery
of comprehensive services and solutions to assist business operations of retail tenants.
All these will build competitive advantages and retain customer base in a time of
economic recession. In addition, the public sector and government agencies have
actively supported the industrial and investment sector in the country through various
measures such as the special promotion through the Board of Investment to encourage
industrial enterprises that move their production base to Thailand.

However, if the global economy or the regional economy are badly affected and move into
recession, or there are political unrest or conflicts in the country, the domestic economy
and the Stock Exchange of Thailand would hardly avoid the impacts. Consequently, the
demand for rental warehouse and factory, the turnover of tenant’s business, the financial
status of TREIT and the price of the trust unit, will also be severely affected. Since the
REIT Manager cannot be in control of all these factors, it cannot guarantee that the
country’s political situations now and in the future will have any significant impacts on
the Trust’s operation, its financial status, business turnover of its tenants and the price
of theunit trust.
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Risk from termination or non-renewal of the lease agreement

TREIT has risks in case where certain lessees may not renew the lease agreements
or certain lessees may request for an adjustment of the terms and conditions in the
lease agreements which are less favourable to TREIT compared with the existing lease
agreements or several lessees do not renew the lease agreements and TREIT is not
able to find new lessees within a suitable timeframe. The above mentioned situations
may directly affect cash flow and the operational results of TREIT. Nevertheless, in the
normal proceeding, the Property Managers will discuss with the lessees in advance prior
to the termination of the lease term. As a result, the Property Managers will be able to
look for new lessees to replace the existing lessees who do not wish to renew the lease
agreements. This is shown in the track record of the Property Managers’ operational
results, who had managed to achieve high occupancy rate of the investment assets.

Risk in relation to the ability to pay rental and service fees of the lessees

The rentals that TREIT will receive from the lessees under the lease agreements and the
service agreements are major income of TREIT. Therefore, financial weakness of the
lessees due to company-specific or industry wide reasons will adversely impact the
performance of TREIT. Normally, the lessees have to pay rental deposit as a security at
the rate of approximately 3-6 months of rental, whereby TREIT may forfeit such deposit
if TREIT cannot collect the rentals from the lessee when due. However, in the case that
TREIT has to evict the lessees pursuant to the laws because the lessees fail to pay the
rentals or breach the lease agreements. In practice, it may take more than 6 months for
the lessees to move out and/or for TREIT to find new lessees. Such delays may directly
affect income of TREIT. However, in

Risks of concentration of retail tenants and/or industrial and/or the nationality of
the tenants

As at December 31, 2017, the top 10 tenants of the investment assets paided total rental
fee of 22 percent of total rental and service income that TREIT received from all invested
assets. While the contribution of first ranked tenant accounted for 5.26 percent of total
rental and service income that TREIT received from all invested assets. TREIT is subject
to the risks of the major tenants unable to pay the rent, cancel the lease agreement or
not renew the agreement.

Apart from the above mentioned risk of tenant concentration, TREIT is subject to the risk
of concentration of the tenant’s industry and/or the tenant’s nationality. If any industry is
shrinking or problems arose in the conflicts between the countries, it could impact such
tenants to cancel the rent and/or not renew the contract, which will consequently affect
the performance of TREIT.

However, TPARK and TICON, as the Property Manager, believe that the properties that
TREIT invested are in prime location and it is a common practice that business operators
will choose to stay in a cluster of business partners and their supply chains. Also the
government’s policies to enhance relations with foreign countries and foreign investors
reduce the chance that the existing tenants will move out and/or discontinue the rental
contracts. And the possibility to find new tenants to replace is high.



2.6

2.7

2.8

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¢ TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust

Risk relating to construction permit

The lessee may modify the property leased from the Trust which requires a modification
permit from the relevant local authority. In cases where the leased property is modified
without obtaining the buildings modification permit, the local authority may request the
modifier or the owner of the buildings to reinstate the illegal modification to original
conditions or suspend the use of the modified parts of the buildings. Therefore, there are
risks that the trust may incur expenses from demolishing the modified part if the local
officer has such order but the lessee fails to do so.

Risk associates to the handover of the land after the land lease agreement has ended

TREIT will invest in the leasehold of the land whereby TREIT will enter into the land
lease agreements and the land and constructions lease agreements with TICON and
TPARK, which, according to the lease agreements, the Trust has obligations to demolish
the buildings and any constructions on the land in order to handover the land back to
TICON and TPARK at the end of the lease term. TREIT, therefore, has risks associated to
obligations and incurred expenses in order to demolish the buildings and constructions.

However, TREIT can bring remainders from demolish factory and warehouse to sell for
offset demolish expense. In additional, TREIT have 180 days to send right of land to
TICON and TPARK therefore this is risk is not material effect to TREIT.

This demolish might change in the future which shall have cost to TREIT and might effect
to financial statement position of TREIT in the period of lease maturity or terminate

Risk of expropriation of some or all of TREIT’s invested assets under the expropriation
law, which may affect TREIT’s utilization of such assets and impact the performance of
TREIT

In the event of expropriation of some or all of the invested assets in accordance with the
rules and procedures prescribed in the Expropriation of Immovable Property Act B.E.
2530 (1987) (with amendments) and other related laws (“Law on Expropriation”), TREIT
may not receive any compensation under the law due to not meeting the prescribed
criteria, or receive compensation with the amount less than the invested amount, which
will significantly impact TREIT’s performance and its financial status.

For the assets which TREIT invested in the leasehold right, if the assets are expropriated
partially or entirely, TPARK agreed to return the rental fee of such asset in partial to the
Trust within 30 days from the date of TPARK receives the expropriation compensation
as stated in lease agreement.
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For the investment assets, there is a lease agreement, which is still in effect, of 1 unit
with 24,043 square meters warehouse space, which is less than 6.5 percent of gross
leasable area of the initial invested assets. This lease agreement included the clause
requiring the lessor, in case of property was expropriated, to compensate for actual and
reasonable damages and expenses and to use the best effort to supply new rental space
and/or build new warehouse for the tenant. When the Trust invested in such asset, it is
obligated to fulfil the obligations under such agreement over the lease period. However,
the Trust has made an agreement with TPARK which required TPARK, in the event of
expropriation, to be responsible for the implementation of such provisions to the retail
tenants and all related costs.

Risk regarding the tenants exercising their right in the lease agreement made with TPARK
and/or TICON

Currently, there are some lease agreement signed with TPARK and/or TICON, which
grants the tenant the right to terminate the land lease agreement and/or warehouse and/
or factory and/or service agreement and/or common area service agreement. (If any)
(“Lease Agreement”) before the expiration of the contract period. Thus, if the tenant
has exercised after a period of 12 months from the start of the contract (Option to Early
Terminate) by written notice at least 3 months in advance without the deposit.

In the event the tenant exercises such right as mention above within the remaining
period of the current lease (Excluding the case where the tenant exercises the option
to swap to other TREIT’s assets) TPARK and/or TICON (As the case may be) agrees
to compensate to TREIT in the amount equal to the rental security as specified in the
lease agreement. Therefore, TREIT will not be affected by the tenant’s exercise of the
rights under the contract.

However, if the lessee would like to renew the lease after the current lease expires, REIT
Manager may consider the option to swap and the right to terminate the lease agreement
before the expiration without the deposit (Option to Early Terminate) to encourage
the tenant to renew the lease. In this case, if the tenant exercised such right after the
renewal of the lease, TREIT are at risk of being compensated for any rental payments
from TPARK and/or TICON. Then, REIT Managers may negotiate with tenants or assign
Property Management to negotiate with the tenant for amendment of conditions without
the option to swap and the right to terminate the lease agreement before the expiration
without the deposit (Option to Early Terminate), or REIT Manager may negotiate with
TPARK and/or TICON to provide TPARK and/or TICON as the property manager and
the former lessor to compensate the rental fee as specified in the new lease agreement
to reduce the risk and taking into account the benefits of the unitholders.
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LEGAL DISPUTE

TREIT has no legal dispute that may significantly and adversely impact to TREIT’s business
operation.

HISTORY OF PUNISHMENT

AND FINE PENALTY

1. History of punishment and fine penalty of the REIT Manager
The REIT Manager has no punishment and fine penalty according to the Securities and
Exchange Act B.E 2535 (and its amendment) and TREIT for Transactions in Capital Market
Act B.E 2550.

2. History of punishment and fine penalty of Directors and Management of the REIT
Manager
Directors and Management of the REIT Manager had no punishment and fine penalty
according to the Securities and Exchange Act B.E 2535 (and its amendment) and TREIT
for Transactions in Capital Market Act B.E 2550.
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The REIT Manager recognizes the importance of good corporate governance since it is
necessary for the management of TREIT and helps build confidence among its unitholders.
It also allows the unitholders, investors and the public to get informed and be able to monitor
TREIT operations conveniently, quickly, equitably and efficiently. The REIT Manager has
managed TREIT according to the Trust Deed and related law, the REIT Manager believes
that TREIT has good management highly accountable Board of Directors and management,
and effective control mechanism with check and balance. While good corporate governance
is critical and necessary for managing TREIT for sustainable development and benefit of the
unitholders. Following are key principles of TREIT good corporate governance.

1.1 Right of Unitholders
The REIT Manager is aware of its duty to promote and protect the right of unitholders
including basic shareholder rights abided by laws as follows:

(1) Rightto approve the connected transactions or the acquisition or disposal of assets
with the size specified by law and related regulations;

(2) Right to buy and sell trust units

Every unitholder has the right to by and sell the trust units independently. The REIT
Manager has appointed the Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited: TSD to act
as the Registrar in order to facilitate the unitholders regarding the registration and trust
certificate (Please see details in the topic “Registrar and Auditor”);

(3) Rightto vote on items in the agenda presented in the Unitholders’ meeting

Every unitholder has the right to participate in the unitholders’ meetings and to exercise
his/her right to vote on an equitable basis according to the number of units that he/she
holds.In the voting process, the REIT Manager will prepare voting ballots and give to
every unitholder during the registration process before the meeting starts. Barcode system
is used for the meeting registration and the vote counting of each meeting agenda. The
REIT Manager will announce the voting results after the voting of each agenda so that the
unitholders will be informed of the results immediately;

(4) Right to equally earn the returns of investment

Each unitholder has the right to receive the distribution at the rate of not less than 90%
of adjusted net profit of each fiscal year or at any rate specified by the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The distribution will be paid within 90 days after the end date of
fiscal year or of other period, which TREIT announces to pay the distribution. (Please see
details in the topic “Dividend Payment Policy”);
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1.2 Disclosure of complete, sufficient, trustworthy and timely information to all stakeholders
The REIT Manager emphasizes the importance of facilitating the unitholders to access
the TREIT’s information conveniently, evenly and equally by disclosing the accurate,
complete and timely information on regular basis. The information including financial
information, the operating results of TREIT and other important information, which will
support the unitholder’'s decision about his/her investment, are disseminated through
various channels and medias of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the TREIT’s Annual
Report, and the REIT Manager’s website.

2. Sub-Committee
Presently, TMAN as the REIT Manager is managed by the Board of Directors and management
who has proper qualifications as defined by the guidelines in the Capital Market Supervisory
Board’s concerning the qualification of person in capital market.

3. The Board of Directors’ Meeting
The REIT Manager has arranged the meeting of the Board of Directors at least one time in
each quarter to consider the operation of the TREIT, with the following procedures:

1. Compliance and Investor Relations Department shall send out the invitation together with
meeting agenda and supporting documents with necessary contents for consideration
to every director at least 7 days prior to the meeting date, so that the directors will have
sufficient times to review the information prior to the meeting.

2. The proposed agenda for the Board of Directors’ meeting shall be about the operations of
TREIT including the operating result, the annual budget, the distribution, the arrangement
of unitholder’s meeting, the investment in additional assets, the connected transactions,
business and investment plan as well as the progress in the implementation of the business
plan.

3. In every meeting, the number of attending directors shall be more than one half of total
directors. Every director has the right to vote for one vote. The director who has a conflict
of interest in any matter shall have no right to vote on such matter.

4. At the meeting, the Chairman of the Board will oversee the allocation of sufficient time
for management to provide documents and information to debate important issues, and
sufficient time for the directors to discuss the important issues. All directors are free to
comment and propose the agenda.

5. There shall be the minute with the record keeping of all related documents in accurate,

complete and checkable manners. The minutes which are certified from the Board of
Directors shall be kept as evidence for future reference.
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4. Rules for proper use of Inside Information
The Director and management shall not use of the material information of TREIT which not
been disclosed to the public for their own benefit or others. For making control over this
matter, the Company has a policy that the Directors and management have to report on
trading unit trust to Compliance and Investor Relations Department and submit staff dealing
report to the Securities and Exchange Commission.

5. Process and Factors in Consideration of Investment and Management of TREIT
5.1 Investment in Core Assets of TREIT
The REIT Manager takes the following actions before acquisition of each core asset.

(1) Conduct a due diligence on assets;
(2) Organize valuation of assets under investment as specified in the Trust Deed;

(3) Establish risk prevention measure or remedy measure for potential damage caused
by breach of agreements or non-enforcement under lease agreements, and disclose
such risk prevention measures to the Trustee and unitholders in case of leasehold
investment in form of sub-lease.

For acquisition of additional core assets, the REIT Manager shall take additional actions as follows:

(1) Propose to the Trustee for consideration and approval of investment in assets as
specified in the Trust Deed and related laws;

(2) Apply for approval for investment in assets as follows:

(2.1) Investment in assets owned by the REIT Manager or a connected person

(a) Exceptthe transactions that have already been disclosed in this disclosure;

(b) For transactions value over 1 million Baht or equal to or above 0.03% of
the net asset value of TREIT, whichever is higher, an approval must be
obtained from the Board of Directors;

(c) For transactions value equal to or above 20 million Baht or over 3% of the
net asset value of TREIT, whichever is higher, an approval must be obtained
by resolution of a meeting of unitholders;

(d) The REIT Manager shall appoint a financial advisor regarding connected
transactions to be entered into with the REIT Manager so that the Board
of Directors and/or unitholders can make informed decision on approval
of investment in such assets;

(e) The REIT Manager shall prohibit a person who is connected to the assets
under disposal from participating in approval of investment in such assets.

(2.2) Investment in assets owned by a person who is not the fund manager or a
connected person
(a) Forinvestmentin assets with value equal to or above 10%o0f total asset value
of TREIT, an approval must be obtained from the Board of Directors;
(b) For investment in assets with value equal to or above 30% of total asset
value of TREIT, an approval must be obtained by a three-fourth of total
votes of unitholders who attend the meeting and are eligible to vote.
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5.2 Criteria for Investment in Core Assets and Equipment
Acquisition of core assets and equipment by TREIT must be in accordance with
the criteria specified in the Trust Deed. The material details are summarized below:

(1)

(2)

It must an investment in property in category of land and factory, warehouse and/
or office buildings for acquisition of ownership or possessory right;

In case of acquisition of possessory right, the property must be acquired by mean
of issuance of a Nor.Sor.3 Kor. In case of leasehold, the property must be acquired
by mean of issuance of a title deed or a possessory right deed in a form of Nor.
Sor.3 Kor;

Properties to be acquired must not be enforced under the law on property right or
dispute unless the REIT Manager and the Trustee jointly consider and issue a written
opinion that such enforcement under the law on property right or such dispute has
no material effect on making profit from the property and condition of acquisition of
such property will benefit unitholders;

An agreement for acquisition of a property must not specify an agreement or
an obligation that may prevent the trust from disposing the property at a fair price
(at the time of disposal) such as a pre- emptive right at fixed price;

Properties and/or assets to be acquired which are classified as core assets as
prescribed in the notification of The Capital Market Supervisory Board must be ready
for profit making with minimum aggregate value of 75% of the units under offering
(if any) for each issuance including borrowing amounts (if any). TREIT may make
investment in projects under construction where the total value of investment amount
for acquisition and development of the property until ready for profit making must
not exceed 10% of total value of assets of TREIT (after offering of units) and TREIT
must be able to prove that there is sufficient working capital for such development
without affecting the survival of the trust;

Properties to be acquired must be fully valuated including verification of title deed for
disclosure to investors at least six months prior to application for acquisition but not
exceeding one year preceding investment in such property minimum two valuators
who are approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission;

Properties to be acquired must have minimum aggregate value of Baht 500 million
for the first time investment in core assets;

In case of indirect investment in core assets by TREIT, it must be an investment in
property specified in (1) - (7) above through shareholding in a company incorporated
with objectives to engage in the same business as TREIT as specified in the Trust
Deed. Such investment must meet the following criteria:
(a) TREIT must hold shares in such company in a ratio as prescribed in the
notification of the Securities and Exchange Commission or The Capital
Market Supervisory Board;
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5.4

(b) TREIT must be able to prove that there are measures or mechanism to
enable the Trustee and the REIT Manager to take care and control such
company to ensure the operation as specified in the Trust Deed and the
criteria of the Securities and Exchange Commission in a similar manner
as if TREIT makes direct investment in such core assets.

(9) If value of properties to be acquired is above 5% higher than the minimum valuation
price assigned by the valuation company within one year preceding the acquisition,
facts and reasons of acquisition at such price must be provided.

Disposal of Core Assets of TREIT
The REIT Manager may consider disposing core assets of TREIT under the following
procedure:

(1) The REIT Manager must have core assets valuated by an independent valuator in
accordance with the criteria specified in the notification of Office of the Securities
and Exchange Commission;

(2) Disposal of core assets must be overt and contain transaction details and approval
procedure as specified in the Trust Deed and it must be approved by the trustee
or a resolution of a meeting of unit holders in the same manner as acquisition of the
assets.

(3) Disposal of core assets in the following categories is permitted only when necessary
and appropriate and with approval from the Board of Directors:

(a) Disposal of core assets before one year anniversary from the date on which
the trust acquires such core assets;

(b) Disposal of core assets that TREIT acquired ownership to the previous
owner.

Management of Core Assets of the TREIT

In relation to management of core assets of TREIT, the Company as the REIT Manager
appoints a Property Manager who is selected based on experience in management
of each type of properties in which TREIT will make investment. The REIT Manager
appointed TPARK as the Property Manager for asset in category of warehouse, TICON
as the Property Manager for asset in category of factory, (Please see details in the topic
“Property Manager”); The REIT Manager supervises and controls the Property Manager
by the following means:

(1) TheREIT Manager establishes a marketing policy and strategy in property management
for the Property Manager to comply with;

(2) The REIT Manager controls and oversees the Property Managers’ performance on
a regular basis and check accuracy and completeness of property-related tasks
such as rental fee, outstanding payment, marketing activities, property conditions,
repair expenses, and insurance of core assets.
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Selection of Connected Persons to manage TREIT

The REIT Manager selects personnel to manage TREIT based on related experience
and conducts a background check to assess if a person to be appointed to manage
TREIT possesses qualifications as prescribed in the notification of the Securities and
Exchange Commission as follows:

(1) Having experience in managing investment or making profit from property for
minimum period of three years within five years preceding commencement of
employment for the REIT Manager;

(2) Having no prohibited characteristics of a person who has a power to manage
TREIT as prescribed in the notification of The Capital Market Supervisory Board re:
Prohibited Characteristics of Persons in Capital Market Business;

(8) Being selected by the Board of Directors or an assigned person (as the case may
be) based on the above qualification with Compliance and Investment Relations
Department to participate in checking qualification of the candidate.

Persons who are selected for each position are restricted from taking duty in other
positions which may create conflict with their assigned positions.

Investment in Other Assets for Cash Flow Management

The REIT Manager implements a procedure to control investment in other assets for
management of cash flow of TREIT, checking category of assets under investment and
investment ratio in other assets to ensure it complies with the Trust Deed.

Selection of Property Managers

The REIT Manager may appoint one or more individuals to act as property manager (s)
to manage assets of TREIT. Property Managers must be competent to manage the and
have knowledgeable people in estate management experience for not less than 3 years.
The REIT Manager is responsible for property management fees and TREIT is responsible
for other costs incurred by the property management, such as maintenance fees, etc.

However, if a new Property Managers are appointed, the REIT Manager informs the trustee
of the appointment within 15 days of the appointment of the new Property Managers.
Property Managers have the maturity each 5 years of contract and can be renewed
automatically. However, REIT Manager may appoint additional or change Property
Managers to the terms outlined in the contract, when one of the following;

(1) Property Managers do not perform their duties according to terms and
conditions of the contract of appointment and Property Managers do not remedy
the remedy within 60 days after receipt of notice from REIT Manager to rectify
such non-performance.
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5.8

(2)

(4)

If the rental rate of TREIT’s properties under management of any Property Managers
is less than 50% for 3 consecutive months and if the annual performance of the
property is less than the performance estimate specified in the annual operating
plan that Property Managers have proposed and approved by the REIT Manager
for a consecutive period of more than 2 years except in case of force majeure.

Property Managers were ordered by the court to be in receivership or the court has
appointed the official receiver to manage the property of all real estate managers
or only in significant parts.

Property Managers lack the ability to act as Property Managers as determined by
the REIT Manager and do not fix such disability within 60 days.

Monitoring Property Managers performance

The management of properties of TREIT, the REIT Manager supervises Property Managers
appointed by TREIT to achieve its purpose and to preserve the best benefit of TREIT
and unitholders. The REIT Manager has a system for executing and supervising Property
Managers as follows;

1.

Monthly Monitoring

(1) Property Management Department assigns Property Managers to submit a
summary of factory visits of potential customers with customers’ names and
phone numbers. In addition, they need to submit report on the lease of the main
properties, and property repair or maintenance report.

(2) Accounting and Finance Department monitors the completeness of the rental
received in TREIT’s accounts in each month.

(8) Accounting and Finance Department investigates the unpaid rental report
and check out the overdue rental tracking records.The property management
department ensures that Property Managers follow the unpaid process and audit
the tracing process include a copy of the notice (if any).

(4) Property Management Department examines the documents used in marketing
to find tenants to ensure that such documents are not conducive to a conflict
of interest in finding tenants of Property Managers by performing at least the
examination of the presentation of each rental property equally, without regard
to the ownership title and check on the pricing of property rental as a price
advantage to any property owner or not.

Property Management Department will contact the potential customers initem (1) by
random to verify that the Property Managers are acting in a neutral manner without
favoring any one property owner.
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2. Semi Annual Monitoring
Every 6 months, or when appropriate, Property Management Department meets with
Property managers to announce marketing policies, strategies, asset management.
Property Managers provide information about the competition, relevant industry
conditions, and issues that may arise with tenants.

3. Annual Monitoring

(1) Property Management Department audits properties with Property Managers
and property appraiser to ensure that the core assets of TREIT are in normal
use. There is no addition beyond the permission of TREIT and for the purposes
of annual properties appraisal.

(2) Property Management Department reviews and audits the quotation, coverage
and premium rates to confirm the insured’s primary coverage including the
main insurance document to ensure that the core asset is properly insured as
required by company.

4. Property Maintenance
Property Management Department reviews and audits the reasonableness of the
property’s repairing or maintenance. This is included a list of repairers and cost
before approval to ensure that the Property Managers perform repairs to the property
standards without any conflict of interest which is divided into two cases:

(1) In case of repair and maintenance, the cost is not allow to exceed the amount
approved by TREIT that Property Managers can carry out their own procurement.

However, every month, Property Management Department reviews and audits the
correctness of the repair and maintenance items prepared by Property Managers.

(2) In case of repair and maintenance costs are more than the amount approved
by TREIT;

(a) Urgentcy case, Property Managers must first obtain the approval from
Property Management Department as principle, via phone or E-mail.

(b) No urgentcy case, Property Managers send the letter of approval to Property
Management Department by including details of the property such as
property number, name of the lessee, damaged property photos, and the
amount of money to ask for approval. In the support documentation must
be included illustrates the necessity and appropriateness of the proposed
costs, such as photographs of property damage, or compare prices of
service providers with other service providers.

(c) Property Management Department prepares a letter of approval of the cost
limit back to the Property Managers with copies of the book are kept as
evidence, together passing documents to Accounting and Finance
Department for further processes.
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5.9 TREIT’s Interest Tracking Procedure

The Company as the REIT Manager has appointed TPARK, TICON and may appoint
other persons as deemed appropriate to collect revenue and manage spending of TREIT.
In this regards, the Company has a procedure to track interest of TREIT which requires
the appointed person to submit a report of such to the REIT Manager such as lease
income report, lease cost report, selling and administrative expenses report, outstanding
debt report, debt collection report, occupancy report, repair and maintenance hiring
report, tenant’s core assets insurance report.

Information Disclosure to Unitholders

The REIT Manager has emphasized the importance of information disclosure to unitholders in
a sufficient, accurate, complete, fast and transparent manner. Also the information disclosure
of TREIT shall be complied with rules and guidelines of information disclosure of the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Key principles of information disclosure

(1) Information to be disclosed must be accurate, complete, clear and timely.

(2) Must be complied the rules and regulations of information disclosure accurately and
completely.

(3) Every unitholder has the right to receive the information equally.

Parties who responsible for information disclosure

The Managing Director has assigned the Compliance Department, Investor Relations Depart-
ment and the Accounting Finance Department for disclosing of information to the Securities
and Exchange Commission and/or the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The information to be
disclosed shall be approved by the Board of Directors and/or the Managing Director (as the
case may be) prior to disclosure.

Channels of Information Disclosure
In order to communicate efficiently, transparent and on timely basis, the REIT Manager has
arranged various channels for information disclosure as follows:

(1) Report to the Stock Exchange of Thailand, which is the formal channel of the Trust
to disclose information.

(2) The REIT Manager’s website (www.treit.co.th) which gather all important information
of the Trust such as general information, TREIT Structure, Financial Statement, Annual
Report, Invitation to the Unitholder’s Meeting, Distribution and interested news.
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7. Unitholders’ Meeting
Guidelines of arranging the unitholders’ meeting
The REIT Manager shall arrange a meeting for unitholders as Annual General Meeting
within four months after the end of fiscal year. Other meeting of unitholders shall be called
Extraordinary General Meeting. The REIT Manager shall hold the Extraordinary General
Meeting to be in line with the Trust Deed and related laws as follows:

(1)

(2)

When the REIT Manager considers that it is appropriate to call the unitholders’
meeting for TREIT management propose

When the REIT Manager is required by the Trust Deed to get the resolution from the
unitholders to carry out the following activities:

(a) The acquisition or disposal of TREIT’'s major assets with the value equal to or
over 30% of the total asset value;

(b) The issuance of debenture or any debt instruments;

(c) The increase or decrease of TREIT's paid-up capital, as indicated in the Trust
Deed;

(d) The connected transactions with the REIT Manager or connected persons with
the REIT Manager, with the transaction value equal to or above Baht 20 million
or higher or more than 3% of net asset value, whichever is higher;

(e) The change of benefits and the capital returned to the unitholders;

() The change of Trustee;

(g) The change of REIT Manager and the appointment of new REIT Manager

(h) The amendment of Trust Deed that significant impacts to the right of unitholder
or the increase of fee and/or expenses to be higher than the maximum rate
specified in the Trust Deed;

(i) The cancellation of the Trust

(j): Any other circumstance that the Trustee and/or the REIT Manager deem neces-
sary and appropriate to propose to the unitholders’ meeting and to get resolution
of such matter;

(k) Any other circumstance required by the Securities and Exchange Commission;

When the unitholders with the total number of units is not less than 10% of total units
sold, make a written request to the REIT Manager to call for Unitholders Meeting
with clear reason stated in the request. The REIT Manager shall arrange unitholders’
meeting within 1 month after the date receiving such request.

Rights of the Unitholders

At the unitholders’ meeting, the REIT Manager has a policy to facilitate and encourage all
unitholders to attend the meeting by assigning the Compliance Unit to administrate the
unitholder’s meeting in accordance with the Trust Deed and related laws.
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Procedure for unitholders’ meeting

(1)

The Compliance Department is responsible for the meeting appointment,
preparing invitation, and meeting documents, accurately, completely and
adequately. All documents will be given to The Thailand Securities Depository:
TSD, the Registrar of the Trust, who will distribute invitation to all unitholders within
7 days or 14 days prior to the meeting (as the case may be). The REIT Manager will
disclose the invitation letter in daily newspaper at least 3 days prior to the meeting
date so that the unitholders will have sufficient time to review the related information
before attending the meeting. In addition, the unitholder can download the invitation
letter and supporting documents from the REIT Manager’s website (www.treit.co.th)
in both Thai and English. This is the same information that the REIT Manager send
to unitholders as printed document. Information in the invitation shall include the
explanation of how to attend the meeting as well as the detailed agenda, which are
sufficient for unitholders to review and make decision.

At the meeting, every unitholder has the right and equality to express his/her opinion
and ask any questions to the Board of Directors on any matters relating to TREIT
according to the agenda or proposed topic. The REIT Manager shall inform the
unitholders to acknowledge their voting right and procedure for voting prior to the
meeting.

Unitholders have the right to consider and approve the connected transaction or
the acquisition or disposal of the assets with the value specified by law and related
regulations.

Voting of the unitholders
Voting of the unitholders in general case must receive an approval from the majority of the
unitholders who attending the meeting and entitled to vote.

Voting of the following material transactions must receive at least three-fourth of total
unitholders attending the meeting and entitled to vote.

(1)

The acquisition or disposal of the major assets with the value over 30% of the total
assets value;

The increase or decrease of the Trust’s paid-up capital, especially there is required
the unitholders’ approval;

The capital increase under general mandate;

The connected transactions with the REIT Manager or connected person with the
REIT Manager, with the transaction value equal to or above Baht 20 million or higher
or more than 3% of the net asset value, whichever is higher;

The change of benefits and the capital returned to the unitholders;

The change of Trustee;
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(7) The amendment of Trust Deed that significant impacts to the right of unitholder;

(8) The cancellation of the TREIT

Selection and Nomination of Directors and Management

The REIT Manager shall select the personnel to be responsible for the management of TREIT
based on his/her past experience in the related functions, to ensure that such person could
manage TREIT for the maximum benefit of the unitholders. The REIT Manager shall consider
the qualifications of candidate as defined by the guidelines in the Capital Market Supervisory
Board’s concerning the qualification of person in capital market as follows:

(1) Having work experience in the field of investment management or management of
revenue- generating real estate for not less than 3 years within the period of 5 years
before the date of joining with the company;

(2) No prohibited characteristics of authorised personnel of the TREIT management in
accordance with the Capital Market Supervisory Board’s concerning the qualification of
person in capital market.

Remuneration of the Auditor
TREIT has appointed EY Office Limited as the Auditor of TREIT for financial period ended
December 31st, 2017 with the auditing fee in total amount of Baht 634,746.

Other Compliance with Good Corporate Governance (if any)
- None -
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PREVENTION OF CONFLICT

OF INTEREST

1. Policy for making transaction between TREIT and the REIT Manager or its Related Parties
Trust Deed has a procedure for making transaction between TREIT and the REIT Manager
or its Related Parties with the following criteria:

134

(1) Transaction between TREIT and the REIT Manager or its Related Parties with the following

(2

3

(4)

criteria:

a) The transaction must be in accordance with the Trust Deed and the related laws;
b) The transaction must be in the best interest of TREIT.
C

(
(
(c) The transaction must be justifiable at fair price and fair market conditions.

(d) Expense to be charged from TREIT (if any) must be in justified rate and reasonable
(e)

e) Persons who have interest in the transaction will not participate in decision making

for approval of the transaction.

However, if it is necessary to enter into a transaction that may create conflict of
interest, the Company has the following procedure to ensure the best interest of TREIT /
its unitholders:

(a) The transaction must be certified by the Trustee that it is in accordance with the
Trust Deed and related laws.

(b) Fortransactions value over Baht 1 million or equal to or above 0.03% of the net asset
value of TREIT, whichever is higher, an approval must be obtained from the Board
of Directors;

(c) For transactions value equal to or over Baht 20 million or over 3% of the net asset
value of TREIT, whichever is higher, an approval must be obtained by resolution of
a meeting of unitholders by a three-fourth of total votes of unitholders who attend
the meeting and are eligible to vote.

If the related party transaction is a transaction to acquire or sell of main properties,
the calculation of value will base on acquisition or sell value of all properties of each
project that will make it ready to seek benefit, including all properties relating to that project.

In order to seek approval from Trustee or unitholders’ meeting, the REIT Manager
and Trustee shall have the following responsibilities:

(a) The REIT Manager shall prepare a paper requesting for approval or notice
for unitholders’ meeting with the REIT Manager’s opinion on nature of transaction
according to clause 1) together with supporting reasons and clear information;

(b) Trustee must attend the unitholders’ meeting to provide its opinion whether
the transaction is conform to Trust Deed and relating applicable laws. In case that
approval from the unitholders’ meeting is required, the notice for meeting must
include opinion from an independent financial advisor for such approval.



ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¢ TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust

(5) In case that the information on related party transaction between TREIT and the REIT
Manager or any person relating to the REIT Manager has been clarified in the information
memorandum, such transaction shall not require approval in clause 2) and does not
require to follow procedures to request for approval in clause 4).

1.1

1. Related party Transaction with Major Shareholders of the REIT Manager

Juristic Person that

may have a conflict
of interest

Nature
of Relationship

Nature
of Transaction

Necessity and
Reasonableness
of Transactions

Transaction between TREIT and its Related Parties who may have a Conflict of Interest

Opinion and
Conditions

TICON Industrial
Connection Public
Company Limited
(“TICON”)

TICON is a major
shareholderofthe REIT
Manager Currently,
TICON holds
approximately 70%
of the Company’s
total paid-up shares
and control the
Company. Also
TICON is a major
shareholder of TREIT.

TREIT has appointed
TICON asthe property
manager for factories.

TICON was the owner
of TREIT’s factory
buildings. It knows
and understands well
to manage the assets
invested by TREIT. In
addition, TICON is a
leader in managing
factories for rent,
with skilled person-
nel and standard op-
eration. TICON is a
listed company on
the Stock Exchange
of Thailand, conduct-
ing good corporate
governance. This
makes tenants
confidentand benefits
to leasing of TREIT’s
factories.

The REIT Manager
has appointed and
paid the fee to
TICON, the Property
Manager of factory
buildings. The Property
Management Fee is
similar to the fee that
TICON received from
other property funds
for their property
management service
which is market price
and considerably
acceptable.
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2. Related party Transaction with Juristic Person who has the same Major Shareholder with the
REIT Manager

Juristic Person that

may have a conflict
of interest

Nature
of Relationship

Nature
of Transaction

Necessity and
Reasonableness
of Transactions

Opinion and
Conditions

TICON Logistics Park
Company Limited
(“TPARK”)

TPARK has the same
major shareholder as
the REIT Manager.
TICON is a major
shareholder of the
REIT Manager and
TPARK since TICON
holds the shares of
approximately 99.99
percent of the total
voting rights in the
REIT Manager and
TPARK.

TREIT has appointed
TPARK as the
property manager
for warehouses.

TPARK was the owner
of TREIT’s warehouse
buildings. It knows
and understands well
to manage the assets
invested by TREIT.
In addition, TPARK is
a leader in managing
warehouses for rent,
with skilled personnel
and standard

operation.

The REIT Manager
has appointed and
paid the fee to TPARK,
the Property Manager
of warehouse
buildings. The Property
Management Fee is
similar to the fee that
TPARK received from
other property funds
for their property
management service
which is market price

and considerably
cceptable.

1.2 Policy related to transactions between the Trust and the REIT manager and connected
persons to the REIT manager in the future
The REIT manager may make transaction between TREIT and the REIT manager
and connected persons to the REIT manager in the future. It is important that such
transaction shall be committed to the maximum benefit of TREIT and can be verified that
the transaction is done at a fair price, under the rules and regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Trust Deed.
(Please see more details on the topic “Policy for making transaction between TREIT
and the REIT Manager or its Related Parties”)

1.3 Guidelines to prevent conflicts of interest

The REIT manager has a system to prevent conflicts of interest between TREIT and

a persons who may have conflicts of interest. The management who responsible

for making transactions that may cause a conflict of interest with the Legal and

Compliance Department jointly ensure that such transaction is in accordance with

the following guidelines:

(1) Transaction must be complied with the Trust Deed and related laws and incurred
to the maximum benefits of TREIT,;
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(2) Transaction must be reasonable and committed on the fair price and fair market

conditions;

(3) Stakeholders of the transaction shall not participate in the approval process of such

transaction.

2. Transaction between the Trustee and Related Parties of the Trustee who may have a Conflict of

Interest

Juristic person who may
have conflicts of interest

Bangkok Bank Public
Company Limited
(“Bangkok Bank PCL.”)

Relationsship

Bangkok Bank PCL. is amajor
shareholder of the Trustee,
holding 75% of the issued
and paid-up capital of the
Trustee.

Bangkok Bank PCL.isalender
of long-term loans to TREIT.

Nature of connected trans-
actions

Bangkok Bank PCL. has
provided long-term loans to
TREIT for its investments in
properties.
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Necessity and reason-
ableness of the trans-
action

Terms and conditions of the
loan agreements are based
on general commercial
terms, which will not cause
any damages to TREIT.
Also, the conditions applied
are comparable with the
conditions offered to other
prime major customers who
have relative risk models in
the same industry.

3. Soft Commission
TREIT has no soft commission.

-
ST
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CORPORATE SOCIAL

RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Overview of the policy
The REIT Manager has a policy to manage the Trust with transparency to all related
stakeholders for the best interests of the unitholders. The REIT Manager gives priority to
the good corporate governance (Please see more details on the topic “Corporate Governance”)
as well as business operations with responsibilities to society and environment. The REIT
Manager has carried out the policy based on the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s guideline on
corporate social responsibilities.

1.1

1.2

Business Operation Fairness

Operating the business with fairness is one of business ethics which the REIT Manager
gives priority to and always practice when managing the Trust. The REIT Manager
shall manage the Trust with strictly compliance to related laws including the Securities
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (with amendments), the Trust for Transactions in Capital
Market Act, B.E. 2550 and Rules and Regulations of the related regulators as well as to
the provisions in the Trust Deed. The Trust shall be managed under good governance
principles, avoiding practices or actions that could pose conflicts of interest, promot-
ing free and fair trade competition. All tenants shall be fairly treated. There shall be no
propaganda or false advertisement which may mislead and cause damage to consumers.
All the above practices are aimed to be fair to other business operators, the unitholders,
business partners and related stakeholders, which will build investor’s confidence in
the long term.

Respect for Human Rights and Fair Treatment to the labor

The REIT manager focuses on the fundamental rights of individuals including the right to
life and liberty, the right to equality under the law, the right to freedom of speech, the right
to work, the right to basic healthcare as well as right to social security. The REIT Manager
also provides to staff a chance to show their potential, encourages them to express their
idea freely, and provides opportunities to enhance their knowledge and skills continually.
The details are as follows:

(1) Provide work process and system that focuses on proper safety and healthcare in
the workplace. Provide a clean workplace to prevent safety hazards that may arise
from accidents and disease, including encouraging employees to have a good
health through annual health check program;

(2) Enhance staff’s skill and potential by providing an opportunity for employees to learn
and to be promoted when the opportunity is right;

(8) Provide fair employment conditions for employees and provide reasonable
compensations that fit their capacity;

(4) Provide employee’s welfare such as annual vacation, medical treatment as necessary
and appropriate;
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1.3

1.4

(5) Provide important information to employees and employee representatives about
the actual conditions and operating results of business entities;

(6) Promote collaborations among employers and employees to improve work life quality.

Responsibilities to Consumer

The Trust invested in the assets which are land and warehouse and factory buildings
and appointed TPARK and TICON as the property manager. (Please see more details
on the topic. “Property Manager”.In property management, the Property Managers focus
on fair and responsible treatment to the tenants, taking into account their health and safety.

(1) Construction of the buildings done by business partners who are responsible
contractor with high standard;

(2) Deliver products and services with high quality, safe and not harmful to tenant’s
health;

(8) Contact the tenants politely, effectively and trustworthy.

Environment Preservation

The REIT Manager recognizes the importance of environment preservation and treats
that to preserve the environment is a shared responsibility of everyone. Therefore, the
REIT Manager encourages its employees to use resources efficiently, with regards to
energy saving measures and recycling and reuse of materials. The REIT Manager also
provides knowledge and training to employees on environment, safety and healthcare.

In addition, the Property Managers have a policy to build modern and safe warehouse
and factory, with no impact on the environment and with ability to respond to social needs
and environmental protection to customers. TICON, one of the Trust’s property managers,
has developed a green factory building that is environmental friendly (Green Building),
which has been certified as a building that is environmental friendly by the standard of
“LEED” or Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design from the U.S.Green Building
Council (USGBC), a leading certification body of green building standards in the United
States. TICON is the first developer of factory and warehouse in Thailand certified with
LEED Certification. In addition, the property managers also focus on preserving the
environment around its factories and warehouses so that to people who live nearby can
live their daily life in a better and quality environment.

2. Business Operating with effect to Social Responsibility (if any)
- None -
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OTHER SIGNIFICANT

INFORMATION

TREIT had no other significant information that may impact to the decision making of
the unitholders.
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BBL ASSET MANAGEMENT CO., LTD.
USHNNaNNSwWeIaN1SNaINUSIU UoHaw 9116

Trustee’s opinion

7 March 2018

To : Unitholders of Ticon Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust

Whereas, BBL Asset Management Company Limited (“BBLAM”) acting as the Trustee of the
Ticon Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust (“TREIT”) which manages by Ticon
Management Company Limited ("TMAN”) as the REIT manager during accounting period from
1st January 2017 to 31st December 2017.

In our opinion, TMAN has performed its duties in managing the TREIT appropriately in accor-
dance with the objectives specified in the Trust Deed and the Trust for Transactions in Capital
Market Act B.E. 2550.

Yours Faithfully,
BBL Asset Management CO., Ltd.
Trustee of TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust

A -

Sm_

(Mr. Thawatchai Lueangsurarungse) (Mr. Chukiet Wiriyakorkitkul)
Senior Vice President Senior Vice President
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S
REPORT

To the Unitholders of TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of TICON Freehold and Leasehold
Real Estate Investment Trust (the Trust), which comprise the balance sheet, including the details
of investments as at 31 December 2017, and the related statements of income, changes in net
assets, cash flows and significant financial information for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust as at
31 December 2017, its financial performance, changes in its net assets, cash flows and
significant financial information for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Trust in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting
Professions as relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance
in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon,
and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

| have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
my audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for my audit
opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole.

Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond for each matter are describe below.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S
REPORT

Acquisitions of investments in properties from property funds

As discussed in Notes 1 and 7 to the financial statements, in 2017, the Trust has received
assets, most of which are properties, and obligations through the transfers from 3 property
funds in exchange for newly issued units of the Trust and cash for the switching of the property
funds’ units with the Trust’s units. Since the proceeds are in the significant amount, the test of
the acquisition and the examination of the existence and ownership of the assets are considered
a key audit matter.

| have examined the proceeds of these business transactions with the approval by
the Extraordinary General Meeting of Unitholders of the Trust (dated 19 October 2017). | have
also checked the cash payments with supporting documents and examined the existence
and the ownership of the Trust over the properties with the documents of title.

Valuation of investments in properties

As discussed in Notes 5.2 and 7 to the financial statements, the Trust had investments in
properties presented in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2017 at their fair value of Baht
30,451 million, representing 95.3% of total assets. These investments are not traded on an
active market hence the appropriate comparable quoted price for the same or similar
investments on an inactive market cannot be established. The Trust Manager therefore determined
the fair value of these investments based on the value appraised by an independent appraiser
using the income approach. As the Trust Manager is required to exercise significant judgement
with respect to the estimation of future operating results and the determination of a discount
rate and key assumptions, there is therefore significant risk with respect to the measurement of
such investments.

| gained an understanding of the calculation of the fair value of investments in properties
by making enquiry of responsible executives. | considered the extent and objectives of the
assessment of fair value made by the independent appraiser and assessed the techniques and
models used by the independent appraiser to measure the fair value, as specified in the appraisal
report prepared by the appraiser, by comparing them to my knowledge and past experience
regarding the valuation of the same or similar assets. | also considered the consistency of
the application of such techniques and models, and assessed the competence and independence
of the independent appraiser by checking publicly available data. In addition, | reviewed the data
and key assumptions used in the measurement of fair value, by comparing past estimates of
operating results with the Trust’s actual operating results to evaluate the judgement of the Trust
Manager in terms of projections of operating results, checked them to the lease agreements,
and tested the calculation of the fair value made based on the above models and assumptions.
Moreover, | reviewed the disclosure of information related to the measurement of the fair value
of investments in properties in the notes to the financial statements.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the
information included in annual report of the Trust, but does not include the financial statements
and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual report of the Trust is expected to be made available
to me after the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When | read the annual report of the Trust, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, | am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance for
correction of the misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required
to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
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| determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

| am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

e. ‘;m,wllaw.

Chayapol Suppasedtanon
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3972

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 22 February 2018
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=
]

Assets
Investments
Investments in croperties at fair valus
(at cost 2017: Baht 30,268 million and
2016: Baht 7,387 million) 7
Investments in securities at fair value
(at cost 2017: Baht 142 million and
2016: Bahi 271 million}
Cash and cash at banks 8
Accounts receivable
From rental and service 8 19
From interest 18
Other 19
Deferred expenses 10
Other assels
Total assets
Liabilities
Short-lerm loans
Accrued property tax
Accrued expenses 19

11,19

Accrued interest 19
Withholding taxes payable

Advance recsipts for rental and service
Deposits from rental and service
Long-term loans

Debentures

Other liabililies

Total liabilities

Mat assots

12, 19
13 19

Met assels:
Trust registered and capital frormn the unitholders 14
Retained earnings 15

Net assels
Met asset value per unit

Mumber of units Issued - end of year (units)

The amyﬁ are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Mr.Pgerafat Srisukont)

Managing Director

150

30,450,600,000

141,812,925

1,168,439,021

68,054,556

380,143
19,239,169
05,254,124
17,524,451

(Unit; Baht)
2018

7,351,660,000

270,554,548

41,048,387

43,546,894
468,422
7,527,147
51,973,509
4,405,963

31,861,304,388

7.771.275,870

3,739,966,268 -
52,961,857 15,495,358
91,736,684 27,293,433
18,899,479 -
18,504,017 6,171,755
2,282,000 =
761,828,954 151,849,647

= 1.81%,000,000

1.800,000,000 -
7,031,649 4,598,949
6,493,210,808 2,024,407 142
25,46G8,003,480 5.746,668,728
25423451777 5,642,062,750
44,841,703 204,505,978
25,468,003,480 §,748,868,728
9.7864 10,130
2,602,387,048 566,800,000
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Datails of invostronis classifiod by assat ype

2007 2018
Typo of invosimantsl Faztary fwarshouss Percaringn Parcaniage
L fithe doed drga kesalicns puildng na. Eeirwalye  plimmsimerts  Faicyalie 0 isvnsimacts
(Rai-hgan-5q. Weh [Eraht] (%) [Baht] (=)
Inviskments ih properties,
Leasehald on tnnd and freehold on factorles
380 4246  Fojana Inckesiisl Park, Uthal Sub-district, Lppe2. %8 55,100,000 3 1:]
\thal Disktiet, Phem dakion 31 Ayumhaye Provinca
31575 2420 Rojana Indusirsl Par, Banchang Sub-giskrct S -4z 20,800,000 oor
Uthai Distiet, Phea Nakkan 5§ Ayuhaye Province
20T 4341 Rojana Irdustisd Park, Barchang Sub-distric B3 - 201 50,300,000 020
Uthai District, Phim Maihon Si Ayushays Praviecs
29083 4488 Fojann lroustdsl Park, Borchang Sub-diatdel M2 -202 £3,000,000 07
Uthei District, Phina Kaihon 3i Ayufthays Provices
58251 330 MNova Naom indusiisl Promolien Zove, BL@R =) 42,300,000 014

Kndong Nusng Sus-distiel, Khiong Luang Distric,
Patum Thani Provinge
BRAEE 3430 Mava Nakoon irdusiris] Promolicn Zong, AL = SH 600,000 [ERE]
Knidanig Musng Sub-dissrel, kiieeg Luang Disirc,
Padumi Than Provires
Loasaivald an land and froahold on worehousen

e i) Tl TICOM Lewgisties Park Bongra proecd DG 115,800,000 03 111,500,000 1.4
Bang W Sub-disirecl, Bang Pekong Mistricy, Do
Chgchoungsus Piorine naia
Do
28333 12068 TICON Logistics Fark Bangns project 2 172,400,000 056 163,200,000 28
Bangaamalk Sub-disincl, Bang Fagong Dsinct WM
Chachaengsaa Prodince M2
Rt ]
L
2
Aoraz E4-1-45 . TICON Logiatcs Pork Bangna projest SWFZAN TEB 300,000 248
Bang Samek Sub-disticl, Bang Fakong Dealnict, SWFZAR
Ghuchoangsas Previncs SEW.FZAS
SWLFTUY
SWaN
SWNRZ
SV
SWWEM
swwa
aweon
EWWIDR
L
sWwham
ENWIER
EWVEwWhan
HEAR 26:3-12  TICON Logstics Park Bangna pioject EWWIA 474,200,000 1,88
Bang Samak Sub-fenist Bang Pakong Tisind, W
Chachoongsan Province SWwi
287 27250 TICON Logstios Park Bargna projedd SWwan 484,200 D00 168
Dang Samak Sub-dinticl. Beng Pokong Dhstecl, SW Wz
Ghachoergsan Meoings W
JAE8E 48067  TICON Logistics Park Sergna el WA 863,300,000 282
By Srnk Sub-disirky, Beug Pakong Disiect, S
GRachengsng Pioving SWWWAS
WA
e
WSR2
FWWES
LAY ]
0841 122AE THCUN Logistcs Park Bangng project AN 181,800,000 0.59
Band Samak Sub-gesing), Bang Hakong Disine, SWUAIR
Chachoengsma Provinge S
SWANIIAM

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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As at 31 December 2017

Detells of investmends classificd by ssset lype

Tyea ol investmertsl
Ll Wl dppd it ] Loerlorsn
{Rai-Hgan-5g. Woh)

S0EIS G131 TICON Loghtics Pack Bangra projee
Bang Samak Sub-giskict, Bang Fakong Dustrict,
Chachaengeas Provings

TEERE 10-1:90  TICON Logisties Pack Rangra piciect
Hang Samak Subsdierics, flang Pang Dbz,
Ghachoengsaa Frovinon

9664 17260  TICOM Loegissce Park Hargna projact
Bang W Sub-isine, Rang Pakerg Disivis,
Chrasnoengsa Provwncs

Lesrsehold [portion) en land subl mndl warah
pat ol R Tk 0175 THOON Logisics Pk Bangoleo 4
Mgy S80 Thorg Sub-disinet, Sangoips Diatict
Samusgrokin Provinos
Leasehold an Langl and warghouses

2806, 18808, 98278 TICOM Logistics Pari Bangpies 1

18811, 18843 Sriva Charaklw Vo Sub-daiicl,
TI030, 2ATHL Bang 80 Thong Disinz,
2503 Samulprakan Provincs

2805 23003, 23798, 60T, GOT14
1BTEA, 18700, 10791, 18792 2005
2008, 23330, 23753, 60713

8615980160, 350.71.1  TICOH Logisics Park Bangplen 3
BOAGY, 105253, iangpin Sub-disirich, Bangpioe Disvict
WOEEG, T0ED5E, Bamulprakan Provinca

1DGT50, (RE2SET, 105250,

105258, 105260, 110032

B4B0, BE1SS, 470873 TICOM Logitise Pars Bangploo 3

B0158, BE157, Borgpés Sub-detricl, Bangpbes Disired
BE150, BEE2, Somuigmican Provinds
A01GT, BE164,
104258, 110032
AEETE 13-2.624  Amala Hakom indusinad Ealabs,

Ban Hhoa Sub-dtricl, Panthong Disiret,
Enonbari Provings

36277 1063 Arata Makesn incugtial Estato,
Ban Khoa Sup-dstnct, Parinang Nisnc
Chonkwri Prevines

Freehald o land and warchouses.

166065 §1-744  TICON Logstics Park Easern Seabase §
B wWin Sub-pisinct, 51 Kaona Distrel,
Chonbun Provecs

105062 G277 TICOM Log ek Park Eastonm Seatodm 7
Bo Win Sub.disiret, Si Racna Desricl
Chonbud Frovrsa

177126 24-3-568 THOOM Logwlbos Park Srratha
Surass Sub-S1indt, i Racha Disina,
Chonbui Frovnos

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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200 *h
Fathory | warghoute Purconiage Feiceniage
dinono, Esirwale  ofinvgstventy Eeisang = Slinvesimaniy
Bty ) [Bahi) i
SWWILT 40,400,200 o3
RWMT 1TMD T 00,000 05
SWMLIM
SWMTINE
NS
EWAT ML
SWMIINE
SWALANE
SWALINT
SWEXY A5, 200,000 o
Wi 25,200,000 noe 24,540,000 naz
Wi 553,000,000 1.8 626,970,000 B
Wi
Wil
Wz A4, 400,000 014 &7 A48 000 (1]
W3 144,100,000 af N 60,000 200
Wl a4, B0 (00 152 SHY. 520,000 B8
DG 51,300,000 or 46 450 000 ©el
DGR
LG
war e, 100, 000 La4 518,880 000 .78
Weard
warE
Wiaid
Wwear
WiE
weary
WS a7, 300,000 1.53 86420000 508
iz
WSE
]
P
]
BWWIN _GIM 300 520,000 ek
SWWIR_ G
SWWUL_GYs
BN BT
SWIWHI_GTM
VNI _GTRe
SWWE G 1663, 300, 000 038
Wik 106,400,000 035 120,000,000 1.68
Vi
waan 177500000 o 201,140,000 B4
WIS
WA 37H.2300,000 124 422060000 -3
T
WA
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Detafls of Invesimenis classfled by assel lype

T 2076
Type of imvosimarts’ Factary ! warehcusi Pareontags Poreniagn
{Ral-Nga-8g, Wak) B 1% (et i)
TR, 1803 o122 TICON Logancs Patk Siirecha Wi T3 200,000 o4 84,030,000 150
Bursank Sub-disirict, 5i Recka Diakric,
Chonkari Province
124784 240-3TH  TICON Loghktics Park Sriracha Wai 12 400,000 102 347,130,000 4,55
Surasak Sub-disirict, Si Racha Destid,
Chonkar Frondnce
170440 T-0-214  TICOM Logistcs Park Leenchabarg 2 we 117.800,000 o 123,440,000 162
Hong kham Sub-disvict, 5| Facha Dislich
Chonkn Prindnics
1riee G-2-4.8 TICON Loghstics Park Laemchabang 2 Fi4 TEA0 ksl B2 530,000 o |
INoing Mham Sub-cigvict, 1 Facha Districs,
Chpntisi Prondnce
ATEED 13-0-8  Rejara Industipl Park (Prachinbur) wi 198 400,000 05 180670000 297
Hugraa Sub-dietrics, 51 baha Phot Disiricl
Prachinbyun Fiowincs
L4700 188 THOON Logstics Paik Wangna 2 Wi 178,900,000 053 253,900, 000 zEB
Poyom Sug-disticd, Wang Mai Distrs, w2
Prra Makhon 8i Ayutthays Provides wia
WM
3BT 12-3-64.5  THON Logstca Fark Eastam Seabdand 1{8) Wz 20d 700,000 aar ZH2 AT, 000 acs
Puakdeng Sut-disirkt, Pruakdseng Disbicl, Wz
Rayeorg Province W
W
177454 134541  TICOM Legislics Park Laamchabang 3 W 20, 200,000 Q68 208, 450,000 274
Weang Knam Sut-oiairict, 5t Becha Distng, W2
Cripribur Province W
WM
173848 1682358 TICOM Logebos Mark | semchaltang 7 FZin 80,200,000 1] 220,590,000 A0
Mang Kham Sub-cistriel, 81 Racha District, F22
Chonbur Provincs FE1
F2iM4
FRS
7100 11237  TICOM Logstes Pack Lasmchabang 2 FEan 195,700,000 [Ed 213,130,000 i) ]
Moreg Knam Sub-cisirict. 51 Aacha Distc, Fmz
Chanun Provincs FAA3
FZA
A5TED 12241 TICON Logates Patk Panihong 1 WA 1 BS,300, 000 (ol v 23 530, 000 k3
Panthnng Sub-diswict, Pasihong Dislict. W
Chonbori Priowince e
Vi
wars
I0RLT 14-4-T7  TICOM Logsfcs Pavk Praject - Bangni SN P0.B00, 000 o1 ] -
Rang Samax Sub.disirict, Bangoakong Dislricl SRNG.2
Chachoongsaa Provinse S E-3
S
30630 12-0-34  TICON Logetica Pork Projoct - Bangno ST 281,000,000 0ee
Rang Samak Sub-ditic], Banppakong Destct SWOWTR
Chischeongasa Provinzg W
SWNWTM
a7 1824 TICOW Logascs Park project - Bangna WA - W 3048, 300,000 150
T, Bangsamuk A Dangpakong, Chacheorgans
Froyindos
Ak 1M.1-83  TICON Logestics Pork project - Bangna F23 - Ffam 211,200,000 .69 - -
T. Bangsamuk A Bangpakpng, Chadhomngsso
Prosis

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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Detalls of investments classilied by aseef typn

Typo of nveaimenty
Lieef b9 dopd daen Lacolieny
{RekNygan-gg. Wah)

20894 111830 TIGON Loghtcs Park project - Bengna

1. Bangsamuk A, Bangoakong, Chachoengsad
Provincy

25513 24-3-86  TCON Logiskca Park progect - Wang Mo
T. Payom A Wengroi, Aputheya Provines

2478 20000 THGOM Logistios Park peoject - Wang Mol

T. fayom A, Wengrol, Ayutheyn Province
152508, 130752 482159 TICON Logistca Park project - Leemn chabarg

104395, 112194 T. Mongknam A, Srimcha, Chonourl Province
152198
LIEE S 16011 TICOM Logistics Park projéct - Bangna
I. Bangsamuk A. Dargoskong, Chachosngsan
Pravinos
AP 23324 TICON Logislics Park project - Warg Nol
T. Payemn A Wongral, Ayusthuys Prevrcs
28628 11381 TICOM Loghlics Park project - Warg el
T. Poyem A \engrod, Ayuihays Presdrss
4081 13148 TIGOM Logaslics Park project - Bongna
T. Bargwun & Boangrakerg, Chathoorgaas
Pugvice
5065 93-766  TICOM Loghlics Park project - Loem chabang
1T 4162 1. Nongiham A, Srisacha, Ghonbui Province
17406 210317  TICOM Logislics Park project - Lnem chabarg
T. Kengkham A, Srisscha, Chonkui Provines
GTS 106G TICOM Logistics Park project - Rejana
T U-thai A Uthai, Ayutihaya Provings
172584 73973 TICOM Logistios Park project - Easlesn Seaboand |
2508, 1T2007 436 T, fewin A Brirscha, Ghanbun Provincs
172588 5-1-58.1
142384

Frechold aa land and facienes
S04, 14727 51397 Amala Gity Indusinial Eslata
Mabymngpon Sub-disticl,
Pl Darng Disirick, Riyong Province
Jess BL-B7.5  Amala City indusinial Eslata
Mazyergpom Sub-distiet,
Pl Daong District, Fieyong Provines
7435 4018 Finilang Incustiial Estale
Mong Kham Sub-disticl,
51 Racha Dstict, Chenbun Provincs
184768, 181770 H-114  Pinthang Incusiial Estale
Nang Hham Sub-districl,
Si Ancha District, Chonbur Provines
1E3NE 48282  Pinthong Industial Estale
Bo Win Subdisticl, Bi Racha District
Chonbun Province
105324, 165322 141284 Prehong Incustrial Estals
Bo Win Sub-diswicl, 3i Racha Disticl
Chorbun Pravince

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.

| 54

2047 218
Faotory I warohouso Porcorlage Poegartega
baildng . Eniryaben ol owestments  Fabyohue  of ivesionts
{Bah} " {Bishil} %
FZSM = FZ5M 212,600,000 0£9
LT T 74,000,000 122
S 545,000,000 178
WA 736,800,000 20
SWA
WL
WD
SWF
AWE
WG
SWH
Al
WL
WK
FZAA-F212 F10.000,000 100 - -
WA - 375 700,000 123 - -
WEH - WEM 126,600,000 054 = =
MA - M S 242 300,000 aa -
LK NP 120,304,000 L] =
WIH - Wi 342 300,000 112 &
W, WE, W3 264,000,000 096 + .
W, W, W, 439,100,000 144 - -
W, WE, A
SE8 .9 A2 T 0,000 25 B 80000 1.7
SF.M3.3 AZ20N E5 A0, 000 028 93 4R0,000 1,23
SEALAN L 42 £5 400,000 810 00,160,000 3,78
SFA 2L AR, £5.400, 000 0.18 B2 BA0,000 082
14282
SFM1A G007 £4.500,000 018 50,340,000 2,78
5F.A3 O_025/3 148,999,600 D43 161,550,000 212
SFAZZ G052
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Detalls of Ivwestments classified by acsel type

il 2076
Tyoe of ivestimants/ Factory | warehose Percartags Parcanbige
Land lifle degd froz hessliong Dngilylng e Eaii valve  glinvesimerts Farvake  alivesimenls
[Razi-higan Bq. Wah} {Baki} (%) {Bahi} %)
167088 H-380  Pindony Industial Estates 85132 G 032N S8 000,000 1.07 352,280,000 462
Bueng Sub-disiict, 51 Racha District, SFAL TR G AN
Chgibasi Provirce OF.ALTIR O 0323
8F AT G_D3N4,
G_oaan
167046 21307 6 Pirvhong Incisial Eetaba 5F B2 5 G_oouwy LEEBO0 000 v 245,180,000 )
Busng Suk-disivet, 57 Racha Distiel, GF LA G o3
Chonburi Provinge
20170 B2t Ban Wah Induaing Estgta [H-Tech] EF.AL3 GAMA 73,700,000 D24 TE, 450,000 103
Ban Lan Sub-dsiriet, Hang Fa-in Dsinct, SPALARG 1 5
P Wokhon S Ayultharre Province
HaT 315 Ban Wish indusina Estate [H-Tedh) EF.C22F 712 £0,400 000 ek B, 590,000 085
Ban Lan Sub-chatrict, Basg Pa-n Datrcl,
Prus Nakion Si Apudliars Provees
Baans LS ) Ran Wah indusirs’ Estale (H-Tech) EFM22F_TM3 55 R00.000 014 59,750,000 ore
Ban Len Subdsnic:, Bang Pa-dn Dslro,
Phia Hakhan Si Asulihaya Proviecs
30621 2272 Rolano ndustial Park SFALI 28 1 35,000,000 o2 40,450,000 063
Ban Chang Sub-dairict, Uinal Mialral,
Pua Hakorn 5i Ayudthayn Province
57RO 335 Hammeny Chonbue InCLreiniy Fstass SFMIEZ DY 3 400000 o 50, 154,000 Q.68
Ba Win Sub-disiricl, 8i Rocha Distrel,
Chetiun Frovinca
szre 3484 Hamaenj Cronburi incugirial Estata SFMIEA D2 £3,300,000 o4 50,300,000 o
Ha Win Sub-cisinct, 51 Hacha Dostnd,
Cheanbiur Mrovineo
E1 k)] 2-1-a Rojnna indusinial Fatk EF BU242 2 26,800,000 AL ] 28,800,000 0.39

Ban Charg Bub-dietris!, Uihal District,
Priva Massom 51 Avuinaya Pionnce
ERTel B33 Homag Cnonbur indusira’ Estale SFLAZ-DE 000, 0 i Frg 090,000 118
Bo Wi Su-cliaincl, 5| Recha Dustr,
Chonbawi Provints
J8E00 40135  Amala Cily lndastrial Eslate GFAZ_A220M B4 600,000 0.8 58, 530,00C o
Mebyangpam Sub-diskicl, Pusk Dnsng Daire,
Hayong Province
T M 464 Amala City industnal Fataia, &F N1.5-A2 40,000,000 [} - -
Mabyanggorn Sub-diatricl, Phackdaerg District
i Rayeng Frovinea
14720 32465  Amota City Indushinl Enkaba, SF.L2.0.880 53, 200,000 a7 - -
MAsbyanaeIn Sub-gsing. Fluskdasrg Distic
Rayeng Frovinco
14474 Z3THT  mmata Gy induyirel Estaxa, 8F ALITEN-AD 7,000,000 [ER T
tatyangpomn Sub.disid, Pluikdassg Dialric,
Raycrg Frovime
14316 22778 Amata Cly indusinal Estato, BF AT MTER-AG0 5, B00, 000 o2 - -
Mabyungpern Sub-dislid, Pluskdasng Disiricy
Rapeng Provinte
14598 G277 Amala Ciy Indusinial Esate, EF.C3E7 T3 800,000 Q.38
Mabyanaporn Sub-cising, Fluskdasng Districy,
Rageng Provinca
T4A%G 32548 Amatn Gy ndusing Esiate, SF.02.1080 54,400,000 (R -
Mabyanaporn Sub-dstecl, Pluskdaeng Dialricl
Faang Proviabe
Ta08 23015  Amola Ciy indusiral Esale, SF.ALITEN-AJD 36,000,000 oz & -
Mabyangporm Sup-dsinict, Pluakitseng DByl
Rayarg Provinoe
Hafa 30238 Amals Chy bidwsisl Esiale, SFE.01.5-A8M1 42,700,000 014
Mabyangpenm Sub-cietict, Pluakdasng District,
Rayung Privincg

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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Detolle of inveatmonts clossifiod by aseot bype

Ty of invwalmmls
Lang S daed Bty

and, 14728

14512

9500, BERZ

14655

o588, 080

e

15040

fared

eg1, Bang

0D

11353, 11354

201m, p0Tod

Hag

FRET

4144

0018

3069 4

32-18.3

4488

3E0A

2041

1384

1452

L-ELT

%2133

31-T20

2120

RS

hazaticns

(Fie-Nga-54, Wah)

Amata City nmusleiel Estale,
Matwyangpom Sud-dsiricl, Piuawaang Dstna,
Repong Pravincs
Amata City incuslrial Esfale,
Mobyangporn Sub diskrict, Pluskdaeng Distrigh,
Repong Movince
Amata City industrial Calabe,
Matyenigpon Sub-diiricl, Pluskciurg Disired,
Rayong Province
Amata Gy incusiial Evate,
Mabyangporn Sub-disticl, Pluagdasng Distnl,
Rayong Prewinen
Amata City Incustial Estabe,
Mebpangpam Sub - diskisl, Prugidasng Distric!,
Rayong Provinca
Amaly Gity Incustial Eslale,
Misbrygingpon Sub-disticl, Flussdesng Disaicl,
Rayorg Provinos
Amats Gy Incusing! Exlate,
Mabyangeamn Sub-districl. Pluakdassng Disine,
Riynng Provinen
Aumala er,l Inedusirial Eslate,
Mabyengpon Sub-daeirict, Pluskdabng Disire,
Rmyeng Provingo
Amnta City Inckustrial Estals,
Mebyangpom Sub-dalricy, Plushdoong Dislric,
Fanyorg Proviice
Amata City hausirial Estale,
Mébyanaporn Sulb-cisin, Fleakdoong Distric,
Riwpang Provines
Asnatn CRy indusial Esiata,
Mabyangperr Sub-chairel, Phusidneng Distict,
Reyorg Proviess
Amaia Cily Indusiial Evinty,
Mlspargporm Sub-disiiot, Muskdeang District,
Rayung Provinom
Amain Cily Indusirial Bsints,
Mebyangpan Sub-driist, Fluskdeang Disd,
Reyarg Frovince
Amatr Cily Indusiria) Extate,
Mabyangpom Sub-district, Pluskdasng Divirid,
Rayerg Provinee
Arsaiin Clty indusirial Enloio,
Mabyangpomn Sub-disinicl, Pluskdeong Dl
Bayorg Province
Armata City indusirial Esteia,
Mabyargoorn Sub-gisirit, Pluskdeang Détrid,
Rayong Province
Amata City Indusirial Esfale,
Mabwargpenn Sut-istricd, Pluskalanng Distric,
Rayong Provines

4278, 4-3-12 Amata Makorn Indusirial Esiale,

Bankeo Sub-disiict Fhanthong Distict,
Chelouri Provincs

2-1-30, 3-1-53 Aerata Makorn Induairial Catale,

2373

Benkao Sub-distdct Phantang Distiic,
Gholun Province
Amatn Nakcrn Industial Esighe,
Bankan Sub-disirich, Phanthang Disinct,
Cheodbur Provinos:

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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Tectary | wershouse
Building na,
SFEZeAN
BF.B2.160

BFL2.2-A500
SFB TN-AS
SF R 7T
SF.DZ1-ABM T
SF.81.9-A39
&F A T-ABM
SF.B4.7.08M
SF.ALI-AST
BF B2 2-A5H5
SF ALE-ARDE
AF B, 77330
SFL22-AE 1
BF.L2-AB213
SF 02 1-AG2M
SF.S1E-A 20T

SF.A1.51-5A
SF.A1 80228
EF. A28
BF.G3.2 - GRE3 G25aT

G740 « G256

a7 e
Percaniogo Parcartige

forvpye  pligosmenty  Eoirwglie  olisvgstmenty

{Batily (%) | Bahly %}

T, FO0000 o4 - *
54 500,000 ERE:) = -
58,100,000 e &
48,800,000 o1 - -
43,500,000 1% L] -

55,000,000 0.8

50,800,000 a7

Ad ADC 000 RS

AT 500,000 018

30,500,000 a0

8,000, D) bR} - 5
38,800,003 013

40,700,000 D5

0000000 0z -

E3.300,000 At -

54,400,000 n1a

A4 400,000 0.8
129 500,000 Q.42

LB, 000 039 M
2 B0, DO 14 -



DETIALS OF INVESTMENT

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¢ TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust

As at 31 December 2017

Dedzils of investments clascified by assot type

Lepstions

Amata Nakorn Industrial Estate,
Beekan Sub-distic, Phanthong Disirics,
Chraburl Provircs
fenata Makeon Industiial Estate,
Bankeo Sub-dialricl, Phanihong Disiricl,
Chrotur Frovincs
SAoniata Makorn bndustial Eststa,
Bankin § b dsirid, Phanihong Distrkd,
Chotud Province
Arnati Mokern ingustial Estee,
Rankae Sub-dirid, Phanthong District,
Chalbad Provincs
Amati Makerr Industlal Estate,
Bankse Sub-diskisd, Phantharg Digtrel,
Ghalbud Pravineo
Aursala Makerr |ndusitial Esiats,
Baieo Sub-diskict, Pharthereg Distict,
Ghoibui Provinca:
Arata Nanom ndusinal Esinle,
Baniss Sub-distict, PFhaniheng Disrct,
Chilbrt Provincs
Apnaks Makern Indusirisl Exlass,
Bankas Sub-dietiel, harihorng District,
Chigitnirl Mrowinos
Amath Nakorn induatninl Eataie,
[Dan Husler Sub-disincl, Muang Choibur Distriet,
Chalour] Frendnce
Amana Makorn indusiylal B3,
Dan Huslor Sub-disiret, Munrg Chalun Distnet,
Chaburi Pravings
Amata Nakerm nduekia Eeiale,
Do Hualor Sulb-daleig, Muang Cholburi Dislrict,
Chaltuati Province
Amals Moo Indusinial Egiota,
Dy Hualer Sub-districl, Muang Chalburi Districl,
Ghodsai Province
Arata Nagam indystninl Bste,
Don Hualor Sub-distric!, Muang Chitian Districl,
Chodoun Provincs
Amata Nazorn induairial Fakals,
Do Humadest Surhedlintiiet, Mumsng Chasor Disnct,
Chobun Pravincs
Amnko Mokern Industrial Estale
han, | heslor Sub-district, Muang Chaioarn Disano,
Chobur Provings
Amata Mekorn ndusisl Extale
Don Husler Sub-gisinct, Muang Chokun Distnc,
Chobin Pravines
Amein Nakom ndutinial Eslala
Dhon Huinlor Sub-dintsiel, Muaeg Chalurd DNisidcy,
Chofun Provices
Amatn Helorm industtinl Esinte
Dion | ualer Sub-disttiel, Muarg Chobur Disircl,
Chdben Provintn
Amata Naom indusirial Esise,
Den Hualer Sub-disgrict, Muang Chobun Bistried,
Cnoiun Prowince

Type of Bty
Land tE gebs Ares
{Fai-Hpan-5q. Wahj

P01 23.70
=24 23m

20425 11
231 2445
20132 24.65
20133 2a-84
20134 2381
20138 E0:16
122840 7078
122543 2
B5450 2041
015 1240
BrFiE 2013
2090 70383
120640 20:49
TR0 12253 43E
122535 £174
122532 221
120848 3049
1ahens 2.3.68

Armata hakor Indusivinl Estate,
ey Humilar Subdistrict, Muang Chalbun Distac,
Chofbun Prowinos

2007 S0
Faclary | warahouny Parcercogs Forgeniage
Sk no, Fairvelus  gligvosimerts Loicyohe — ofivesimorty
(B} (%] |Batd} (%)
SF W15 - 3255 A2 200000 14
SF MSIS . G254 42,200,000 RT
BF.M1,8 - 02631 AT 400,000 26
5F B1.2-G2sA 32,900,000 "R 4] B
SFMA3 . G759 39,100,000 [ ] 2
8F MA.8M - G240 3,400,000 244 -
SF. M52 - G251 Erdl il D4 -
SF.C3 - G261 100,000 2T =
SF.CEE - GTOME 135,000,000 EL]
SF.M1.8 - GTOE &5, 700,000 015 -
SF BN - G122 <5300, 00 018 -
SF.AT T ZEM-G131M 0,600,000 (R L] -
BF.A1.GM-58 41,100,000 013
SF.A1 12502131 28,500,000 o1n - -
SF.MLER-G1IA 45124030, D00 ote - -
SF L2.5-GT020 4,900,000 oz -
SF B2 1-Groae 58,700,000 [+ B} -
SF.C2.GT0F1T &4, 00000 o
SF.M1.BN-0522M 45,000,000 018
BE A SN -G8 41,000,000 o

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¢ TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust

DETIALS OF INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2017

Datails of investmants classifisd by seeel type

Typa of ivrdslmants/ Faclory | warehixate Prraniage

Landitedeed  fAes Laciliang sty a Emirvedye  ofivesiTopits Eeryvals  pliovestmacts

\Ral Ngan Sq. Wah! [Buhi) %]
BTy 2388 Amats Nakom industis) Eslate, SF.ALGG-659 44,300,000 [1RL]
D Huaor Sub-datrel, Musng Chader [Ksirid,
Chodbari Province
AR 3236 Amaa Nakorn indusiial Eslabe, SF A1 TRGSR A7, 100 Ky [ER 1
Do Husior Subrdairic!, Muang Chalburn District,
Choituri Prowvinos
aoca 24345 Amata Nakon industrisl Eslabs, EFALITE-QANE 2,200,000 D12
Dy Husior Subi-ciatret, Miang Chiotbdn Desing,
Cheftus Provincs
122543 304 Amaits Makorn Inctustial Fatabe, 5F M E2-GrO2R A, 000 000 oS
Dion Husor Sub-dalrict, Muang Chyalan Destrict,
ot Frovince
258853 4154 Amata Makoon indusiial Estabe, EF.B2.5-GROON 78,100,000 028
Phanmong Sub-disticl, Prantheng District
Cholour Provinco
58T 5335 Amala Makomn indusiial Estate, 5F LA 2-G752 ES 000,000 o2a
Phaninong Sub-disviz], Phantherg District,
Croiur Provinon
GOETT 3424 Amain Makorn indusinal Exate, SF A1 75-G4R &2 015
Dot Huaks Sab-ehalrict, Muang Chalned District,
sl Proings
108458 2340  Amain Nokorn indusinol Esats, SF.B1 arf-G102 4, 200,000 18
Do Husir Sabecigteict, buang Chodurd Distnct,
Chalturl Frevres
3000 2:1:50.1  Amole Nokorn indusicial Estale, EFATITEGI58M S8, 700,000 612
Don Hunbor Subs-tistrict, Musng Cholar Distid,
Cholbur Provirecs
12043 3048 Amaba Nakorn indust-isl Exole, SFEMLER-GI22R BC,200,000 o7
Den Huepler Sub-giesncl, Musrg Choburl Disiecl
Cholturl Provincs
TRz 3337 Acnats Makcon iidasbial Eslals, SF.L24-Gm02n 56, 200,000 022
Do Humer Sus-ceind, Mipsng Chobun Destict,
Ghilbwri Provinca
122553 R Acnans Hakorn industial Esiabe, SF L1267 52,400,000 a7
Dhan Hualer Sub-disidcl, Musog Choka Ditiet,
Chaolaai Frovince
L3478 2287 Amadn Makorn ircusitial Eslata, SF MY S5-GT0214 43,400,000 a.id
Dion Hualor Sub-districl, Musng Chotun Do,
Ghgfaal Princg
L3850 ZAABd  Amats Makern indasital Esiate, BF A1 25-B156% 35.400.000 012
Dion Hushor Sub-disidicl, Muang Chotur Distisl,
Choitr Piovince
13485 2288  Amald Nakern indusiial Estato, BF Al SQ-05RT 40,500,000 013
Dion Hualer Sub-district, Muang Cholour District
Lihglbun Frowincs
Bapsa 20-895  Amglo Nakorn industrisd Ectate, SF.A-GISER 26, /00,000 L]
D Husbor Sute-disteict, Musng Cholbur Dislrct
‘Chalhir Provmes
BO08 21-586  Ampda Nokorn indusiria] Estata, BF.AY B.GIAYT &%, 500,000 14
Don Huslor Sub-ghitrict, Muang Cholbun District
Cholburi Provines
000z 23357 Avpale Hakoen indusirial Cetale, 8F.A1T5-CaM AT, 300,000 L]
e Huglor Sub-ristricl, Muang Choiborn sttt
Cholburi Provines
122538 3126 Al Naken industrial Eslabe, SFLEM GO 5,200, 000 a0
Dan Huslor Sub-cisincl, Miang Chofbien [Haee
Cholbwi Pravises
22N 234 Amota Makom Indusyial Estaba, SF.A1.T-5T0213 45,300,000 016
Den Hugkor Sub-distrel, Muang Chalbin Dissned
Chelsm Proving

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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DETIALS OF INVESTMENT
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Detalls of investments classifed by assar e

27 2008
Type of nesimants! Fachony I warehouse Parconiags Purceniliage
Laee fillg Cosl Aren besons Ruildng ng, Egrvpug  glvesimenls  Eallysis  slimasimeods
[HeMgan-5g. Wah) iBanly 1% \Bal) 1)
24ELS T-8:28  Amola ok ndustial Ecats, SR LAB-GYET 122,000,000 .40 - -
Pranthong Sub-asirc], Pruntharg Dlstrict,
Chaolburd Prenvines
25084 3082 Aol Noiom industial Estote, SF.81,1M-GB00E 44,500,300 a16 - -

Fhanhong Sub-disirict, Pnaniheng Disticl
Cholbun Provincs
253 a3-7 Arnata Malorn bnduslelal Estale, BF.L34-580012 83300000 a.29
Frarpnang Sulb-deirict, Pranthong District
Chaolbuwi Provines
| 31-13 Arnula Matom bndusicial Csiate, 5F, M2 12-0E02 65,500,000 LRt
Phanvhong Sub-dsiric’, Pnanthorg Disticl
Chelburi Provines
26245 b ¥a il Amats Natom Industial Estale, 87 A1 10802 45,600,000 Li% 1]
Pranthong Sub-deing, Phamhong DSt
Chalkn Pravings
b T 2347 MAenzta Makorn Imdusyial Estole, HF.ANS-G8027 41,700,030 4
Phanthong Sub-dstre, Phaninorg Distss,
Chedbur Provines
29EED 2383 Amata RNiakorn Indusy sl Estsle, &F it BGaids 49 830,000 18
Phanthang Sub-disirin, Phanthong Districk,
ChoBarl Pravines
20600 2ANE0  2-2-35, 0-1- Amatn Nakorn induseial Estate, SF.A1 2-GBO2NG, G2 35,100,000 o1
Phanihang Sub-dstne:, Phanthong Destricd,
Chalour Petrvines
FAEHE T35 mmatn Makorn Ircsirial Estase, SFAM Sr2-Gasn A2 400 000 o4
Norg Ka Kha Sub-district. Phanthong District,
Chalbun Provines
FARAT 188 Amata Nokor Incustial Eslzte, SF.MI 3 GRENE 8,800,000 013 - -
Morg Ko ¥ha Sub district, Pharthong Cistrict,
Cheuftaur Farincy

FIRRR S04 Amas Nakoen Irdusinis Estste, &F M3-GEGS T8, 700,000 Q.20 - =
Horg En ¥ho Sub.dickicl, Phartheng Caslict,
Chiolburi Prosies
[t ] 22423 Amaba Nokorn inmsinial Eeials, SF M1 2G50 31,600,000 a0 - -

Den Hunlor Sub distiiot, Muarg Chalud Dietried,
Confme Proviies
1 5B00S 2335 Airnats Nakorm Intuirial Edlala, SF AL BGTRAR 000K 00K 293 = =
Den Hunlor Sub-districl, Muarg Chafad Disgiig,
Chelour Provinoe
25458 431 Araka Maiem ingusirial Erinta, SF.C25-GM5 T BOC.000 .z - -
Phenthong Sua-cialrsl, Phasithensg Deire,
Ghiouii Provinos
25243 FETH  Amuta Nacom industrial Extnta, 5F BT 4-GRO2R 5, 700,000 Ei i | - -
Pharthong Sub-disirial, Manthaeg Dk,
Ghotbur Provings
2848 4371 Amata Magom Indusidal Estate, 5F.C3 5-GEONS G, SO0 000 an -
P dhorsy Sus-cEstrict, Pranthong Disirics,
Chodsun Pravinge
20689, 30753 7343 Amata Negom Incusial Esiato, SFC4 5-GROTTY, GEN2 147,200 04 038 - =
Phantborg Sut-distric, Phaniiong Dk,
Chalur Provincs
158004 31144 Amata Hosom Industia® Eslata, SF.AMT.GIEAE A7, 700000 o8 . <
Don Huale Sub-dsirict, Muang Choltil District
Cralsuni Provineo
nase T80 Amain Nakor industie’ Estate, SF 81, 72-G30006 44500000 015
Phanttong Sub-dstie], Prasmong Davie,
Chalpurh Piovince
31387 1240 Amals Rakom indutne Citats, &F B1.70-C300T £4 500,000 0.16 . pe
Pharthang Sut-Seinc, Fnanmeng Dsncs
Chobun Province
2 2700 Armals Mekeen Industrial Estale, BF.C3-G302/8 B2, 900,000 o -
Fharthirg Sub-meinct, Phanthong D,
Choluwi Provincs

The accorbamyint hiSea areinfusal P e fhavoia) SpRSRnL
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ANNUAL REPORT 2017 ¢ TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust

DETIALS OF INVESTMENT
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Detals of Investmenls classified by assel lype

Ty o ieoistmeants!
Land litle deed Aren Locationg
(Fai-Mgan-Sq, Wah|
2AEOT 90800  Amata Nabom Indostial Fatsts,
Pharihang Sub-diiicl, Phanlkong District,
Chafbur Provina
G402 3-2-58 Amata Makom Induitrial Estste,
Hang Ka Kha Sub-disirict, Phanthong District
Cholbwri Paovintg
36308 4-0-82 Aarata Makorn Indusina Estato,
Phendang Subr districl, Phanthong District,
Chollburi Mrevince
Bl 3315 Amnta Makonn Irdusiin? Extola,
Phanikang Si-disvicl, Pnanshong Diatrict,
Chokuri Province
ABFTH 32827 Bargoa-in indasital Esiale,

Bangsrasun Sub-dialrict, Bangpe-in Distne!,
Phra Makbon 5i Aputhaya Pravince
AETTE 34642  Bargpa-i indusiial Eslety,
Banprasun Sub-disticl, Bangoa-in Districl,
Phes Makhon Si Ayullaya Provings
AR 30942 Sargpa-n Industial Estate,
Bangirasun Sub-distict, Bangoa-in Districi,
Phrm Makhon 51 Ayuthaya Provincs
Bargea-n Irdusuia Estse, Klong Ag Sub-disbkl,
Bangoa-n isirct, Phra Hakhon $6 Ayulnays
Prewinea
2:2-B38  Bangoa-in Indusingl Estate,

33600 1-2-43

AREDH, 48814

22T Bangeraiun Sub-dulngg, Hangoa-in Desirict,
23844 Prira Makhen i fyuthiya Provineg
PREAE
356128
1a084
57280 3287  Bangoadn induskinl Eslsla,
Ranpkrasun Sub-distnct, Bangpa-in Distrel,
Phra Makkan SiAyuthayn Prdno
43778 44621  Bangpa-in indusiial Fslatn,
Banghrasun Subnditliel, Rangpa-in Distrc!,
Phea Maibon SiAyuthaya Provings
43216 1382 Bangpa-in Industrial Estale,
Kleng Jig Sut-tierict, Bangpa.in Districl,
Pren Mosbon 5 fyutaya Piodng
4703 17334 Hi-Tech Indusirial Esinta, Ban'ane Sub-dislizt
Bangpa-in Dictiol, Phia Makhor SiAyuthaya
Pravnes
ST 0D 380 1-Tech ndusiviol Ealate, Bonane Sub-disiric,

Dangra-dn Disinct, Mhra Nakhen 5t Ayuthays
Prowvince

Hi-Tech indusiriad Calate, Benlare Sub-daricl.

Bumyprs-in Disihe, Phea Makhan SiAyuthays

apsal, Gy 3-1-83
AE340, 62393 3177

4842, 69T 3158 Prowiiee
20166 BATE  HRTech Industiial Estate, Bantane Sub-disiricl
Bangpa-in Distict, Phre Makhon 3 Apainaya
Prowance
L= ] 2-2-83 Hi-Tach indusirial Estale, Bardane Sul-gRevicl
Bangpa-in (st Prm Naihan S Ayt
Frovinsa
4842 L2 et Hi-Tech Indusirial Exabe, Bantane Sub-dsict
Hangoa-n (e, Prva Nakhan 5! Ayabeyn
Frendnce
3447 B-1-23  Hi-Tech inchustrial Eaisbs, Baniane Sub-gisincl,

Fangpa-lr Distid, P Nakhon S Ayuthays

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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2047
Fatiary | waraliouss Puwﬂgu
(Baht) %)
5F.H4. 95511 122,800,000 0.40
SF ARGOOET 52 7000000 our
SF.AT.SN G30RZ 45500000 (15151
SF M2 5-GR0AN 0,500,000 LE
BF AN 31,32 A9, 160,000 =K1
SF A0 32 43,200,000 aiE
SFALTELRR A3, 700,000 Q.14
SE AN -2 24,700,000 008
SF Al 84513 238,500,000 e
SFAL1-E13
SF.A1S140,13
SFA SN2
SF BZA56,13
TFALNEEN
SF.3-3 -2 T8 500,000 o2a
BF L3003 T F OO0, DaH .28
SF 81 529 200,000 o1
SF A1 RN.G28 247 400,000 078
SFALBR. G2E
SF ALES - BUE
SF.01.TGaE
SFCIGI6
SFAZH-GT A8 900, 000 R L
&F AD12EFY-EEMDAT 152.200,000 0.5
SF A 12E2-ESD43
aF A2 284 EEND-12
5F B26-01M £ 800,000 032
SFALZFTMN2 31,820,000 i
SF.L2.BM-GY 68,100,000 032
&SF ML -G B85, 700,000 ax
BF.ALE-GIH
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Detoils of lnvestments classifiod by ascat type

2047 HNE
Type of reresimanis’ Faclory [ wareloute Perceniage Poreartags
Larsd tile degd dgen Localinng BN 00 Earvale  ofiovosipants  Easyshie of Ewisiments
{Ral Mgon 59, Wiik] {Bati} {5} {Exsht] I
B4 30414 HETeeh Incuatial Estate. Bantone Sub-distict, BF MLBR-G1M 41, E00,000 o4 - -
Bangpa-in Disticl, Prem Makion 5§ Apllaya
Prenvinos
AGEEG A48 HkTaeh Indosinal Esinte. Baniang Sub-disinct, SF81, 10625 44,500,000 0.15
Bangpa-ln District, Phra Makkes Si Ayuthays
Pravisgs
sraez 3-72g2 HikTech ndustrial Caiate, Banians Sub-dialte, EF.AZ1GT 60,500,000 04T
Banana-in Disiric, Fhra Makbon Si Ayuthisys
Prawvinga
e ] L.1.58 Hi-Tach Iyisirfal Estatn, Bankina Sub.dakie], BF . AZ-GT AT 300 000 [Eh ] -
Borgpe-In Digirict, Phra Makkon Si Apathers
Province
BV D 184 Hi-Toch Indusilsl Essate, Barkans Sub-districl, S5.AzA0-GT 2, 500,000 [} =
Borgpa-In Cestried, Phen Makkon S§Anahaya
Provwinon
£3533 4185  Hi-Tech nduairial Estaie, Barlens Sub-disincl SFA2 8267 61,100,000 o2l - -
Bangpa-in Diswict, P Maihon 51 Aputhays
Peorinee
BT Lo ] Hi-Testh Indusiriad Esinla, Barlono Sub disbrict. SF L2 8207 &8, 600,000 na3i
Bargpe-in Disticl, Praw Makhon $ Ayuthayn
Prowinen
£3180 3111 HE-Tach Indusirial Estade, Ranlans Sub-Hsineg SF.AY -ERYS A6, 400,000 184} - -
Bangps in Diotrici, Plua Makhon §i Ayuthays
Proviee
SEO4T 13.65 Hi-Tezh ndusirial Estate, Saniang Sub-datri SFAZ3RFTIN415 54,700,000 L1 ]-]
Bangpa-kn Distrct, Phra Nakhon SiAyuthaya
Prowinea
12748 21-412  HiTech induatrisl Cetate, Bangoe Sub-distict, BF.EF1-GEG,GT 211,300,000 1 E ]
Bargpa-in Dine, Phra Ne<ton 51 Anadhaya
Pewinca
ST 34 Hi Toch indusirial Estole, Banlaro Sua-desict, SF.AZRG A 4B, 500,000 o
Bargoa-in Disticd, Prea Nakhen S§Ayputhays
Piowinca
F1ET3 30,87 He-Trch industrnl Estuls. Raniars Sus-gksinct SF.M1 G 1M 3 42,000,000 "R L] -
Ranpoa-in Djetc, Phim Hakhen 5§ Ayulhays
Prowince
SH403 3320 Hik Tiach industris! Estebe, Banlang Sub-dsinst, SFAZIN-F_T4_ 3 56,200,000 [+h ]
Bangan-n Distrel, Fnra Nakhon S Ayumaya
Provirst
20167 SO0 HirTech industris! Eelate, Banlana Sub-diairicl, EFB2SG 141 70,800,000 033 -
Bangoa-in Dlrict, Phon Mikhon Si Ayuthaya
Prossinen
+4552 14597  4-3-93, 4-3 B5 Rojana Industrial Padk, Earmbam Sub-elrcl SF_A BN.E00, 305 25,000, 000 041
UHthal Dissict (Utnasyai), Phra Makhon S0 EF.AL B304, 300
Apulhaya Provines SF.51.5-204, 208
2188 B8.2.43 Rojana Incuiral Pk, Tham Sub-distict, SF.A1.6-502 o7 100,000 0ze - *
LHhai Drigwisl, Phea Hakhan 5 Ayuthaya Province SF.51.31-50
EF.81.242-512
2LEFZ S Rijan indusies Park, U-the Sut-csiia, SFMiAN-F A3 B0HL000 0.4
L-ihmi Distnict, P Waichon S Amdbaya Province
25020 4017 Rojano induatrisl Park, U thai Sub-distid, SERMEM-C 4,000,000 [
-t Districl, Phre Makhon 51 Ayulhaya Provinde
2R827 4011 Hogans indusirial Pack. U-anal Sub-gistict, 5F.B2AR-D C4,000,000 %] -
Li-thai Disirich, Phea Makhon 5 Aeithays Province
21158 347 Rajann Indusirial Park, Thana Sub-disinic, 5F Bl 7an-4-1 &4 700, 000 15 -
LU-thai Diatriet, Phia Makhon 80 Ayutheys Provines
2E524 T Rojana indusyial Park, U-thel Sub-disinies, BF.MYSR-FR-G2 S0, 00, L0 neg
et TLET Lithai Dvaincd, Phea Nakbos 50 Ayuthays Provines 5F M2 1-FEGE
26625 H-F SF 2 Fr-Gi
ot nn 31-53 Rojana indusirial Fak, U-ihal Buls-galie, SE.AYE5T-2 38,400,000 013

Ub-thai DHsSrict, PR Madbin S Apulheya Province
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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Dastafln af invesiments classified by assot type

a7 208
Tipo af invvaiimanty Fnclney fwanshouss Fgrcenings Parcenans
Loy titls e frog Loption ilidineg pin Eprvshis  plimmsiments  Eairvalee ol invesimants
(Teai-Mgan-Sq. Wahj (Baht] (%) [k} %)
He5E? 2-3a7 Riojens industiiel Mark, UHhai Sul-ehatric, SF.NLE - FE M3 43,000,000 RE]
WUsthai Dislricd, Piva Maskon Si Ayulhays Province
2644, 26625 3 ] Rajana industiia Park, U-thal Suo-districl, SF VALY =183, W4 137 D00, 000 046
U-gha Diskricl, Pha Naahon 51 Aywehays Frovingg
PROAI A-3480 Rojana Indusirial Park, U-thel Sut-gistncl, SFMEAI-E a4 400,000 a8
LLthai Difatried, Phia Nakihon 81 Ayathays Frovince
21182 o7 Raojana indusirial Park, Thars Sub-istrict, &F B TR4-2 43800000 LiNT]
IUthas Distisl, Phia Nahea St Ayuthaya Frovincs
20520 30438 Fojana Indusiriel Park, U-thai Sub-diztnog, SF.MIBN-FZ-HIL 40,700,000 053
Li-thasi District, Phra Kaichen B Aputhaya Previncs pavk FZ-H2 2
27351 202 Rojara Irvkestvial Park, L-shal Sub-ditrick, BFEY - FE-53 25 000,000 «on
Li-thai District, Phra Naxhon S Ayutioys Proviree
2651 2550 Rjana Incustial Pask, U-ihai Sub-gisir, SFALBFIH2 29,100,000 o143
Li-ihal Desiirict, Pha Makhon S Aguthaa Provineo
6832 28685 Rogena bncustrial Park, U-thal Sub-disirid, SF.51.402 - 1686 00, 000 o
LLigl Diiariet, Phen Makhon Si Aputhagn Provines
ETTO3 2120 miwmnmmmin SF B1 -4 2,000,000 o8
Li-thal Diakriet, Prvn Makkaon 81 Ayulbaya Provincs
2T 1440-85  Regana Incustial Pary, Tharu Sub-distict, SFB1D- 245 01,400,000 1% 2]
U-shak Disirlel, Frem Nekhon 51 Andbays Provires BFCRT- 244
BF WA - 247
2650 3085  Hopnas Ingustial Pars, U-mal Sub-gisukdt, SFALTH - 10T 42 300,000 014
UHhai Distict, Prva Nakchen Si Aguthays Frovince
e 235 Rojars Indusirial Park, Thasu Sub-dslricl, SF B2 24-3 FEEI0, 000 @10
U-thad Disiricl, Phea Nakhon Si Aypuihays Provines
14583 a1-7 Rogana Evdumirial Park, Bhan Ham Sub-tisinel, BF-L313 1,400,000 023
L-thai Distrizt, Prra Mskhan S Apdhays Provinco
T 2-3-8 Roans fndusirial Park, U-ihal Sub-distel, SEAYSII-FEDS 37,000,000 012
Wi Districd, Phre Makbon $ Aputhayn Province:
2500 3393 Roans dusylal Pak, Baan-chang Sub-disinict, BF.AZ.2M-20 £3,700,000 0,448
Lhral Drairicd, Prea Nakhon 51 Ayulburys Province
PRORD 3393 Roana indusinal Park, Baan-chang Sub-Seric, 5F A2 21230 53,700,000 .14
U-nad Desict, Phra Nalshon S1 Ayulhiira Prowings
26065 3428 Reana indisinial Park, Ll-thai Sub-tizirel, GFERAAH 51,200,000 a7
U-inad Misorich, Phra Makhon 31 Ayuhaye Provincs
8472 A-0-81 Feogana indusirial Park, Bhan Ham Sub-aistnel, SF128-13 B2 100,000 oz
U-thal Districk, Phra Makhan 58 Ayutheys Province
il 2-3-50 Foyans induairial Park, U-ihai Suls-halricl, SF AT 3M-18-1 34, 200,000 5]
Lthal Déstrich, Phra Hakhen 51 Ayulhaya Provinos
aBaay 23" Fojana ndusrial Paik, U-hai Sub-dslicl, BF.A1 272982 34,800,000 o
\pihal Dastricd, Phra Naknon S Ayuthaya Provincs
il 2374 Foana ndusrial Park, U-thal Sug-disyict, AF.51.41-165 33,500,000 o
ki DistricL Phea Makhon 51 Ayuthanya Province
SHED 31868 Fons hdusiis Pad L-hai Sun-disticl, SF.MI8-2 13 46,500,000 (R L]
Uhai Diistriel, Phrs Madhen 51 Ayulhaya Paoeinos
14584 4-1-55  Rojono ndusirial Podk Khan Hem Sub-disiricl, SFL2B-431 B, B0 000 0
Usthasi District, Phea Makinen §1 Ayuthaya Poovinos
a0 B8-1-89 Rojana indusirial Pack. Baan-chang Sub-cisind, SF.C4.5-20 5 006, BT, 000 nas
U=ihesd Distiict, Pia Makhon 31 Ayuthayas Provinos
A27H4 Baf  Fuciana Indusirial Pack, U4hal Sub-disiic, 8F M2 AM-3T 1 50,300,000 a4y
U-tva Digarct, Phra Mokhon §1 Ayuihiays Provinoe
IETT F1.B0 Rejana industrial Park, Baan-chang Sub-gisiec, SFS1L 1422 27,000,000 o]
Uit District, Phen Makhon i Ayulhaya Province
34444 TOE  Rejane ndustrial Pack, Uibai Sub.diiicl SF M1 AT 6 3,500,000 [ |
1 thai Disirict, Phea Makhon 81 Ayuiivys Provinens BF M2 17337
i ] 30-30.0  Rejona indusial Pod, U thal Sub-datizt, SFALT-53 41 600 000 014
Ui District, PPhs Maihon &1 Ayuthayo Piovinco
26035 2300 Reojena hidustiial Park, U-thal Sub-diatrict SFALNI-BA4 34,800,000 &1

U-thad Dighrict, Phra Makiion Si Ayuthays Picvince

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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As at 31 December 2017

Daotalls of Investmonis classifiad by aeest tyss

27 208
Trpa of investments’ Faglory Fworahouso Parcorioge Fareaniagoe
Ly fits ised fireg Lecnliong Buitding ng. Eairyabey,  ofiovesiments  Falrvales ol ingsiments
{Ri-Ngar-Sn. Wah) {Baht) %} {@ahi) %)
ZBAZES Z1-184  Bargpu dusyial Esiaia, Prvaskss Sub-gesing), SF.A1.2:.G27 48,300,000 o2 =
Wwrarig District, Samad Prakan Paovinos
6432 13256  Bargow Indusiial Eslate, Friaskss Sub-2sicl, SN S-GEIR 63,800,000 023 =
Numrig Diisirict, Samid Prakan Paovines
268258 20818 Bargou Indusiial Esisin, Phoankes Sub-dishict, SF A2 1R2GE1E 53,100,000 mar =
Kuang Diclrict, Samul Pradan Provinge
2026 71625 Bargpu Induskiol Estalo, Phrookss Sub-districl, SF.C8 56540 132,700,000 043 - ¥
Nuang District, Sacmd Prakany Mevince
5938 5075  Bangpa kndusiial Estate, Prvaciss Sub-ditrc, GF. M3 -2ME 75,900,000 0.26
Ihusn() Districd, Barmad Pravey Provice
oG, S@.712  Hangou indusiial Estate, Fvasiksa Sub-distic, HF.215-CaN0 154, 400,000 n.50
Kl k] 0033 Mumng Distncl, Sanmd Prakan Provnee SF CaT-GEn
IEAIEY 2400 Rsagou ndusivial Estain, Frvestsa Sub-disthce, SF AZGES A F00.000 Qe =]
Bhasing District, Saemid Praean Provieen
B850 A0.544  Bangou idusiial Extate; Frrasisa Sub-disirict, SF.AZA-GAIM S200,000 ai1r
Wuang Distrel, Samud Prakan Provinco
291240 G-0-50.5  Bangou indusirial Catale, Prenckes Sub-districi, BE.C2-GAAN B2.200,000 0 - -
Muang Disirel, Famut Prakan Province
BHEI0 S0-5000  Bangou ndusirial Exube, Plvoskss Sub-distic, SF.M3.3-G7C T8,700000 0.2
Muang Distrct, Samu Prakan Provincs
V18508 23843 Prohong inousiiat Estale, Mang Hham Sub-disii, SFMLGZFI2 415, T 00000 LR ]
Srl Racha District, Cholbu Provingg
115208 30478  Pronong Indusinisl Estals, Mang Khaen Sub-dislvicd, BF M1 GR-F13 45,400,000 15
Sri Rachn Distriol, Chelbu Provines
BA2ES 7-3-574 Prhong incusiriol Estabe, Nong Kham Sub-diibiet, &F. M1.2n-PiEn 125,200,000 040
Bl Riache District, Chelbur Provinas BF, a1 -Pan2
8F, M2 P10
8F. M1 22-P 00
BA256 E-0-46.8  Pingivang Incustial Eslate, Mong Kham Subsdisticl, SF, A4 173,600,000 a.57
50 Facha Disnc, Thofour Provine 8F. 1414
SF. A58
BF. ALEE14
BF. AL
BF M1HIPM
104484 50568  Finthong Indusiral Estale, Mong Kham Sub-disrct, 5F, M1 A-PY 49 500,000 R ] . -
Bri Hachs District, Cholbur] Provines
Baz4r 3370 Pinlhong Indusirial Estale, Nong Khom Bub-dialrit, 8F. MZLE-P24 £6.900,000 a3 - -
S Rachun Desirict, Crolburi Provioos
1IE3ET 6-2-76.2  Frihong Industrdisl Estabes, Ko Kham Sub-dislid, SFLAL-PD 102 500,000 034
&ri Rmchi District, Croibur i Frovines
1168811 &-7-472  Pinihong Induslris! Estabs, Nong Kham Sub-disinic, SF B aM-PI0 T7.600,000 224 - -
&ri Rischa Diskrict, Cholbiei Provinco
115924 33721 Firthong induskisl Esiabs, Nong Kham Sub-diskict, SF M2 53-P23 £6.400,000 2
Sri Racha Distied, Crnolbud Provinee
1165023 33764 Prihonyg Indutirial Elate, hong Kham Sub.distict, BF M2 52-PE2 7 700,000 n22
Bl Rocha Distiel, Grolbur Provinee
115820 B0-TH3  Pintinanyg Indualvial Exlate, Mong Kham Sub-dishicl, BF B2 W2-P25 T8, 400,600 026
Sl Rechs Disticl, Glelbarl Proviee
Ti56 4-466  FeRhong Indusiial Eslate, Mong Kham Sub-disuic, SF.51.82-41 1 200,000 D13
B0 Recha Distrct, Ghobuni Phovinca
115027 £0.9 Fimhong Indusiial Estale. hong Rham Sub-distiel, 5F M2.5M-P2) B, B0, 000 o2z
51 Rachs Nitricl, Cholbari Provincs
131748 24820 Pirdhoag lvhastial Estate, Nong Kham Subetistriel, SF A1 54013 40,900,000 013
B Racha Disirict, Cholurl Provinoe
172408 42304 Pinlksng ndusidal Estale, Nong Kham Sub-dilriel, SF M2 4-L A4 LEG 62,800,000 1] - -
Sui Racha Disirct, Choltasri Mrovines
16468, AR 34076 Finihong Indusical Estale, Kong Kham Sub-fistiel, GF.G1.6M-L_40,1_41 41,800,000 a4 - .
5N Racha Distrigt, Gholbur] Provines
1BE517 4212 Finthomg indusinel Estabe, Bowry Sub-aming, M1, 5G- 007 53,300,000 ant £ L

Eri Aacha Distred, Cheltusl Provincs
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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Dwtaile of investrrants classified by ascat ype

a7 w06
Typs of knvesiments Faglpry 'warahouse Pareaningn Parcewiiagn
{Ra-Ngan-Sq. Wi {Baht) i) {Babt) i)
18207 33040  Prnlhong industial Estate, Bowin Sub-8sticy Al G-G-0051 43,500,000 o4 -
Srl Racha Dy, Chobun Provrce
130030 980 Nma Nakonn indusirisl Pramoticn 2o, EF M1SM-F1 43, 100,000 "R} -

Kinng Hung Bub-distrct, Korg Lusng Distnel,
Palmmihari Provines
180032 1023 Mava Makorn ivdusirisl Promaotion Zona, SF M1 5-F3 34,100,000 a1
Biong Miung Sub disirigy, fiong Luang Disircl,
Patumihan] Provings
1303324 5352 Mava Makcrn hduairlal Promsation 2o, EF M2.2'1-F& 50,600,000 LA
Hoang Hurg Sub-tati, Piong Luang Dislrcl,
Palumihanl Provings
130033 138714 a:0-0 Mava Makcrn ndustrial Promaticn Zone, SFL2.I-F4 80,760,000 A7
Kang Mung Sub-disticd, Fiong Luang Destret,
Patimihari Pamaino
130042 4045 Mava Nokern indusirial Promsticn fone, SF M2 SHF13 E& BO0,000 R L]
Kang Hung Suib-district, Klong Luang District,
Patamacd Moo
F30040 4-0-m Hava Nokoer Indusyial Promotion Zons, BF M2SR-F14 £5 800,000 o1g E .
Kiong Murig Sub-distict, Kiong Lusng Disiricl,
Patumiihani Piovinog
130044 4051 Maa Nokam indusinal Promction Zans, SEMRER-F13 5,500,000 o.1e
Kong Nung Sub-disirict, Kiong Luang Distnel,
Palimihani Pravincs
130048 2330 Mava Nakoern industrial Promation Zoes, SF A2 1FE A7 000000 25 =
Klong Murg Sub-district, Keng Luang District,
Prlsnthanl Provincs
130047 310 Mava Nakorn induairial Promalion Zeng, SF M1 8M-F18 43,900,000 D4 -
Hiong Murg Sub-disticd, Klong Luoesg Dlatrc!,
Patumshant Provings
1I004E 3-8 Miva Maksin nausra Fromotion Zona, SF.M1LS2-F18 A3 500,000 D4
Hiang Mung Sub-sisinct, ¥Kong Luang Disier,
Patumithaed Provinge
430046 24,78 Nove Hekam Industrial Promction 7o, SF 1B 44,000, 000 018 - -
Hipng Mung Sub-districl, Klang Luang Distres,
Patumihani Provincs
130031 32412 Neve Nelom Industrial Premetion Zone, SF. MY 2FT A7, 800,000 14
Kigrg Hurg Sub-district, Kleng Luang District,
Patrmihan Province
58256 3-340 ara Nasom Indusirial Fresmdtion Zone, SF A2 1024 7 500,000 L1 5]
Kieng Mung Sub-giairid, Kieng Luang Detid,
Palumirsni Frivinca
ERISE 424148 Mava Makon Indusiral Promolion Zona, SF.B2 2 £1,200,0C0 217 -
Kleng Mg Sub-dinkict, Klong Luang Distrct,
Palumtianl Pravines
130038 .23 Maea Moke industrial Promotion Zone, SF.ATEF? #1700, 000 014 -
Hicng Murg Sub-districl, Kiong Luang Diatrict,
Pustuenitiusnd Provinds
Leaschold on land snd Ractoiles
RMT B-1-48 Amais Nacoen indusinal Esinia SF.MET 080G ©8,300,000 023 73,890,000 a7
Fanmong asd Hon] Kakhn Sub-gistng,
Panmong Detncl Don Hua Lo Sub-disirct,
Musng Distriel, Chinban Prviros
st 69-86  Amala Nasorn indusirial Esinie 5F 83 8_GAGAM 8, 200,000 oa 10,480, D0l 136
Panihong and Hong Kakna Sub- dictric!,
Pantheng Disticl, Den Hua Lo Sub datriol,
Munng Disteict, Chonburl Provinca

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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Detads of Investrments classified by asse! type

Type of investmantsf
ko it gdesd

Araa

Locations

{Rai-Hgan-Sq, Wah]

170335

BTa61

oSy

74485

I6IF0

35272

I

a5IT4

35073

258E0

5401

EabL 3

arssn

122538

172080

T-2-24

418

4-2-68

10

B-3-6

33868

4ACT &

g

41851

&i-773

3358

3220

573

4023

13-1-T

3150

8100

Amsta Hakam Industrind Eslate
Panthong end Nong Kaidhn Sub-district,
Pranthang Districl, Don Hup Lo Sub-dainct,
Suarg Disiricl, Chontari Proviee
Amata Hakom Indusiial Esizte
Panirong snd Nond Facha Sub-distnic],
Bantbang Disidel, Don Hus Lo Sub-dising.
Nuang Distrizd, Choobir Provines
Aan Wa {H-Teeh] indusiial Esiste
Ban Lone Sub-gislricy, Bangpa:in District,
Phea Makhon Bi Ayutthaya Provinoe
Tan Wa (H-Tech) lrndmsirial Eslate
Ban Po Scb-gisivicl, Bangpo-in Districl
Pren Makhon 51 Ayutthaya Provrce
Han Wa [H-Tech) bndustrid Exisie
Ban Po Sut-district, Banape-in Dt
Phea Makhon Si Ayalthaya Province
Amats Hakam Inckiisl Felala,
Bankhoa Sub-deirizt Panthong Districd,
Chonbur P
Amats Madoin Indsirial Exlaba,
Bankhios Sub-dairict Panihong District,
Cremndur Provinos
Ama Nakomn indusiial Exiate,
Banknos Sub-cisiricl Paninang Listricl,
Chearibun Province
Amnti Makern Industnal Estate,
Bankban Sub-gistrict, Panthang Distrct,
Chanbui Provincg
Amaba Maker Ingusinel £ stale,
Bikhos Sub-strict Penthong Distrct,
Ghnonkadi Pronings
Amata Nasom Industrial Esiabe,
Banknoa Sub-cisiricl, Panthong D,
Chanbun Provinge
Amata Nakorn imdustial Exlate,
Mong Kakha Sub.cieirit, Panihong Distic
Chonbud Pravines
Amalo Nakorn ldustial Etlate,
heryg Kakhn Sub-cisingl, Parthong Distic
Churitur Prosincg
Aurata Nekorn Industial Estale,
Nerig Hakha Sub-gistrct, Panthong Distic.
Cronbur Prosince
HAurala Nakorn Indusirial Estile,
Parhong Sub-distiel, Panihang Diskic,
Chanku| Prosince
Armuba Ngiorn Indusinial Eslabs,
Parthigrg Sub-disticl, Panthong Diewis.
Chankari Provinge
Amuta Malorn Induslirial Eslabe,
Panihong Sub-distict, Fanthong Disiial,
Lhonbun Prowvrte
Amata Nakarn bduasial Estata,
Non Hus Lo Subkdiairicd], Mueang Chonbon Lisincl,
Chorburi Prowvines
Amain Makern ndustial Extate,
Don Hua Lo Sub- district, Mutang Chontur Disirct
Chonburi Province

Faclory | warehusa

SFL4_0EI5

GF 3 512 GO0

L2852

LB - G147

AEA - Grai

AZ 5 - Gl

SF M2 1 - GI24555

SF 2.4 . GT24851

BFMZTH - G724/34

BE M2 712 - G 2drsh

SF AN - GT2G2

AF AZIZ - GT2AGD

5F 81,5 - GBEO

SF.02.110 - GROT

SF W24 - GO0EM

HEFAZE - GaOTH

SF.ARD-GROTR
SF.R2.8 - (RO
F A1 A1 - GADREM

SF.C2.6 - GBS
SN2 A - GOSHE
F M2.T - G854
SF.L22 - GTOAT

BFM2.5 . GEIS
SF.ALGM - GRIIM

2017 6
Percactuge Forcomem.
Earvie  olivesmens  Egiyee  ofinvestmenis
{Bakd) [ {Eaht) (7]
111,400,000 038 17870 000 155
GT 000,000 ek 70,440,000 a2
55,600,000 018
54,000,000 At
94,700,000 ox
0000 o
&7 700,000 nis
GF 100,000 oz
63,0000, O oz
A7 100,000 G158
AT 100,000 Lk L]
0800, 000 13
7 400,000 047
7,000,000 o0
183,500,000 L]
45,000,000 s
164 G0, 000 C.60
A, 100, 000 GA8
88,720,000 L%

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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Dalsile af invesimonts elasaifiod by assat type

Typo of investvienls!

Ld@odesd g

1as7E

172408

Fa k-]

7430

WhEL14

JEDe

T

713

4-3534

8085

33387

A43-BEE

18-0n 230

Total investmerts in proeparies

hesmicne

Rai-Rgen-Sg, Weh)

Aanats Makoin Indusinal Eslbele,

Do Hus Lo Sub-disiicl, Mueeryg Chorbur Distil,

Chanbun Prvinss

Biniheeg Indusinia Estate,
HNoag Kham Sub-distict, 5n Hecha Dhsirio
Choriturd Provanss

Pinthang Irdlvirial Eslats,
Heng Kham Sub-district, Sri Recha Districl,
Cheabur Provimen

Pinihang Indusirind Esleto,
oy Kheen Sub-distict, Sr Racha Ditnsl
Cranbud Provinoe

Pahong indusiral Exate,
Bowin Sub-dislrict, 5n Racha Using,
Chankum Provinos

Anaka Gity Increlial Exlale,
Mep Yarg Phan Sub eeiricl, Plusk
Droang District, Rayang Prowinca

Acnaka Cily livkualrial Eslals,
M Yang Pron Bub-sisuicl, Plueh,
Doeng Distics, Rayong Piovinos

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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Factory I warshousn

Iwilding oo,

57032 - GERT

M2T LIS

L3.2-1-40

ALBG - L4301

2T - G-005

A16 - G-005

M2 4 - AR

AAATAZ - ARI0M

AT 2008
Parconkage Percanlage
Esrvalon  ofiasimonis  Eskvalug  olinvesimeens
[Eahi} %) {Reshi) (%)
70,300,000 026
64,000,000 o2
00,000 025
45,500,000 045
104,000,000 0.34
£5.700,000 LR 1]
437,800,000 108
0450, 00,000 B954  7a81.650,000 Al
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Dedalls of Invesiments classfled by assel iype

20T s
T'ppee of irwesiments! Peneioge of Percarlege o
i {51y Moty gice  InGarRsL (R ol Eighi wislys [FVCRLICT] Cost [Enir voin lzeestrmon
{Percord| (Hart) [Esamt (Percant) (Bahi) {Bahl) [Percent
Inveskmants in sacurilles
Fiund depogits
CIAB Tha Bank Puble Company Limied 20 Jansary 2097 130 * . WA HT BT T00ATETY 13
CUAB Tha Bavik Publie Company Limed 10 Fabruany 2017 1.30 . ] A0 000, O 000,000 o3
CHAB The Bank Putde Company Liméed 23 Fabrunny 2017 1.35 B 30,000,000 S0000,000 035
CIME Tha Gonk Puble Company LimBod 38 Fabruasy 2017 135 40,128 544 40128644 053
CHAD The Bonk Publio Compony Limitod 13 Mareh 2017 145 + v 30,000,000 30,000,000 a3d
GHAB Thee Bank Public Company LimBed 20 Maveh 2017 1.45 0,087,233 097,733 G40
CHAB Thai Bk Public Company Limited 32 Jaruary 2098 1.20 101,888,267 10,688,287 0.33 s -
CIWB Thai Bank Pubdc Company Limed 13 March 2013 1.25 &0, 124 858 40,124 858 013 . i H
Total fixed deposlls _1‘1.4]-!2.:9?:,5_ 141,812,006 048 270,554,548 TP 554,548 358
Total invesimoms | seourities 141,813,525 141,812,825 GdE 270,584 648 270,664,648 A58
Total myestmens 30,62,412,935 100,00 7 2,64 16000

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Mote
Investment Incoma
Rental and service income
Interest income 19
Income from rental and service guarantees 18, 19
Income fram forfeiture of rental and service deposits
Other income
Total income
Expenses
Trust management fee 17, 19
Trustee fee 17, 18
Regisirar fee 17
Professional fees
Operating expenses 19
Amortisation of deferred expenses 10
Interest expenses 19
Total expanses
Net investment income
Unrealised gains (losses) on investments
net unrealised gains (losses) on investments 7

Total unrealised gains (losses) on investments

Met increase in net assets resulting from operations

1 63

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.

(Unit; Baht)
2017 2016
587,407,906 663,070,093
3,715,314 3,885,062
515,162 62,054,459
3,598,000 24,804,750
9,185 1,770,587
585,245,577 655,774,961
65,025,982 60,508,304
6,802,579 5,891,766
2,354,095 2,272,800
1,881,786 589,661
59,821,267 99,994,839
15,477 664 15,184,885
74,785,459 74,208,411
226,148 812 258,650,866
360,096,765 397,124,295
(142,250,000) 90,840,000
(142,250,000} 90,850,000
226,846,765 488,014,295
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Increase in net assets resulting from operations
during the year

Met investment income

MNet unrealised gains (losses) on investments

Increase in net assets resulting from operations

Distributions to unitholders

Increase in capital during the year

Increase in net assets during the year

Met assets at the beginning of year

Met assets at the end of year

16
14

(Unit: Baht)

2017 2016
369,096,765 397,124,295
(142,250,000) 90,890,000
226,846,765 488,014,295

{387,011,040)
19,881,389,027

(342,460,783)

19,721,224,752 145,563,512
5,746,888,728 5,601,315,216
25,468,093 480 5,746 868,728

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Increase in net assets resulting from operations

Adjustments to reconcile the increase in net assets resulting from

operations to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Purchases of investments in securities
Sales of investment in securiies
Met purchases and sales of investment in securities

Amortisation of deferred expenses

Increase in accounts receivable from rental and service

Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable from interest

Increase in olher receivables

Increase in deferred expenses

Increase in other assets

Increase in accrued expenses

Increase (decrease) in withholding tax payables
Increase in advance receipts for rental and service
Increase (decrease) in deposits for rental and service
Increase in other liabilities

Doubtful debts

Interest expenses

Met unrealised losses (gains) on investments

Met cash flows from operating activities

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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017

226,846,765

(Unit: Baht)
2016

488,014,295

{1,147 261, 429)

(1,292,189, 482)

1,276,003,052 1,331,905 441
128,741,623 39,715,959
15,477,664 15,184,885
(49,794,940) (28,930,215)
88,279 (100,772)
(11.712,023) (4,544,332)
(58,758,279) (5,398,959)
(13,118 ,489) (1,865,971)
101,909,750 2,920,845
12,332,262 (47,071,690)
2,282,000 -
609,979,307 (17,848,170)
2,434,700 280,773
25,387,279 30,843,636
74,785,459 74,208,411
142,250,000 (90,890,000)
1,209,131,357 454,428,695
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of long<term loans

Cash received from short-term loans

Cash received from issuance of debentures

Cash paid for interest expenses

Cash paid in exchange of investment units

Changes in net assets after receiving the transfers of assets
and obligations from the property funds

Distributions to unitholders

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash at banks

Cash and cash at banks at the beginning of year

Cash and cash at banks at the end of year (Note 8)

Suppilemental cash flows information:
Mon-cash item
Invastment in proparties received from the issuance

and exchange the investment units

(Unit: Baht)
2017 2018
{1,819,000,000) -
3,739,966 268 3
1,800,000,000 s
(55,885,980) (74,214 979)
(1,912,522 ,742) -
(1,447 ,288,229) -
(387,011,040) (342 460,783)
(81,741,723) (416,675,762)
1,127,389,634 37,752,933
41,049 387 3,296,454
1,168,439,021 41,049 387

23,241,200,000

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017

For the years ended 31 December

{Unit: Baht)
For the period as from
12 December 2014
o 31 December

2017 2018 2015 2014

Dperating performance (per unity
Net assel value - beginning of yearnperiod 10,1381 95623 10,0232 -
Income from investment operations

Net investment income 0,5824 0.7008 0.8147 0.0232

Net reallsed gains on invesiments - 00005 -

Nat unrealised gaing {losses) on invesimants (D.2245) 01604 (0.3587) -
Total net ncome from vesiment operations 03579 0,8610 04556 0.0232
Add:  Increase (decrease) in capital from unitholders (0.02TE) - 0.0884 10.0000
Lass: Distributicns to unitholders (0.6828) 10.6042) (0.3182)

Decrease in capital reduction . = (0.3877)

Increase (decrease) in net assels value during the yeariperiod ' (0.3527) 0.2568 (0.1408) 10,0232
Met atsel value - and of yearperiod 0. TRE4 10,1391 98623 10.0232
Ratlo of ingrease in not assebs rosulting from

operations to average netl assets during the year'peried (%) .07 B.&D 446 0.23
Significant financial ratics and additienal Infosmation
et assets - and of yearfperiod (Baht) 25,4668,003,480 5. 740,508,720 5,0801,315,216 3,432,972,704
Rao of tatal expenses lo average net assels

during the yeadperiod (%) 3.06 4.51 3.59 0.1
Ratio of imeestimant Income o average net assets

during the yeaperiod (%) B.06 11.43 11.55 0.34
Ratio of weighted average invesiment turnover dyring the yoar'pariod

o average net assets during the yearnpedod (%)" 313,20 - &7.81 123.43
Average net assais during the year/period (Baht) T,366,241,533 5,739,121,196 3, 598,025,006 3,426, 306,639

* |Investment trading transactons exclude cash at banks and investment in promissory notes, and must be real
purchases or sales of invesments which exclude purchases of investments under resale agreements or sales

under repurahasa agraaments.

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017

1. Information of TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust

TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust (“the Trust”) is a closed-
end trust with specific purpose. The Trust was established as a trust on 12 December
2014, with no project life stipulated, with the current capital of Baht 25,423 million.

The Trust's objectives are to raise funds from general investors and to use the
proceeds from such fundraising to acquire, lease andlor sub-lease of immovable
properties. The Trust will take the transfer of the ownership and/or leasehold rights
and/or sub-leasehold rights therein and seek benefits from those properties by way of
lease, sub-lease, transferring and/or disposing of immovable properties the Trust
invests in or acquires. The Trust will also improve, modify, construct and/or develop
immovable properties by taking the transfer of a construction permit and/or applying for
other permits andfor executing any transactions necessary and advisable for
immovable properties, with the aim of generating income and returns for the Trust and
its unitholders. This includes investment in other properties and/or securities andfor
seeks interest by any other means as prescribed by securities laws and/or other

relevant law.

The Stock Exchange of Thailand approved the listing of the Trust's units and permitted

their trading from 9 January 2015 onwards.

TICON Management Company Limited acts as the Trust Manager, BBL Asset
Management Company Limited acts as the Trustee, TICON Logistics Park Company
Limited and TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited are hired as the
Property Management Managers and Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited

acts as the Trust Registrar.

The Trust’s major unitholders are TICON International Pte. Lid. and Social Security
Office, which holds 21.15% and 17.22%, of the trust units, according to the latest
registry of unitholders on 29 December 2017 (31 December 2016: TICON Industrial
Connection Public Company Limited and Social Security Office which holds 19.60%
and 12,45%).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On 20 December 2017, the Trust received the transfers of assets, which were mostly
properties, and obligations of TICON Property Fund, TPARK Logistics Froperty Fund
and TICON Industrial Growth Leasehold Property Fund (the Funds), as approved by
the Extraordinary General Meeting of Unitholders of the Trust No. 1/2017 held on
19 October 2017. The Trust issued trust units to the Funds in a total amount of
2,035,587 048 trust units and paid Baht 3,739 966,268 of cash in exchange for the
assets and obligations of the Funds. The swap ratios of investment units to trust units
are as follows:

1) At the rate of 1 investment unit of TICON Property Fund to 0.9874 trust unit of the
Trust with Baht 1.8877 of cash per unit, whereby the total amount of 1,135,057,711
trust units with Baht 1,951,577,352 of cash were exchanged for the assets and
obligations of TICON Property Fund.

2) At the rate of 1 investment unit of TPARK Logistics Property Fund to 1.0129 trust
units of the Trust with Baht 1.7415 of cash per unit, whereby the total amount of
419,177,837 trust units with Baht 720,701,158 of cash were exchanged for the
assets and obligations of TPARK Logistics Property Fund.

3) At the rate of 1 investment unit of TICON Industrial Growth Leasehold Property
Fund to 0.8673 trust unit of the Trust with Baht 1.4811 of cash per unit, whereby the
total amount of 481,351,500 trust units with Baht 827,560,500 of cash were
exchanged for the assets and obligations and cash of Baht 240,127,258 for the
repayment of the existing loan of TICON Industrial Growth Leasehold Property
Fund.

After the issue of new trust units, the registered capital of the Trust is Baht

25,066,972,762, divided into 2,602,387 048 trust units at a par value of Baht 9.6323

each (the registered capital in Note 14 has included the increase in far value of

investments in properties amounting to Baht 356,479,015), and the newly issued trust
units have been listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand with the trade beginning on

28 December 2017,

2. Distribution policy

The Trust has a policy to pay distributions to unitholders at least twice a year. However,

the Trust Manager might consider paying special dividends to unitholders as it deems

necessary and appropriate.

(1) In the event that the Trust has net profit in any accounting period, the Trust
Manager shall distribute distributions to unitholders for not less than 80% of the net
profit after deducting unrealised gain on revaluation or valuation review of the
properties or leasehold rights of the properties in that accounting period, including
other adjustments according to the Notification of the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(2) In the event that the Trust has accumulated losses remaining, the Trust Manager
will not pay distributions to unitholders.

Distributions will not be paid from either profit or retained earnings if the payments
would result in an increase in the Trust's deficit in the period that payment is made.

In consideration of making a distributions payment, if the value of the interim dividend
per unit to be paid during the financial year is equal or below Baht 0.10, the Trust
Manager reserves its right to withhold that distributions payment and carry the whole
amount over the next distributions payment.

3. Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards enunciated under the Accounting Prefessions Act B.E. 2547 and
in accordance with the regulations and fermat specified in Accounting Standard No. 106
"Accounting for Investment Business”.

The financial statements in Thai language are the cfficial statutory financial statements
of the Trust. The financial statements in English language have been translated from
the Thai language financial statements,

4. New financial reporting standards
{a) Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Trust has adepted the revised financial reporting standards and
interpretations (revised 2016) and new accounting treatment guidance which are
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2017. These financial reporting
standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial
Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards revision of werding and
terminology, and provision of interpretations and accounting guidance to users of
standards. The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have any
significant impact on the Trust's financial statements.

(b) Financial reporting standards that will become effective in the future

During the current year, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of
revised financial reporting standards and interpretations (revised 2017} which are
effective for fiscal years beqginning on or after 1 January 2018. These financial reporting
standards were asimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial
Reporting Standards with most of the changes and clarifications directed towards
disclosures in the notas to financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Trust's management believes that the revised financial reporting standards will not
have any significant impact on the financial statements when they are initially applied.

5.  Significant accounting policies

5.1 Revenue and expenses

Rental and service income ig recognised as revenue in the statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. The recognised revenue which is not yet due per
the operating lease agreements has been presented under the caption of "Accounts
receivable from rental and service” at the end of reporting period.

Premium or discounts on debt instruments are amortised evenly over the remaining
term of the debt instruments, using the effective interest rate, and are treated as part of
interest income.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate
Expenses are recorded on an accrual basis.

5.2 Measurement of Investments

Investments are recognised as assets at cost, on the date when the Trust receives the
rights in the investments. The cost of investments comprises the purchase price and all
direct expenses incurred by the Trust in their acquisition.

Investments in properties

Investments in properties are stated at fair value with no depreciation charge. The Trust
Manager measured their fair value as at the first balance sheet date at the acquisition
cost of investments in properties. At subsequent balance sheet dates, they are
presentad at fair value, using the appraisal value assessed by an independent
appraiser approved by Thal Valuer Association and The Valuers Association of
Thailand (Pursuant to the Notification of the Office of the Securities and Exchange
Commission concerning the granting of approval of valuation companies and principle
valuers for public use). Valuation will be made when economic conditions change, but
at least every two years, commencing from the date of the appraisal made for the
purposes of investing or leasing the properties. In addition, the valuation will be
reviewed within one year after the latest valuation date.

Gains or losses on valuation of investments in properties are presented as net
unrealised gains or losses in the statement of income.,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments in securities

Investments in marketable debt securities which can be freely traded con an open
market are presented at their fair value, based on the latest yield rate guoted by the
Thai Bond Market Assaciation as of the date on which the investments are valued. The
fair value of investments which cannot be freely traded on an open market is based on
the yield rate as quoted by a market maker which the Trust Manager considers to be
the nearest equivalent to fair value. The Trust uses the amortised cost methed to
determine the fair value of debt securities, which time to maturity is within 90 days from
investment date. Gains or losses from the valuation of investments in securities are
recorded as net unrealised gains or losses in the income statement. To determine the
cost of investments which are disposed of, the weighted average method is used.

Investments in bank deposits, bill of exchange and nan-transferable promissory notes
are presented using the sum of principal and accrued interest as of the date on which
the investment is valued to determine fair value. Accrued interest is separately
presented under the caption of “Accounts receivable from interest” at the end of
reporting period.

Investments in transferable promissory notes are stated based on the yield rate quoted
by a market maker which the Trust Manager considers o be the nearest equivalent to
fair value. Gains or losses from the valuation of investments are presented as net
unrealised gains or losses in the statement of income.

5.3 Accounts receivable from rental and service

Accounts receivable from rental and service are stated at the net realisable value.
Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for the estimated losses that may be
incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection
experience and analysis of debtor aging.

5.4 Deferred expenses

Deferred expenses consist of expenses incurred for issuing and initial public offering
the trust units such as underwriting fee, trust setup cosls and other direct expenses.
Amortisation is charged to expense on a straight-line basis for 5 years.

5.5 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that own a voting interest of at least
10% in the Trust, control, or are controlled by, the Trust, whether directly or indirectly, or
which are under commen control with the Trust.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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They also include individuals or enterprises which directly or indirectly own a voting

interest in the Trust that gives them significant influence over the Trust, the Trust

Manager, key management personnel, directors, and officers of the Trust Manager with

authority in the planning and direction of the Trust's operations.

Relationships with related parties are as follows.

Entities’ name Relationship
TICON International Pte. - The Trust's major unitholder -

Ltd.

TICOMN Industrial - Properly Manager
Connection Public - The parent company of
Company Limited Trust Manager

TICON Logistics Park - Property Manager

Company Limited

TICON Management - The Trust Manager
Company Limited

BBL Asset Management - Trustee

Company Limited
TICON Property Fund - Common management
TPARK Logistics - Common management

Property Fund
TICON Industrial Growth
Leasehold Property

Common management

Fund
Bangkok Bank Public - A director is as the same
Company Limited family member of the

major shareholder of the
Trust's major unitholder

Details of Business Transactions
The Trust's unitholder

Entered intc the lease agreements on
land and factories as the lessor or
sub lessor '

Entered into the selling agreements on
land and factories as the seller

Entered into Property Managsment
Agreement, as the property manager

Entered into the lease agreements on
land and warehouses as the lessor
ar sub lessor

Entered into the selling agreements on
warehouses as the seller

Entered into Property Management
Agreament, as the property manager

Receive base fee for managing the
Trust

Recsive performance fee for managing
main Trust's properlies

Receive incentive fee and commission
from the Trust

Receive Trustee fee

Transfer of assets and obligations in
exchange of Trust's units

Transfer of assets and obligations in
exchange of Trust's units

Transfer of assets and obligations in
exchange of Trust's units

Receive deposit and provide loan to
the Trust
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Entities’ name Relationship Details of Busin Transaction
Mitsui & Co. (Asia Pacific) - The major shareholder of . The Trust's unitholder
Pte. Ltd. the Trust manager
TICON Demco Power 8 - Joint venture of the Trust's - Receive rental and service income
Co., Ltd. major unitholder
TICON Demco Power 11 - Joint venture of the Trust's - Receive rental and service income
Co., Ltd. major unitholder

5.6 Distribution to unitholders

Decreases in retained earnings are recognised as at the date a cash distribution is
declared.

5.7 Long-term leases

Lease of assets not transferred a significant portion of risks and rewards of ownership
to lessee are classified as operating leases. The Trust as the lessor, receipts money
under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

5.8 Provisions

Frovisions are recognised when the Trust has a present obligation as a result of a past

event, it is probable that an outflow of resource embodying economic benefits will be

required to settle obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
_ obligation.

59 Income tax

The Trust has no corporate income tax liability since it is exempted from corporate
income tax in Thailand.

5.10 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the
measurement date. The Trust apply a quoted market price in an active market to
measure their assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by
relevant financial reporting standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical
asset or liability or when a quoted market price is not available, the Trust measure fair
value using valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and
maximises the use of relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are
required to be measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on
categorise of input to be used in fair value measurement as follows:

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets

or liabilities

Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Trust determine whether transfers have
occurred between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at
the end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

6. Use of significant judgement and accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards
at times requires the Trust Manager to make subjective judgements and estimates
regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect
reported amounts and disclosures and actual results could differ. Significant

judgements and estimates are as follows:
Fair value of assets

The Trust measures its investments in leasehold rights to properties on the balance
sheet date at fair value based on the value as assessed by an independent appraiser.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The Trust considers such
fair value is appropriate. However, the actual returns to be received by the Trust on
such investments in properties could differ depending upon certain factors and
conditions which will be incurred to the assets in the futures.

Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance
leasa, the Trust Manager is required to use judgement regarding whether significant
risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, taking into
consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the Trust Manager needs to make
judgement and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history,
aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic condition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments recognised in the balance sheet
that are not actively traded and for which guoted market prices are not readily available,
the Trust Manager exercise judgement, using a variety of valuation techniques and
models. The input to these models is taken from observable markets, and includes
consideration of liquidity, correlation and longer-term volatility of financial instruments.
Change in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value recognised in the
balance sheet and disclosures of fair value hierarchy.

7.  Investments in properties

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

2017 2016

Investments in properties - at cost

Investments in properiies - beginning of year 7,387,260 7,387.260

Add: Purchases during the year 23,241,200 -

Imvestments in properties - end of year 30,628,480 7,387,260
Wet unrealised losses on investments in properties

Met unrealised losses on investments - beginning of year (35,610) (126,500)

Add: Met unrealised gains {losses) from the revaluation of

investments during the year (142,250) 80,800

Met unrealised losses on investmants - end of year (177,860) (35,610)

Investments in properties - end of year 30,450,600 7,351,650

Movements of the investments in properties account during the year 2017 were
summarised below.

The Trust hired an independent appraiser to revalue its investments in 98 units using
the income approach, as detailed below, in accordance with an independent appraiser's

report.
Unrealised losses
Date - Fair value from the revaluations
_Eh.l;hl.!-ir.::-n Baht) (Million Baht)
18 May 2017 7.302 495
15 December 2017 7,209 - 928
142.3
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The Trust received main assets of the Funds totalling Baht 23,241 million as the

following details:
Main assets of TICON Property Fund transferred to the Trust.

Lands, factory buildings, and standard warehouse buildings in the total of 242 buildings
which have the approximate total leasable area of 577,985 square meters, situated on
lands with total approximate area of 874 rai 0 ngan 7.8 square wah, divided into factory
buildings of 234 buildings, approximate leasable area of factory is 558,385 square
meters, situated on lands with approximate area of 847 rai 0 ngan 62.8 square wah in 8
industrial estates, industrial promotion area, and industrial park and lands of warehouse
buildings in the total of 8 buildings, with approximate leasable area of 19,600 square
meters situated on lands with approximate area of 23 rai 2 ngan 11 square wah, which
located in TICON Logistics Park Bang Na Project.

Main assets of TPARK Logistic Property Fund transferred to the Trust.

Lands and warehouse buildings at the total amount of 63 units in 5 projects, having
approximate leasable area of 243,625 square meters, situated on lands with total
approximate area of 285 rai 3 ngon 84 square wah.

Main assets of TICON Industrial Growth Leasehold Properly Fund transferred to the
Trust.

Leasehold rights in land and leaseheld right or ownership in warehouse buildings at the
total amount of 16 warehouses, divided into 50 units in 2 projects with warehouse total
approximate area of 182,095 square meters, situated on lands with total approximate
area of 214 rai and leasehold right or ownership in factory buildings at the amount of 37
buildings in & projects with factory total approximate area of 111,250 square meters,
situated on lands with total approximate area of 177 rai.

Key assumptions used in the valuation for the year 2017 are summarised below:

Result to fair value where as an increase

Key assumplions .ﬁ.ssumEﬁ_unS . in assumption value
Rental per square meter (Eaht) 125 - 215 Increase in fair value
Discount rate (%) 9.5-10.0 Decrease in fair value
Capitalised rate (%) 00-75 Decrease in fair value
Occupancy rate (%) 85.0-97.0 Increase in fair value
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Movements of the investments in properties account during the year 2018 were
summarised below.

On 1 April 2018, the Trust hired an independent appraiser to appraise the fair value of
the investments in 98 units of properties using the income approach. It subsequently
adjusted the value of these properties to their fair value of Baht 7,352 million, with a net
unrealised gain from the revaluation of Baht 81 million.

Key assumptions used in the valuation for the year 2018 are summarised below:

Result to fair value where 8s an increase

Key assumptions Assumplions in assumplion value
Rental per gquare meter (Baht) 120 - 284 Increase in fair value
Discount rate (%) 8.5-10.0 Decrease in fair value
Capitalised rate (3%) 0.0-7.75 Decrease in fair value
Occupancy rate (%) 80.0 - 1000 Increaze in fair value

The terms of leasehold on land and warehouses are between 26 years and 28 years
and the Trust has obligations to demolish buildings and any censtruction on the land
under the leasehold rights in order to handover the land back to lessor at the end of the
lease term on the year 2043 to year 2045

The Trust has several operating lease agreements in respect of the lease of lands,
factories and warehouses buildings, The terms of the agreements are generally
between 4 months and 12 years. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, future minimum
rental income to be generated under these operating leases is as follows.

(Unit: Million Baht)

2017 2016
Less than 1 year 1,891 388
In over 1 and up to 5 years 2,290 714
In over 5 years 483 468
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Cash and cash at banks

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Trust has the following deposits with the

following banks.

Bank - PrinciEa_l_[_ThUusand Baht) Interest rate per annum (%)
2017 o6 2017 _oane
Cash 100 5 -
Bank deposits
Saving accounts
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited 1,168,333 40,558 0.375-0500 0375-0.750
Current accounts
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited & LE
Total bank deposits 1,168,339 41,044
Total 1,168,430 41,049

Accounts receivable from rental and service

The balances of accounts receivable from rental and service as at 31 December 2017

and 2016, aged on the basis of due dates are summarised below.

Age of receivables

Mot yet due
Pasl due
Not over 3 months
3- 6 months
6 - 12 months
Over 12 months
Total
Unbilled operating leases receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Accounts receivable from rental and service, net

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2017 2016
1,140 763
16,451 2,811
2,537 128
- 19,5563
45,770 B, 775
65,808 32,030
58,381 43 464
(57,234) (31,847)
68,055 43 647
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10. Deferred expenses

11.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2[]‘1?___ 20186
Deferred expenses - beginning of the year 51,974 61,759
Add: Increase during the year 58,758 5,399
Less: Amortised during the year (15,478) (15,184) )
Deferred expenses - end of the year 95,-254 51,874

Short-term loans

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Interest rate Maturity date 2017 2016

(% per annum}
Short-lerm loans
from financial
institutions 2.50 20 June 2018 3,735,966 -

The short-term loans contained certain restrictions, which can be waived when a waiver
letter fram borrower is provided. Details are as follows:

Resistance of additional borrowing, indebtedness or obligatien from the debt or
obligation that the Trust has had as at the contract date.

Sale or transfer of properties and leasehold rights, except (a) sale of properties
under option to buy in accordance with the prospectus or (b) sale of properties
totaling not exceeding Baht 1.6 billion for each transaction and at the total of Baht
6.4 billion.

Reduction of the registered capital of the Trust, except the reduction of capital from
the excess liquidity of the normal operation as stated in the prospectus or reduction
following of the resolution passed by the unithclders’ meeting.

- Resistance of obligation with assets, leasehold rights or income of the Trust,
change or addition of the Property Management Manager of the Trust.
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12. Long-term loans
{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Interest rate
Loan {% per annum) Repaymeant schedule 2017 2016
1 MLR less the rate Payment of principal by semi-annual which - &60,000
specified in the 1st principal payment on December 2021
agreement with the last payment within June 2024
2 MLR less the rate Payment of principal by semi-annual which - 959,000
spacified in the 15t principal payment on December 2022
agreement with the last payment within June 20256
Total lang-term loans - 1,819,000
The Trust drawn from long-term loan from Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited for
its investments in properties.
The long-term loans were unsecured and the loan agreements contained general
conditions, such as limitation of debt-to-assets ratio, resistance of additional borrowing,
indebtedness or obligation, sale or transfer of properties and leasehold rights.
During the current period, the Trust made full repayment of long-term loans.
13. Debentures
Nm_}t_.nr‘u{ d-l_-:b: atre [LUnit) Amount (Thousand Bahi)
Type of
_dekeniure Intarest rate Age Maturity dale 2017 2018 2017 2018
Unsubrordinated and unsecured debenturas
= Mo, 12017
» Tramche | Fixed rate of 2.98% p.a Iyeprs 5 Aprl 2020 800,000 800,000
- Mo 172017
«Tranche l  Fised rate of 4.18% pa 7 yoors & Agril 2024 1,000,000 1,000,000
Tolal debentues - al face value 1,800,000 1,800,000
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Interest on debentures is due for repayment on a semi-annually basis on 5 April and
5 October of every years.

The debentures contained certain restriction, such as the limitation of debt-to-total
assets ratio of nol exceed 80% at the year ended throughout the age of debentures, the
resistance of additional borrowing, or obligation except those incurred under normal
business or operations.
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14. Registered capital

15.

Movements in the capital received from the unitholders account are as follows.

Initial trust capital

The 1st reduction on trust unit value
The 2nd reduction on trust unit value
The 1st capital increase

Total

Capital increase during the year

Total

Retained earnings

Number of trust  Value per

) units unit Total
(Thousand (Baht) (Thousand
Unit) Baht)
342,500 10.0000 3,425,000
- (0.1934) (B6,240)
- (0.1743) (59,697)
224,300 10.0000 2,243,000
566,800 5,542,063
2,035,587 9.7669 19,881,389
2,602,387 25,423,452

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2017 2016

Met accumulated income from investments 691,649 294,525
Net accumulated realized gains on investments 211 21
Net accumulated unrealized losses on investments (35,610) (126,500}
Accumulated distributions to unitholders _ (451,444) (108,984)
Retained eamings - beginning of year 204,806 . £9,252
Add: Increase in net assets resulting from operation

during the year 226,847 488,014
Less: Distribution to unitholders the year (387,011) {342,460)
Retained eamings - end of year 44,642 204,806
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16. Distributions to unitholders

During the years, the Trust paid distributions to its unitholders as follows.

Declared date F-:I_r__l_l'lel_operations as from Per unit Total
(Bant) {Thousand
Baht)
23 February 2017 1 October 2016 - 31 December 2016
and retained earnings 0.1600 90,688
12 May 2017 1 January 2017 - 31 March 2017 and
retained earnings 01600 90,688
8 August 2017 1 April 2017 - 30 June 2017
and retained earnings 0.1600 90,588
9 November 2017 1 July 2017 - 31 October 2017 and
retained eamings 0.2028 114,947
Total distributions for the year 2017 0.5828 387,011

23 February 2016 1 November 2015 - 31 December 2015

and retained earnings 0.0840 53,279
9 May 2016 1 January 2016 - 31 March 2016 and

retained eamings 0.1800 102,024
8 August 20186 1 April 2016 - 30 June 2016

and retained eamings 0.1702 96,470
8 November 2016 1 July 2016 - 30 September 2016 and

retained earnings 01600 90,688
Total distributions for the year 2016 0.6042 342 461

17. Expenses

Details of the trust management fee, trustee fee and registrar fee are summarised

below,
Expenses Percentage _
1. Trust management fee
-Base fee 0.25 9% per annum of the Trusl's total assets
-Performance fee 3.00 % per annum of net income from rental and

service agreement for December 2017

200 % per annum of net income from rental and
service agreement on wareghouse buildings for
the period as from January to November 2017
and for the year 2016
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EHIFIEI‘!SES
4,00
-Incentive fee 5.00
0.00 -10.50
0.00 - 19.50
-Commission fee for
acquiring a new
lesses
-Commission fee for 3.00
buying/selling/
transferring
leasehold/ receiving
leazehold
2. Trustee fee
0.080
0.045
0.030
0.09875

3. Registrar fee

Percentage

% per annum of net income from rental and

service agreement on factory buildings for the
period as from January tc November 2017 and
for the year 2016

5% per annum of net operating income for
December 2017

% per annum of net operating income of
warehouse buildings of the Trust for the period
as from January to November 2017 and for the
year 2018

%hper annum of net operating income of factory
buildings of the Trust for the peried as from
January to November 2017 and for the year
2018

In proportion to rental and service periods but not
over 3 months based on the latest rental and
service rate of new lessee

% per annum of the value of buying / selling /
transferring leaseholdfreceiving leasehold

For December 2017 at the rate as follows:

% per annum of tolal asset value for a portion not
maore than Baht 15,000 million

% per annum of total asset value for a portion
that exceeds Baht 15,000 million up to Baht
30,000 millien

% per annum of total asset value for a portion
that exceed Baht 30,000 million

% per annum of the Trust's net assets for the
period as from January to November 2017 and
for the year 2016

Actual paid but not over 0.05% per annum of the
Trust's net asset value

The above fees are calculated and charged to the Trust's account on a monthly basis.

Operating expenses include expenses incurred specifically for the Trust such as the

Trust's setting up expenses, utilities, insurance premium, bank charge, postage and

various expenses which are incurred legally and in accordance with regulations.
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18. Income from rental and service guarantees

TICON Logistics Park Company Limited and TICON Industrial Connection Public
Company Limited, hired by the Trust Manager to be as the Property Management
Managers, have agreed to guarantee the occupancy for only properties that have been
vacant after the registration of the transfer of ownership or leasehold rights of properties
was completed or the tenants exercise their right to move out from the rental properties
by compensating the Trust at the same rate of rental and service fee that the latest
tenant had paid until the Property Management Manager is able to find a new tenant
and the new tenant pays the rental and service fee to the Trust or until after 12 months
from date that the Trust first invested in the properties.

19. Related party transactions

During the years, the Trust had significant business transactions with related parties.
Such transactions, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of
business and were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between
the Trust and those related parties.

[Unit; Thowsand Baht)

TICON Logistics Park Company Limited
Compensation from rental and senice 515 82,064  As specified in propery managemeant
income guarantee agreament (Note 18)
Rental expenses 8,002 8,038 Contract price
Common araa service fee 15,319 13,668 Contract price
Repair and mairtenance expenses 1.506 38 Actual charge
Utility expenses 118 148 Actual charge

TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited

Caommaen area servics fot 153 &4 Contract price
Rapailr and maintenance expenses 3683 200 Actual charge
Distribulions paid 50,603 44 611 As doclared
Other senice expense 3,783 - s declared

TICON Management Company Limited

Trust Management fee 65,026 560,508  As detailed in Mote 17
BBL Asset Management Company Limited

Trustes fea 6,803 5802 As detailed in Note 17
Bangkek Bank Public Company Limited

Interest income 352 9 Market rate

Undanwriting fee 2,160 - Contract amount

Interest expense 35,170 74,208  As detailed in Mot 11 and 12

Mitsul & Co. (Asia Pacific) Pte. Ltd.
Distributions pald 23,8598 21,147 As declared
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2017 2018 Pricing pelicy
TICON Demco Power § Co., Lid.
Raental and sensice income 162 162 Contract price
TICON Demeo Power 11 Co., Ltd.
Rental and service income 76 76 Contract price

In addition, the Trust has business transactions with the Funds as discussed in Note 1
to the financial statements.

The balances of the accounts as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 between the Trust
and those related companies are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2017 2016
BBL Asset Managemeant Company Limited
Accrued trustes fee 1,971 1,010
Accrued expenses 1,428 -
TICON Management Company Limited
Accrued trust management fee 23027 9,884
Accrued expenses 2,403 .
TICON Industrial Connection Public Company Limited
Accrued expenses 4,214 -
TICON Logistics Park Company Limited
Acocounts receivable from rental and service 3 3
Other recelvables - 2,851
Accrued expenses 2,842 1,255
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
Interest receivables 110 &
Short-term loans 3,239,966 -
Debenture 470,000 -
Long-term loans - 1,819,000
Accrued interest 6,821 305
TICON Demeco Power 6 Co., Ltd.
Accounts receivable from rental and service 14 14
Deposit payables 54 54
TICON Demco Power 11 Co., Ltd.
Accounts recaivable from rental and servics 6 &
Deposil payables 25 25
TICON Property Fund
Other receivables 192 -
TPARK Logistics Property Fund
Other receivables 187 -
TICON Industrial Growth Leasehold Property Fund
Other receivables 4,765 -
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Loans from related party

The outstanding balances and the movements of the borrowings between the Trust and
its related party as at 31 December 2017 are as follows.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Balance as at Increase Decrease Balance as at

Long-term loans 31 Decamber 2016 during the year during the year 31 December 2017

Short-term and long-term lcans from related party
Bangkok Bank Public
Company Limited 1,619,000 3,239,966 (1,819,000) 3,230,966

20. Information on trading in investments

In 2017, the Trust investment trading transactions, excluding bank deposits and
promissory note, amount to Baht 23,241 million which is 314.66% of the average net
assets value during the year.

21. Commitments

21.1 The Trust is committed to pay the trust management fee, trustee fee and registrar fee
under the terms and conditions specified in Note 17 to the financial statements.

212 As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Trust has future minimum lease payments
required under non-cancellable operating leases contracts in respect of sub-leases and

commaon service as follows.

{Unit: Millicn Baht)

2017 2016
Payable:
Inup to 1 year 20.8 20.3
In over 1 year and up to 5 years 726 47.2
In over 5 years 249.8 259.1

22. Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to
make decisions about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its

performance.
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The Trust is principally engaged in the rental of immovable properties. Its operation is
carried on only in Thailand. Segment performance is measured based on operating
profit or loss, on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss in
the financial statements. As a result, all of the revenues, operating profits and assets as
reflected in these financial slatements pertain to the aforementicned reportable
operating segment and geographical area

For the year 2017, the Trust has no major custemer with revenue of 10 percent or more
of the Trust's revenues. {(2016: the Trust had revenue from a major customer totaled
Baht 55 million).

23. Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Trust had the assets that were measured at fair
value using different levels of inputs as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)
As _at 31 December 2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments in properties - = 30,451 30,451
Investments in securities - 142 - 142

{Unit: Million Baht)
As at 31 December 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments in properties - - 7,352 7,352
Investments in securities - 271 - 271

During the current year, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy.
24. Financial instruments
24.1 Financial risk management

The Trust's financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 107
“Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise investments
in securities, cash and cash al banks, accounts receivable from rental and service,
accounts receivable from interest, other receivables, loans and debentures. The
financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is
described below.
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Credit risk

The Trust is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to accounts receivable from
rental and service. The Trust Manager manages such risk by stipulating that lessees
are lo provide lease deposits as security against collection losses. In addition, the Trust
does not have high concentration of credit risk since it has a large and varied base of
creditworthy customers. As a result, it does not anticipate material loss from its debt
collection. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of
accounts receivable from rental and service as stated in the balance sheet.

Interest rate risk

The Trust's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks, loans
and debentures. Most of the Trust's financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest
rates.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, significant financial assets and liabilities classified
by type of interest rates are summarised in the table below, with those financial assets
and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date
or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

(Unit: Million Baht)

As at 31 December 2017

Fixed interest
rates within Floating Mon-interest
1 year Interest rate bearing Interest rates
(% p.a.)

Financial assets
Investments in securities 142 - - 1.20-1.25
Cash and cash at banks = 1,168 - 0.38
Accounts receivable

from rental and service - = 68 -
Other receivables - - 19 -
Financial liabilities
Short-term loans 3,740 - - 2.50
Debentures 1,800 - - 220-418
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(Unit: Million Baht)

As at 31 December 2016

Fixed interest
rates within Floating MNon-interast
1 year Interest rate bearing Interest rates
(% p.a.)
Financial assels
Investments in securities 271 - - 1.30 - 1.45
Cash and cash at banks - 41 - 0.38
Accounts recaivable
from rental and service - - 44 -

Other receivables - - B -
Financial liabilities
Long-term loans - 1,819 - 4.00

24.2 Fair values of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Trust's financial instruments are short-term and financial
liabilities in nature or carrying interest at rates close to the market interest rate, their fair
value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in the
balance sheet, except debentures which has fair value of Baht 1,841 million, estimating
based on yield rate quoted by the Thai Bond Market Association as of the date of the
balance sheet,

25. Capital management

The primary objectives of the Trust's financial management are to maintain its ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain an appropriate capital structure in order to
provide returns for unitholders in accordance with the Trust's establishment objective.

26. Event after the reporting period

On 22 February 2018, a meeting of the Trust Manager's Board of Directors approved
the payment of a distribution to the unitholders of Baht 0.0171 per unit from the
operating results for the pericd as from 1 Movember 2017 to 31 December 2017 and
retained earnings, or a total of Baht 44.5 million, and decreasing value of unit trust at
the rate of Baht 0.0929 per unit, or a total of Baht 241.8 million, which is to be paid on
22 March 2018.
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27. Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the authorised director of the
Trust Manager on 22 February 2018,
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